
 

 

City of Crooks 
City Council 

Regular monthly meeting 
Agenda 

Date: 04/10/2023 
Time: 6:00pm/CST 

Location: Crooks Community Center (701 S West Ave, Crooks, SD, 57020) 
 

1) Call to order / Roll call 
2) Pledge of allegiance & Invocation 
3)  Agenda  
4) Meeting minutes 
5) Financials 
6) Claims 
7) Open comments [The opportunity for anyone not listed on the agenda to speak to the council, speaking times will 

be limited to three (3) minutes. No action will be taken on questions or items not on the agenda.] 
a) Eric Schuette – Serve as Alderman Ward II 
b) Bob Peterson/Big Sioux Ducks Unlimited – Crooks Comm. Center use for event 

8) Public hearings: 
a) Adoption of revised Zoning Regulations for the City of Crooks 
b) Conditional Use Application – home-based business / Applicant: Kristin Anderson / 517 Superior Ave, 

Crooks, SD 
9) Reports/Other business: 

a) Capital Improvements & Repairs 
b) Utility 

i. West Leg 2024 expansion 
c) Economic Development 
d) Streets 

i. Award 2023 Slurry Seal 
e) Planning and Zoning 

i. Building Inspector recommendation 
f) Government buildings & IT infrastructure 
g) Parks 
h) Finance 

i. Reliabank – loan quotation & deposit relationship 
i) Code enforcement / animal control 
j) Other business: 

i. Sourcewell participation agreement 
10) Ordinances, resolutions, policies, motions 

a) Second reading of Ordinance #324: Pertaining to the regulation of peddlers, solicitors, transient merchants and 
mobile food vendors 
b) Resolution 2023-04: Establishing fees for peddler/solicitor/transient merchant and mobile food vendor permits 

11) Adjourn 



S:\City Council\Meetings\2023 Meetings\03132023\03132023 RMM fnl.docx 

Page 1 of 9 

City of Crooks 
Meeting Minutes 
March 13, 2023 

 
1) Call to order/Roll Call. At 6:01pm the meeting was called to order by Mayor Oseby at the 
Crooks Community Center. Answering roll call were Alderman Harstad, Alderman Beyer, 
Alderman J. Richardson, and Mayor Oseby; a quorum was present. City staff present were City 
Administrator/Finance Officer Schantz. 
 
2) Pledge of allegiance was recited by those present. Oseby led invocation.  
 
3) Approve posted agenda. Motion by Harstad to approve agenda, seconded by Beyer. No 
discussion. All aye, motion carried.  
 
4) Meeting minutes. Governing body reviewed meeting minutes. Motion by J. Richardson to 
approve February 13, 2023 meeting minutes, seconded by Beyer. No discussion. All aye, motion 
carried.  
 
5) Financials. Governing body reviewed financials. Motion by J. Richardson to approve 
financials, seconded by Beyer. Harstad spoke on First Dakota Horticulture claim. Claim was 
discussed. No further discussion. All aye, motion carried.  
 
6) Claims. Governing body reviewed claims and wages for March 2023. Motion by J. 
Richardson to approve claims and wages, seconded by Harstad. No discussion. All aye, motion 
carried.  
 
Approved claims. 
Vendor Date incur. Description Amount 
A to Z World Languages, Inc. 1/31/2023 translation services 

documents 
 $                     524.40  

A&B Business Solutions 3/3/2023 copier lease  $                     290.99  
Aflac 2/26/2023 Aflac payable  $                     138.34  
Alliance Communications 3/1/2023 utilities office & sewer  $                     377.68  
American Engineering 
Testing 

3/2/2023 analytical chemistry testing  $                     224.00  

Angela Applebee 2/21/2023 CCC deposit refund  $                     550.00  
Big Sioux Ducks Unlimited 2/28/2023 CCC deposit refund  $                     550.00  
Border States Electric 3/6/2023 butt fusions & ice tract  $                     178.34  
CC Storage 3/1/2023 storage unit rental fee  $                       69.00  
Chad Rezac 2/13/2023 per diem Huron  $                       44.25  
Clayton Energy  2/13/2023 commodity purchase  $               87,944.15  
Clayton Energy  3/1/2023 reservation fee & monthly 

service fee 
 $               40,462.56  

Crooks Country Corner 2/2/2023 diesel exhaust fluid  $                       39.91  
Crooks Country Corner 3/7/2023 diesel exhaust fluid  $                       19.95  
Crooks Municipal Utilities 3/6/2023 City shop utilities  $                     654.64  



S:\City Council\Meetings\2023 Meetings\03132023\03132023 RMM fnl.docx 

Page 2 of 9 

Crooks Municipal Utilities 3/6/2023 Palmira Park bathroom 
utilities 

 $                     167.80  

Crooks Municipal Utilities 3/6/2023 Crooks Comm. Center 
utilities 

 $                 1,147.47  

Crooks Municipal Utilities 3/6/2023 w lift station utilities  $                       26.50  
Crooks Municipal Utilities 3/6/2023 n lift station utilities  $                       23.75  
Crooks Municipal Utilities 3/6/2023 main lift station utilities  $                       66.36  
Crooks Municipal Utilities 3/6/2023 New Hope bathroom 

utilities 
 $                       87.70  

Crooks Municipal Utilities 3/6/2023 Sunset irrigation system  $                       33.00  
Dennis Machacek 2/27/2023 damaged mailbox 

reimbursement 
 $                     100.00  

Department of Treasury / 
EFTPS 

2/16/2023 payroll tax deposit  $                 1,964.60  

Department of Treasury / 
EFTPS 

3/3/2023 payroll tax deposit  $                 5,088.95  

DGR Engineering 2/20/2023 san. sewer expansion con. 
admin 

 $                 2,045.00  

DGR Engineering 2/20/2023 east side lift station con. 
admin 

 $                 3,243.00  

DGR Engineering 2/20/2023 engineering services  $                     812.00  
Ecolab 2/16/2023 pest control services  $                       97.29  
Ferguson Waterworks 2/14/2023 mud plugs  $                     234.88  
First Dakota Horticulture 2/27/2023 emerald ash borer treatment  $                 1,896.68  
First Interstate Bank 1/30/2023 annual safe deposit box fee  $                       17.00  
First Interstate Bank 2/28/2023 service charge  $                       18.50  
First Interstate Bank 3/10/2023 purchase card payment  $                 3,648.42  
Fred the Fixer 3/3/2023 install locks filing cabinets  $                     150.00  
Health Pool of SD 3/1/2023 health + life insurance 

payable 
 $                 3,883.85  

Knife River 2/15/2023 deicing sand & delivery  $                 2,096.82  
Wilnat, Inc. / Koons Gas 
Measurement 

2/28/2023 meter brackets  $                     521.36  

Wilnat, Inc. / Koons Gas 
Measurement 

2/28/2023 meter brackets  $                     341.76  

Lacey Rentals 3/7/2023 portable restroom rental  $                     145.00  
Little Falls Machine 2/8/2023 curb shoes & parts  $                     433.04  
Matheson Tri-Gas, Inc. 2/28/2023 gas charts  $                       32.63  
Melius Manufacturing 3/9/2023 repair sander spreader  $                     500.00  
Minnehaha Community 
Water Corp. 

3/2/2023 02-2023 water purchase  $                 5,706.90  

Mitchell Construction Inc. 2/15/2023 haul snow  $                 1,875.00  
Mitchell Construction Inc. 2/27/2023 move snow  $                     700.00  
Mitchell Construction Inc. 3/2/2023 haul snow  $                 1,500.00  



S:\City Council\Meetings\2023 Meetings\03132023\03132023 RMM fnl.docx 

Page 3 of 9 

New Century Press 2/10/2023 hearing notice zoning 
regulations 

 $                       15.12  

New Century Press 2/10/2023 bid advertisement  $                       30.24  
New Century Press 2/17/2023 hearing notice zoning 

regulations 
 $                       13.43  

New Century Press 2/17/2023 bid advertisement  $                       26.87  
New Century Press 2/17/2023 02/13/23 meeting minutes  $                     179.20  
New Century Press 2/24/2023 Equalization 1st notice  $                         9.52  
New Century Press 3/3/2023 Equalization 2nd notice  $                         8.46  
Nicholas Murphy 2/27/2023 damaged mailbox 

reimbursement 
 $                     100.00  

Payment Service Network 2/2/2023 01-2023 gateway & 
chargeback fee 

 $                     104.95  

Payment Service Network 3/2/2023 gateway fee  $                       89.95  
Q3 Contracting 2/22/2023 barricades district regulator 

station 
 $                 4,308.30  

Q3 Contracting 3/8/2023 barricades district regulator 
station 

 $                 4,308.30  

Raztech LLC 3/1/2023 03-2023 managed IT 
services 

 $                     763.75  

RLS Enterprises 2/28/2023 new truck purchase  $               30,900.00  
SD Assoc. of Rural Water 
Systems 

3/1/2023 annual dues  $                     590.00  

SD Dept of Revenue 2/11/2023 01-2023 sales tax payable  $                 8,739.34  
SD GOED 2/16/2023 2023 GOED conference  $                     150.00  
SD Public Assurance Alliance 2/14/2023 insurance premium  $               25,627.91  
SD Retirement System 2/24/2023 monthly retirement 

contribution 
 $                 2,820.36  

SDRS Supplemental 
Retirement Plan 

12/22/2022 ROTH contribution  $                     300.00  

SDRS Supplemental 
Retirement Plan 

2/17/2023 ROTH contribution  $                     300.00  

SDRS Supplemental 
Retirement Plan 

3/6/2023 ROTH contribution  $                     300.00  

Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 2/13/2023 fuel skid steer  $                       57.55  
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 2/13/2023 fuel pay loader  $                     126.51  
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 2/17/2023 fuel skid steer  $                       67.84  
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 2/21/2023 fuel skid steer  $                       26.04  
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 2/22/2023 fuel plow truck  $                     112.50  
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 2/22/2023 fuel  $                       35.46  
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 2/23/2023 fuel skid steer  $                       54.59  
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 2/27/2023 fuel skid steer  $                       65.78  
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 2/28/2023 fuel pay loader  $                     120.53  
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 3/1/2023 fuel skid steer  $                       39.66  
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 3/9/2023 fuel skid steer  $                       23.79  



S:\City Council\Meetings\2023 Meetings\03132023\03132023 RMM fnl.docx 

Page 4 of 9 

Sioux Valley Energy 2/14/2023 sewer utilities  $                     264.10  
Sioux Valley Energy 2/14/2023 469th lift station utilities  $                     278.70  
Sioux Valley Energy 2/14/2023 street light utilities  $                     254.00  
South Dakota 811 2/28/2023 02-2023 message fees  $                         6.30  
Sweeney Sanitation Services 1/17/2023 refund overpaid license fee  $                       50.00  
Tobias Schantz 2/11/2023 per diem & mileage Huron  $                     204.07  
U Drive Technology 3/1/2023 02-23 message fees  $                     129.64  
US Postal Service 3/6/2023 postage mailing fee  $                     325.84  
Utility Safety and Design, 
Inc. 

2/24/2023 471st DRS relocating  $               15,620.00  

Verizon Wireless 1/23/2023 phone & jet pack building 
official 

 $                       91.28  

Verizon Wireless 2/10/2023 utilities at metering stations   $                     657.94  
Verizon Wireless 2/23/2023 phone & jet pack building 

official 
 $                       91.28  

Waterbury Plumbing LLC 2/24/2023 repairs Palmira bathroom  $                 1,539.03  
Xcel Energy 2/23/2023 utilities  $                 3,367.98  
Xcel Energy 2/27/2023 electric utilities  $                 5,603.97    

Total claims  $             279,573.55  
 
Approved purchase card payments. 
Purchase card payments & returns 
Vendor Date 

incur. 
Description Amount 

Amazon 2/15/2023 desktop printer  $                       84.58  
Amazon 2/28/2023 end caps chair legs  $                       16.48  
Amazon 3/6/2023 grease cartridges  $                       61.39  
Amazon 3/6/2023 magnetic work lights  $                       46.76  
Avera McKennan - Occ. 
Health 

3/2/2023 consortium fee  $                     100.00  

Carfax 2/27/2023 vehicle report  $                       47.91  
Crooks Country Corner 2/21/2023 fuel plow truck  $                       58.34  
Crooks Country Corner 3/2/2023 fuel plow truck  $                       77.53  
Crooks Country Corner 2/15/2023 fuel Tahoe  $                       68.01  
Crooks Country Corner 3/8/2023 fuel Tahoe  $                       57.17  
Customer Truck Equipment 3/9/2023 remote for sander + shipping  $                     330.30  
Customer Truck Equipment 3/9/2023 caution light  $                     190.92  
Dudley Laundry d/b/a 
Appeara 

2/15/2023 mat, mop, towel, rag service  $                       95.67  

Dudley Laundry d/b/a 
Appeara 

3/1/2023 mat, mop, towel, rag service  $                       95.67  

Fleet Farm 3/8/2023 supplies & storage rack  $                     266.93  
ICC 2/24/2023 annual membership 

subscription 
 $                     145.00  

Interstate All Battery Center 3/7/2023 batteries  $                       21.40  



S:\City Council\Meetings\2023 Meetings\03132023\03132023 RMM fnl.docx 

Page 5 of 9 

JCL Solutions 2/28/2023 bathroom tissue  $                       79.50  
Mail 
Technologies/DocuSend 

3/6/2023 ebills Crooks  $                         6.41  

Mail 
Technologies/DocuSend 

3/6/2023 ebills outside of Crooks  $                         5.09  

Malloy 3/9/2023 part for sander  $                     174.98  
Microsoft 2/20/2023 basic subscription  $                       54.00  
Microsoft 2/20/2023 monthly subscription 365  $                     100.00  
Nyberg's Ace Hardware 2/28/2023 rubber tips for furniture  $                       13.77  
Nyberg's Ace Hardware 3/3/2023 rubber tips for furniture  $                       20.15  
Nyberg's Ace Hardware 3/7/2023 cleaning supplies city shop  $                       31.97  
Pfeifer Implement 3/2/2023 supplies  $                     148.87  
Pfeifer Implement 3/2/2023 accidental additional charge  $                       85.05  
Sam's Club 3/3/2023 Dawn soap  $                       47.52  
Sam's Club 3/3/2023 annual membership 

subscription 
 $                       50.00  

Scooby’s Car Wash 3/2/2023 vehicle maintenance  $                       15.25  
Scooby’s Car Wash 3/8/2023 vehicle maintenance  $                         4.25  
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 2/15/2023 fuel skid steer  $                       50.29  
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 2/21/2023 fuel black truck  $                       49.16  
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 2/21/2023 fuel pay loader  $                     158.44  
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 2/22/2023 fuel pay loader  $                       79.09  
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 2/23/2023 fuel pay loader  $                     170.14  
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 3/3/2023 fuel black truck  $                       46.24  
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 3/3/2023 fuel pay loader  $                       72.46  
Sturdevants Auto Parts 3/2/2023 supplies  $                       43.96  
US Postal Service 2/13/2023 postage delinquency notices  $                     328.10  
US Postal Service 2/28/2023 certified postage  $                         9.65  
Wheelco 3/7/2023 back-up alarm  $                       40.02    

Total purchase  card claims  $                 3,648.42  
 
Approved gross wages by department for February 2023 
Council  $               525.00  
Mayor  $               420.00  
Planning and Zoning 
Commission 

 $               326.41  

Finance Office  $            1,408.75  
Government Buildings  $            1,574.48  
Building Inspector  $               478.85  
Highway & Streets  $            2,391.26  
Highway & Streets - Snow 
Removal 

 $            2,402.09  

Solid Waste Collection  $               291.65  
Code Enforcement  $               100.12  
Animal Control  $                 50.06  



S:\City Council\Meetings\2023 Meetings\03132023\03132023 RMM fnl.docx 

Page 6 of 9 

West Nile  $                 93.34  
Parks  $            2,721.62  
Economic Development  $                    1.81  
Water  $            4,357.74  
Sewer  $            4,462.74  
Gas  $            4,496.28  
Total wage claims  $         26,102.20  

 
7) Open comments. a) Critter’s – Use of City shop for St. Patrick’s Day bean bag tournament. 
Bryon Farmer, representative for Critter’s, spoke on the request and described the St. Patrick’s 
Day event hosted. Motion by J. Richardson to approve use of City shop contingent upon 
completion of a hold harmless agreement and submission of proof of insurance, seconded by 
Beyer. No discussion. All aye, motion carried.  
 
8) Public hearings.  None. 
 
9) Reports / Other business. 
 

a) Capital Improvements & Repairs. Oseby spoke on recent repairs of city’s sander and 
the snow blower. The 2023 slurry seal project was discussed. Governing body discussed 
a potential shop project and options for its location.  

b) Utility. Oseby spoke on the City’s town border station upgrade and moving of the district 
regulator station on 471st Ave.; the governing body discussed the associated project costs. 
The timeline for the funding award for the water tower project was discussed.  

c) Economic development. Harstad stated he will attend annual SMGA meeting. Oseby 
spoke on future economic development activities in the Crooks area.  

d) Streets. i. Wigham Trucking – 2023 street sweeping contract. Governing body reviewed 
the contract submitted by Wigham Trucking for 2023 street sweeping services. Each 
occurrence will cost $2960. Motion by J. Richardson to approve contract and accept 
quoted amount, seconded by Beyer. No discussion. All aye, motion carried.  
Snow removal activity conducted in town was discussed.  

e) Planning and Zoning. No report.  
f) Government buildings & IT infrastructure. No report.  
g) Parks. Harstad spoke on the upcoming Tri-Valley girls’ softball season and associated 

preparations needed at New Hope Park. The dugout repair at New Hope Park are 
scheduled to be finished this year. The damaged at the Palmira bathroom caused by the 
recent cold spell has been repaired. A Parks Board meeting is scheduled for April 4, 
2023. CAWT’s Easter Egg Hunt will take place at New Hope Park on April 2 (Inclement 
weather location: Crooks Community Center).  

h) Finance. J. Richardson spoke on upcoming expenses for the remaining amount due for 
the storm drainage repair, the dugout repair, and for snow removal. For future budget 
supplements, unused spending authority will be reallocated to assist with defraying the 
expenses. Major acquisitions/ongoing projects are the acquisition of a new truck, GIS 
mapping of all water valves, the east side lift station addition, acquisition of a utility 
tractor, and the moving of the district regulator station. Year-to-date revenues were 
reviewed.  



S:\City Council\Meetings\2023 Meetings\03132023\03132023 RMM fnl.docx 

Page 7 of 9 

i) Code enforcement/Animal control. No report. 
j) Other business:  

i. Award tractor bid. Governing body reviewed the tractor bid submitted by 
Pfeifer Implement in the amount of $55,597.41. The originally quoted price 
and current bid amount were discussed. Motion by Harstad to accept bid as 
submitted by Pfeifer Implement, seconded by Beyer. A discussion ensued 
about paying for tractor, with a temporary interfund loan from the Natural 
Gas Fund to the General Fund until financing has been obtained. No further 
discussion. All aye, motion carried.  

ii. Surplus 1994 GMC truck. Recent acquisition of a new city truck will 
necessitate surplussing of 1994 GMC truck. Motion by J. Richardson to 
surplus truck, seconded by Beyer. No discussion. All aye, motion carried.  

iii. Renewal garbage hauler license for Novak Sanitary. Motion by Beyer to 
approve renewal, seconded by J. Richardson. No discussion. All aye, motion 
carried. 

 
10) Ordinances, resolutions, polices, motions. 
 
a) Second reading of Ordinance #321 (Providing for the compensation of elected officials) was 
given by Oseby. Motion by Harstad to approve ordinance, seconded by J. Richardson. No 
discussion. Roll call vote: Harstad – aye, J. Richardson – aye, Beyer – aye. All aye, motion 
carried.  
 
b) Second reading of Ordinance #322 (Establishing provisions for the collection and refund of 
deposits in connection with utility services) was given by Oseby. Motion by Beyer to approve 
ordinance, seconded by Harstad. No discussion. Roll call vote: Harstad – aye, J. Richardson – 
aye, Beyer – aye. All aye, motion carried. 
 
c) Second reading of Ordinance #323 (Supplemental appropriations) was given by Oseby. 
Motion by Beyer to approve ordinance, seconded by Harstad. No discussion. Roll call vote: 
Harstad – aye, J. Richardson – aye, Beyer – aye. All aye, motion carried. 
 
d) First reading of Ordinance #324 (Pertaining to the regulation of peddlers, solicitors, transient 
merchants and mobile food vendors) was given by Oseby. Governing body discussed the 
ordinance and asked about existing ordinance. 
 
e) Resolution 2023-04 (Establishing fees  for peddler/solicitor/transient merchant and mobile 
food vendor permits). Oseby gave reading. The fee structure of resolution and its application if 
implemented was discussed. Motion by Harstad to table approval of resolution until next regular 
monthly meeting, seconded by Beyer. No further discussion. All aye, motion carried.  
 
f) Resolution 2023-5 (Grant resolution for the Lyon County Riverboat Foundation). Oseby gave 
reading. Motion by Harstad to approve resolution, seconded by J. Richardson. Sue Schlueter, 
resident, asked about Crooks veterans’ memorial park project. No further discussion. All aye, 
motion carried.  
 



S:\City Council\Meetings\2023 Meetings\03132023\03132023 RMM fnl.docx 

Page 8 of 9 

 CITY OF CROOKS  
RESOLUTION #2023-05 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION TO THE 
LYON COUNTY RIVERBOAT FOUNDATION’S MINI-GRANT PROGRAM FOR A 
VETERANS’ MEMORIAL PARK IN THE CITY OF CROOKS. 
 
WHEREAS, City of Crooks Parks Board Member Todd Myhre and members of the city of 
Crooks have formed a board, the Veterans’ Memorial Park Board, to pursue the establishment of 
a veterans’ memorial park in the city of Crooks; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Veterans’ Memorial Park Board members wish to pursue a grant opportunity 
provided by the Lyon County Riverboat Foundation’s Mini-Grant program; and,  
 
WHEREAS, a grant application has been prepared to be submitted to the Lyon County 
Riverboat Foundation’s Mini-Grant, with the funds, if granted, to be used towards the future 
Crooks Veterans’ Memorial Park; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Crooks wishes to pursue the grant opportunity;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The City of Crooks authorizes the submission of the application to the Lyon County Riverboat 
Foundation’s Mini-Grant program. 
 
 
Ayes: Harstad, Beyer, Richardson 
Nays:  
Abstains:  
 
 
Dated this 13th day of March, 2023. 
 
 
 
_____________________________     (SEAL) 
F. Butch Oseby, Mayor 
 
        Attest: 
        ____________________________ 
        Tobias Schantz, Finance Officer 
 
Passed: 03/13/2023 
Published:  
Effective:  
 



S:\City Council\Meetings\2023 Meetings\03132023\03132023 RMM fnl.docx 

Page 9 of 9 

 
11) Executive session pursuant to SDCL 1-25-2(1) – Personnel matters. No action was taken 
by Council to enter into executive session. 
 
12) Adjourn. Motion by Harstad to adjourn meeting at 7:13pm, seconded by Beyer. No 
discussion. All aye, motion carried.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Tobias Schantz 
City Administrator/Finance Officer 
City of Crooks, SD 
 
Published:  
Published once at the approximate cost of: $ 
 



S:\City Council\Meetings\2023 Meetings\03202023 - BoE\30202023 Board of Equalization 
meeting minutes fnl.docx 

The City of Crooks is an equal opportunity provider 1 

City of Crooks 
Crooks City Council / Local Board of Equalization 

Special meeting / Local Board of Equalization meeting 
March 20, 2023 

 
At 6:00pm, Mayor Oseby called the meeting to order at the Crooks Community Center. 
Answering roll call were Alderman Harstad, Alderman J. Richardson, Alderman Beyer, Moller 
(school board member), and Mayor Oseby. City staff present was City Administrator/Finance 
Officer Schantz.  
 
Approve agenda. Motion by J. Richardson to approve agenda, seconded by Harstad. No 
discussion. All aye, motion carried.  
 
Call to order Local Board of Equalization. Oseby called the Local Board of Equalization to 
order. Answering roll call: Harstad, J. Richardson, Beyer, Oseby, Moller (school board member). 
 
Review of Assessment Book. Assessment book and assessment process were discussed.  
 
Property Assessment Objections. 
 
Appeal Number 1 - Property: lot 38, block 6, Sunset Addn./ Parcel ID: 089529.  
Soren Leiseth, owner, was present and appealed to the board. Motion by J. Richardson to set 
assessed value for land at $68,200 and assessed value for structure at $599,800, seconded by 
Harstad. No discussion. All aye, motion carried.  
 
Appeal Number 2 - Property: lot 42, block 6, Sunset Addn. / Parcel ID: 089533.  
Melissa Effling, owner, was present and appealed to the board. Motion by J. Richardson to leave 
assessed value for land at $53,200 and set assessed value for structure at $429,048, seconded by 
Moller. No discussion. All aye, motion carried.  
 
Appeal Number 3 - Property: lot 51, block 6, Sunset Addn. / Parcel ID: 089542.  
Shane Christensen, owner, was present and appealed to the board. Motion by Harstad to deny 
appeal, seconded by Moller. No discussion. All aye, motion carried.  
 
Appeal Number 4 - Property: lot 21, block 10, Sunset Addn. / Parcel ID: 078588.  
Julia Althoff, owner, was present and appealed to the board. Motion by J. Richardson to set 
assessed value for land at $69,600 and assessed value for structure at $424,400, seconded by 
Harstad. No discussion. All aye, motion carried.  
 
Appeal Number 5 - Property: lot 2, block 5, Gloe Addn. / Parcel ID: 069739.  
Todd Myhre, owner, was present and appealed to the board. Motion by J. Richardson to set 
assessed value for land at $30,300 and assessed value for structure at $308,047, seconded by 
Harstad. No discussion. All aye, motion carried.  



S:\City Council\Meetings\2023 Meetings\03202023 - BoE\30202023 Board of Equalization 
meeting minutes fnl.docx 

The City of Crooks is an equal opportunity provider 2 

 
Appeal Number 6 - Property: lot 5, block 10, Sunset Addn. / Parcel ID: 082949.  
Ron Schauer, owner, was present and appealed to the board. Motion by Harstad to set assessed 
value for land at $65,400 and assessed structure value at $429,500, seconded by Beyer. No 
discussion. All aye, motion carried.  
 
Appeal Number 7 - Property: lot 24, block 2, Sunset Addn. / Parcel ID: 077285.  
No owner was present. Motion by Harstad to deny appeal, seconded by Moller. No discussion. 
All aye, motion carried.  
 
Appeal Number 8 - Property: lot 43, block 6, Sunset Addn. / Parcel ID: 089534.  
Chad Kissell, owner, was present and appealed to the board. Motion by J. Richardson to set 
assessed value for land at $53,700 and assessed value for structure at $383,684, seconded by 
Beyer. Discussion ensued about assessed value for structure. Motion by J. Richardson to amend 
previous motion and change assessed value for structure to $388,300, seconded Beyer. No 
further discussion. All aye, amendment to motion carried. Board then proceeded to vote on 
amended motion. All aye, amended motion carried.  
 
Appeal number 9 – Property: lot 14, block 6, Sunset Addn. / Parcel ID: 077299.  
Andrew Henning, owner, was present and appealed to the board. Motion by J. Richardson to set 
assessed value for land at $49,900 and assessed value for structure at $248,413, seconded by 
Beyer. No discussion. All aye, motion carried.  
 
Appeal number 10 – Tract 1 of Schuette’s Addn. / Parcel ID: 074883.  
Robert Schuette, owner, was present and appealed to the board. Motion by Beyer to set assessed 
value for land at $116,300 and assessed value for structure at $295,800, seconded by Moller. No 
further discussion. Ayes - Moller, Beyer, Richardson; Nay – Harstad. Majority ayes, motion 
carried.  
 
Appeal number 11 – Property: lot 3, block 11, Sunset Addn. / Parcel ID: 082955. 
Owners Scott & Jana Richardson were present and appealed to the board. Motion by Harstad to 
set assessed value for land at $55,200 and assessed value for structure at $339,800, seconded by 
Moller. No discussion. All aye, motion carried. Abstention – J. Richardson.  
 
Appeal number 12 – Property: lot 14, block 10, Sunset Addn. / Parcel ID: 078581. 
Representatives for Phillips Family Trust, Ruben & Joan Phillips, were present and appealed to 
the board. Motion by J. Richardson to set assessed value for land at $54,400 and assessed value 
for structure at $544,600, seconded by Beyer. All aye, motion carried. Abstention – Harstad.  
 
Appeal number 13 – Property: lot 14, block 5, Johnsons 1st Addn. / Parcel ID: 019936. 
No owner was present. Motion by Harstad to deny appeal, seconded by Moller. No discussion. 
All aye, motion carried. Discussion ensued by board concerning appeal; it was noted appeal 13 
should not have been denied. Motion by J. Richardson to rescind motion to deny appeal number 



S:\City Council\Meetings\2023 Meetings\03202023 - BoE\30202023 Board of Equalization 
meeting minutes fnl.docx 

The City of Crooks is an equal opportunity provider 3 

13, seconded by Beyer. No discussion. All aye, motion carried. Motion by J. Richardson to set 
assessed value for land at $22,200 and assessed value for structure at $277,800, seconded by 
Beyer. No discussion. All aye, motion carried.  
 
Appeal number 14 – Property: lot 9, block 2, Palmira Park Addn. / Parcel ID: 019972. 
No representative for Sandra C. Dumke Living Trust was present. Motion by Harstad to deny 
appeal, seconded by Richardson. No discussion. All aye, motion carried.  
 
Appeal number 15 – Property: lot 18, block 10, Sunset Addn. / Parcel ID: 078585.  
Owners Jesse & John Graney were present and appealed to the board. Motion by Beyer to set 
assessed value for land at $74,800 and assessed value for structure at $500,633, seconded by 
Richardson. No discussion. All aye, motion carried.  
 
Appeal number 16 – Property: lot 39, block 6, Sunset Addn. / Parcel ID: 089530.  
Lane Sanderson, owner, was present and appealed to the board. Motion by Harstad to deny 
appeal, seconded by Richardson. No discussion. All aye, motion carried.  
 
Omissions or corrections of assessments. No omissions or corrections were noted. 
 
Close assessment book. Motion by Richardson to close assessment book, seconded by Harstad. 
No discussion. All aye, motion carried.  
 
Close Equalization Process and adjourn as Local Board of Equalization. Motion by J. 
Richardson to adjourn as Local Board of Equalization at 7:39pm, seconded by Beyer. No 
discussion. All aye, motion carried.  
 
Adjourn. Motion by Harstad to adjourn meeting at 7:39pm, seconded by J. Richardson. No 
discussion. All aye, motion carried.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Tobias Schantz 
City Administrator/Municipal Finance Officer 
City of Crooks, SD 
 
 
Published:  
Published once at the approximate cost of: $ 



Appropriation and Accumulations:

410 GENERAL GOVERNMENT

411 Council 12,483.00$          2,980.51$            9,502.49$           23.88%

411.3 Publications 5,535.00$            892.15$               4,642.85$           16.12%

411.5 Contingency 4,827.00$            -$                     4,827.00$           0.00%

412 Mayor 11,070.00$          2,978.20$            8,091.80$           26.90%

412.3 Planning & Zoning 11,498.00$          2,730.24$            8,767.76$           23.75%

413 Elections 1,980.00$            -$                     1,980.00$           0.00%

414 Attorney 12,000.00$          810.00$               11,190.00$         6.75%

414.2 Finance Office 48,650.00$          14,155.95$          34,494.05$         29.10%

419.2 Government Buildings 51,358.00$          19,369.78$          31,988.22$         37.72%

419.6 Engineer 4,000.00$            812.00$               3,188.00$           20.30%

163,401.00$        44,728.83$          118,672.17$       27.37%

420 PUBLIC SAFETY

421 Police 51,935.00$          12,983.75$          38,951.25$         25.00%

422 Fire 40,000.00$          40,000.00$          -$                    100.00%

423.2 Protective Inspection 44,471.00$          4,232.41$            40,238.59$         9.52%

136,406.00$        57,216.16$          79,189.84$         41.95%

430 PUBLIC WORKS
431.1 Highway and Streets 127,179.00$        51,603.03$          75,575.97$         40.58%
431.6 Street Lighting 26,350.00$          9,621.54$            16,728.46$         36.51%
431.7 Snow Removal 99,560.00$          51,714.80$          47,845.20$         51.94%
431.8 Sidewalks & Crosswalks 169,000.00$        839.69$               168,160.31$       0.50%
432.3 Solid Waste Collection 12,337.00$          1,721.74$            10,615.26$         13.96%

434,426.00$        115,500.80$        92,304.43$         26.59%

440 HEALTH AND WELFARE
441 Code Enforcement 5,713.00$            1,277.62$            4,435.38$           22.36%

441.2 Animal Control 883.00$               208.84$               674.16$              23.65%
441.3 West Nile 4,509.00$            544.40$               3,964.60$           12.07%
444.0 Humane Society 650.00$               120.14$               529.86$              18.48%
446.0 Ambulance Services 10,000.00$          10,000.00$          -$                    100.00%

21,755.00$          12,151.00$          9,604.00$           55.85%

450 CULTURE AND RECREATION
452 Parks 253,573.00$        57,026.65$          196,546.35$       22.49%

253,573.00$        57,026.65$          196,546.35$       22.49%

465 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & ASSIST.
465.3 Promoting the City 6,672.00$            4,010.37$            2,661.63$           60.11%

6,672.00$            4,010.37$            2,661.63$           60.11%

470 DEBT SERVICE
470 Debt Service 39,957.00$          39,956.00$          1.00$                  100.00%

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 39,957.00$          39,956.00$          1.00$                  100.00%

TOTAL GENERAL FUNDS 1,056,190.00$     330,589.81$        498,979.42$       31.30%

211 - Gross Receipts 25,000.00$          7,975.00$            17,025.00$         31.90%

220 - Street Maintenance 93,000.00$          -$                     93,000.00$         0.00%

602 - Water 341,161.00$        85,965.64$          255,195.36$       25.20%,
604 - Sewer 404,073.00$        90,765.90$          313,307.10$       22.46%

617 - Natural Gas 1,082,903.00$     364,439.27$        718,463.73$       33.65%

CITY OF CROOKS BUDGET V. ACTUALS
As of April 7, 2023

TOTAL ECONOMIC DEVELOP'T

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS

TOTAL HEALTH & WELFARE

TOTAL CULTURE & RECREATION

101 GENERAL FUND
 2023 Budget 

 2023 YTD 
Actuals 

 Remaining 
Balance 

% Budget 
spent

Page 1



04/07/23 2:03 PM

Council Revenue Guideline

CITY OF CROOKS
Page 1

Source Source Descr
2023

Budget
2023

YTD Amt
March

2023 Amt
%YTD
Budget

101 GENERAL FUND

31110 GEN PROP TAXES CURRENT YEAR $284,790.00 $8,619.38 $8,619.38 3.03%

31130 GEN PROP TAXES PRIOR YR $2,000.00 $1,763.05 $480.12 88.15%

31300 GEN SALES AND USE TAXES $200,000.00 $91,911.47 $32,018.97 45.96%

31500 AMUSEMENT TAXES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

31900 PENALTIES & INTEREST DELINQ. $200.00 $46.45 $27.99 23.23%

32001 CITY LIQUOR LICENSE $4,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

32002 CITY MALT BEVERAGE LICENSE $300.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

32003 CITY VIDEO LOTTERY FEE $900.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

32004 BUILDING PERMITS $40,000.00 $10,392.58 $173.20 25.98%

32005 GARBAGE LICENSES $600.00 $300.00 $0.00 50.00%

32006 PET LICENSES $0.00 $6.00 $2.00 0.00%

32007 PEDDLERS LICENSE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

32008 CONTRACTORS LICENSE $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

32200 SALE OF SURPLUS PROPERTY $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

33100 FEDERAL GRANTS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

33401 STATE GRANT - PARKS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

33402 STATE GRANTS - COMM CENTER $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

33403 STATE GRANT - PUBLIC HEALTH $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

33510 BANK FRANCHISE TAX $9,000.00 $12,042.50 $0.00 133.81%

33530 LIQUOR TAX REVERSION $8,000.00 $2,414.31 $0.00 30.18%

33540 MOTOR VEHICLE TAX 5% $8,000.00 $1,656.42 $0.00 20.71%

33550 PRORATE LICENSE FEES $750.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

33580 LOCAL GOV HWY AND BRIDGE FUND $9,650.00 $2,207.89 $0.00 22.88%

33830 COUNTY WHEEL TAX $1,450.00 $307.33 $0.00 21.20%

33900 OTH. INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV $0.00 $93,600.00 $0.00 0.00%

34103 HEARING FEES $0.00 $50.00 $50.00 0.00%

34110 ZONING AND SUBDIVISION FEES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

34203 PROTECTIVE INSPECTION FEES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

34399 HIGHWAY & STREETS OTHER $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

34530 ANIMAL CONTROL FINES COLLECTED $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

35000 FINES AND FORFEITS $0.00 $25.00 $0.00 0.00%

35100 COURT FINES AND FORFEITS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

36100 INVESTMENT EARNINGS $50.00 $5,398.98 $1,823.15 10797.96%

36201 RENTALS $5,000.00 $3,480.00 $480.00 69.60%

36300 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

36401 SPECIAL MAINTENANCE FEE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

36600 GAIN ON SALE OF FIXED ASSETS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%



Source Source Descr
2023

Budget
2023

YTD Amt
March

2023 Amt
%YTD
Budget

Page 2

04/07/23 2:03 PM

Council Revenue Guideline

CITY OF CROOKS

36700 CONTRI & DONATION PRIVATE SOUR $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

36900 OTHER  MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE $1,500.00 $37.46 $0.00 2.50%

36901 CABLE TELEVISION FRANCHISE FEE $5,500.00 $1,273.75 $316.59 23.16%

36903 RECOVERY PR YR EXPENDITURES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

36904 Dividend income $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

37200 MONTHLY BASE CHARGE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

37600 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

38040 OTHER SALES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

39000 OTHER SOURCES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

39101 TRANSFERS IN (SDCL 9-21-26.1) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

39107 CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

39110 OPERATING TRANSFERS IN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

39129 OTHER LONG TERM DEBT ISSUED $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

39130 SALES OF MUNICIPAL PROPERTY $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

39140 COMP FOR LOSS OR DAM GEN FIX A $0.00 $1,039.03 $1,039.03 0.00%

$583,690.00 $236,571.60 $45,030.43101 GENERAL FUND

201 SPECIAL PARK FUND

34698 Open Space Fee $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00201 SPECIAL PARK FUND

211 LIQUOR, LODGING, DINING

31300 GEN SALES AND USE TAXES $10,000.00 $3,318.40 $1,037.85 33.18%

36700 CONTRI & DONATION PRIVATE SOUR $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$10,000.00 $3,318.40 $1,037.85211 LIQUOR, LODGING, DINING

220 SPECIAL MAINTENANCE FUND

36401 SPECIAL MAINTENANCE FEE $93,000.00 $5,523.00 $4,791.00 5.94%

$93,000.00 $5,523.00 $4,791.00220 SPECIAL MAINTENANCE FUND

221 SPECIAL PARK GIFT FUND

36700 CONTRI & DONATION PRIVATE SOUR $0.00 $1,410.00 $1,400.00 0.00%

$0.00 $1,410.00 $1,400.00221 SPECIAL PARK GIFT FUND

272 FEDERAL GRANT FUND

33100 FEDERAL GRANTS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

33199 ARPA - CFDA 21027 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00272 FEDERAL GRANT FUND

602 WATER FUND



Source Source Descr
2023

Budget
2023

YTD Amt
March

2023 Amt
%YTD
Budget

Page 3

04/07/23 2:03 PM

Council Revenue Guideline

CITY OF CROOKS

33100 FEDERAL GRANTS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

33400 STATE GRANT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

33900 OTH. INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

36100 INVESTMENT EARNINGS $0.00 $292.21 $131.91 0.00%

36201 RENTALS $2,280.00 $570.33 $190.11 25.01%

36900 OTHER  MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

36903 RECOVERY PR YR EXPENDITURES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

36904 Dividend income $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

37200 MONTHLY BASE CHARGE $190,000.00 $54,100.22 $18,051.00 28.47%

37902 BULK SALES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

38040 OTHER SALES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

38100 WATER METERED REVENUE $145,000.00 $26,541.50 $9,051.00 18.30%

38104 TAP FEE $0.00 $1,250.00 $0.00 0.00%

38105 Hydrant hookup $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

38120 WATER PENALTY REVENUE $0.00 $489.25 $192.50 0.00%

38180 WATER SALES OF SUP & MATERIALS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

38190 WATER OTHER REVENUE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

38205 UNOBLIGATED FUNDS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

38310 RECONNECT FEES $0.00 $250.00 $100.00 0.00%

39101 TRANSFERS IN (SDCL 9-21-26.1) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

39124 Other bonds issued $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$337,280.00 $93,493.51 $27,716.52602 WATER FUND

604 SEWER FUND

33100 FEDERAL GRANTS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

33199 ARPA - CFDA 21027 $0.00 $254,026.04 $0.00 0.00%

33400 STATE GRANT $0.00 $4,404.09 $4,404.09 0.00%

33404 SD DANR Grants $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

33900 OTH. INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

36100 INVESTMENT EARNINGS $0.00 $292.21 $131.92 0.00%

36900 OTHER  MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

36903 RECOVERY PR YR EXPENDITURES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

36904 Dividend income $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

37100 CW-04SURCH AS SECURITY OF DEBT $56,304.00 $14,446.67 $4,820.80 25.66%

37101 CW-05SURCH AS SECURITY OF DEBT $24,480.00 $6,281.16 $2,096.00 25.66%

37200 MONTHLY BASE CHARGE $230,000.00 $67,162.86 $22,410.00 29.20%

38040 OTHER SALES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

38300 SEWER METERED REVENUE $53,000.00 $12,515.00 $4,262.50 23.61%

38304 TAP FEE $0.00 $1,250.00 $0.00 0.00%



Source Source Descr
2023

Budget
2023

YTD Amt
March

2023 Amt
%YTD
Budget

Page 4

04/07/23 2:03 PM

Council Revenue Guideline

CITY OF CROOKS

38310 RECONNECT FEES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

38320 SEWER PENALTY REVENUE $1,000.00 $489.25 $187.50 48.93%

38350 SEWER OTHER REVENUE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

38380 SEWER SALES OF SUP & MATERIALS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

39101 TRANSFERS IN (SDCL 9-21-26.1) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

39124 Other bonds issued $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$364,784.00 $360,867.28 $38,312.81604 SEWER FUND

617 NATURAL GAS FUND

36600 GAIN ON SALE OF FIXED ASSETS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

36903 RECOVERY PR YR EXPENDITURES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

37901 Gas metered revenue $784,000.00 $526,314.05 $142,953.93 67.13%

37903 Gas customer service charge $141,000.00 $36,940.10 $12,333.00 26.20%

37904 Gas penalty $1,000.00 $1,506.50 $475.00 150.65%

37905 Gas returned checks/NSF pmts $0.00 $90.00 $0.00 0.00%

37906 Gas reconnect fees $0.00 $300.00 $100.00 0.00%

37907 Dividend income $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

37908 Interest income $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

37909 CIAC $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

37910 Other income $14,000.00 $13,792.32 $2,341.98 98.52%

39101 TRANSFERS IN (SDCL 9-21-26.1) $0.00 -$193.54 $0.00 0.00%

39140 COMP FOR LOSS OR DAM GEN FIX A $0.00 $193.54 $0.00 0.00%

$940,000.00 $579,942.97 $158,203.91617 NATURAL GAS FUND

$2,328,754.00 $1,281,126.76 $276,492.52

([Fund] Not In ("600","755"))



Fund Accounting Cash
FUND DESCRIPTION Balance

101 General 594,987.50$          
201 Special Park Fund ‐$                         
211 Gross Receipts 16,129.81$             
220 Street maintenance fund 7,202.05$               
221 Special Park Gift Fund 6,080.00$               
272 Federal Grant Fund (21.027) ‐$                         
602 Water 231,005.03$          
604 Sewer 422,998.89$          
617 Gas 968,271.06$          
101 SD Fit ‐ 102 1,104.37$               

SD Fit ‐ 104 20,405.80$             
602 SD Fit ‐ 103 36,588.73$             
604 SD Fit ‐ 103 36,588.70$             
617 SD Fit ‐ 102 193.54$                  

2,341,555.48$       

Cash
Bank Accounts Balance

38 5,014.60$               
206 247,409.26$          
916 2,009,047.32$       

SD Fit Utility  1,297.91$               
SD Fit Palmira SRF reserve 73,177.43$             
SD Fit USDA pay loader reserve 20,405.80$             

2,356,352.32$       

Deposits in transit 1,953.26$               
Outstanding checks (16,750.10)$           

Book versus Bank +/‐ difference (14,796.84)$           

Totals

Totals

As of March 31st, 2023
MONTHLY FUND CASH BALANCE REPORT

CITY OF CROOKS



Liquor Special
Lodging Special Park Other Total

General Dining Maintenance Gift Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES:
Assets:
  Cash and Cash Equivalents  683,859.47 18,700.85 1,679.05 4,670.00 708,909.37

106   Cash with Fiscal Agent 0.00
151   Investments 0.00
110   Taxes Receivable--Delinquent 6,416.99 6,416.99
115   Accounts Receivable, Net 15,149.28 15,149.28
117   Unbilled Accounts Receivable 0.00
121   Special Assessments Receivable--Current 1,350.00 1,350.00
122   Special Assessments Receivable--Delinquent 1,105.00 1,105.00
123   Special Assessments Receivable--Noncurrent 0.00
125   Interest Receivable--Special Assessments 0.00
126   Governmental Unit's Share of Assessment Improvement Costs 0.00
128   Notes Receivable 0.00
130   Leases Receivable 0.00
131   Due from __________________ Funds 0.00
132   Due from __________________ Governments 1,649.54 110.56 1,760.10
129   Due from Component Unit 0.00
135   Interest Receivable 0.00
136   Accrued Interest on Investments Purchased 0.00
137   Dividend Receivable 0.00
141   Inventory of Supplies 0.00
142   Inventory of Stores Purchased for Resale 0.00
154   Deposits 0.00
155   Prepaid Expenses 14,911.06 14,911.06
157   Unamortized Discounts on Bonds Sold 0.00
133   Advance to ______________ Fund 0.00

107.1   Restricted  Cash and Cash Equivalents                     0.00
107.2   Restricted Investments 0.00

Total Assets 724,441.34 18,811.41 1,679.05 4,670.00 0.00 749,601.80

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
198   Other Deferred Outflows of Resources 0.00

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES 724,441.34 18,811.41 1,679.05 4,670.00 0.00 749,601.80

MUNICIPALITY OF CROOKS
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2022



Liquor Special
Lodging Special Park Other Total

General Dining Maintenance Gift Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

MUNICIPALITY OF CROOKS
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2022

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:

201   Claims Payable 0.00
202   Accounts Payable 55,526.16 55,526.16
203   Judgments Payable 0.00
204   Annuities Payable 0.00
205   Notes Payable 0.00
206   Contracts Payable 0.00
207   Contracts Payable--Retained Percentage 0.00
208   Due to __________________________ Funds 2,206.13 2,206.13
209   Due to __________________________ Government 0.00
210   Due to Resigned Employees 0.00
211   Matured Bonds Payable 0.00
212   Matured Interest Payable 0.00
213   Incurred but Not Reported Claims 0.00
215   Accrued Interest Payable 0.00
216   Accrued Wages Payable 5,346.67 5,346.67
217   Accrued Taxes Payable 15,539.45 15,539.45
218   Amount Held for Special Assessment Debt Service 0.00
219   Amounts Held for Others 1,696.38 1,696.38
220   Customer Deposits 7,200.00 7,200.00
221   Due to Fiscal Agent 0.00
223   Unearned Revenue 8,780.00 8,780.00
225   Registered Warrants 0.00
226   Bonds Payable Current:

226.01     General Obligation 0.00
226.02     Revenue 0.00
226.03     Special Assessment 0.00

227   Unamortized Premiums on Bonds Sold 0.00
228   Payable from Restricted Assets 0.00
229   Due to Component Unit        0.00
230   Compensated Absences Payable -- Current 0.00
236   Advance from ________________ Fund 0.00

Total Liabilities 96,294.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 96,294.79



Liquor Special
Lodging Special Park Other Total

General Dining Maintenance Gift Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

MUNICIPALITY OF CROOKS
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2022

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
244   Unavailable Revenue--Sales and Use Taxes 0.00
245   Unavailable Revenue--Property Taxes 6,416.99 6,416.99
246   Unavailable Revenue--Special Assessments 2,455.00 2,455.00
247   Other Deferred Inflows of Resources 0.00

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 8,871.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,871.99

Fund Balances:
263   Nonspendable 14,911.06 14,911.06
264   Restricted 42,397.44 18,811.41 1,679.05 4,670.00 67,557.90
265   Committed 216,500.00 216,500.00
266   Assigned 0.00
267   Unassigned 345,466.06 345,466.06

    
Total Fund Balances 619,274.56 18,811.41 1,679.05 4,670.00 0.00 644,435.02

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 724,441.34 18,811.41 1,679.05 4,670.00 0.00 749,601.80

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Exhibit IV
Page 1

Liquor Special Federal
Special Lodging Special Park Grant Other Total

General Park Dining Maintenance Gift CFDA #21027 Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

Revenues:
310   Taxes:
311     General Property Taxes 267,311.19 267,311.19
312     Airflight Property Tax 0.00
313     General Sales and Use Taxes 365,117.25 14,486.56 379,603.81
314     Gross Receipts Business Taxes 0.00
315     Amusement Taxes 0.00
317     Excise Tax 0.00
318     Tax Deed Revenue 0.00
319     Penalties and Interest on Delinquent Taxes 298.10 298.10
320   Licenses and Permits 75,631.24 75,631.24
330   Intergovernmental Revenue:
331     Federal Grants 239,982.57 239,982.57
332     Federal Shared Revenue 0.00
333     Federal Payments in Lieu of Taxes 0.00
334     State Grants 1,814.00 1,814.00
335     State Shared Revenue:

335.01       Bank Franchise Tax 10,485.50 10,485.50
335.02       Prorate License Fees 391.47 391.47
335.03       Liquor Tax Reversion (25%) 9,543.84 9,543.84
335.04       Motor Vehicle Licenses 4,398.11 4,398.11
335.06       Fire Insurance Premiums Reversion 0.00
335.08       Local Government Highway and Bridge Fund 10,772.87 10,772.87
335.09       911 Remittances 0.00
335.2       Other 0.00

336     State Payments in Lieu of Taxes 0.00
338     County Shared Revenue:

338.01       County Road Tax (25%) 0.00
338.02       County Road and Bridge Tax (25%) 0.00
338.03       County Wheel Tax 7,558.35 7,558.35
338.99       Other 0.00

339     Other Intergovernmental Revenues 71,429.30 71,429.30
340   Charges for Goods and Services:
341     General Government 600.00 600.00
342     Public Safety 0.00
343     Highways and Streets 0.00
344     Sanitation 0.00
345     Health 0.00
346     Culture and Recreation 22,200.00 22,200.00
347     Ambulance 0.00

MUNICIPALITY OF CROOKS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022



Exhibit IV
Page 2

Liquor Special Federal
Special Lodging Special Park Grant Other Total

General Park Dining Maintenance Gift CFDA #21027 Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

MUNICIPALITY OF CROOKS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

348     Cemetery 0.00
349     Other 0.00
350   Fines and Forfeits:
351     Court Fines and Costs 0.00
352     Animal Control Fines 0.00
353     Parking Meter Fines 0.00
354     Library 0.00
359     Other 296.49 296.49
360   Miscellaneous Revenue:
361     Investment Earnings 8,744.12 8,744.12
362     Rentals 10,765.00 10,765.00
363     Special Assessments 0.00
364     Maintenance Assessments 94,679.05 94,679.05
367     Contributions and Donations from Private Sources 1,340.00 5,000.00 4,670.00 11,010.00
368     Liquor Operating Agreement Income 0.00
369     Other 12,592.13 12,592.13

Total Revenue 859,088.96 22,200.00 19,486.56 94,679.05 4,670.00 239,982.57 0.00 1,240,107.14

Expenditures:
410   General Government:
411     Legislative 15,716.61 15,716.61
412     Executive 20,654.43 20,654.43
413     Elections 22.31 22.31
414     Financial Administration 59,258.11 59,258.11
419     Other 93,320.11 93,320.11

  Total General Government 188,971.57 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 188,971.57

420   Public Safety:
421     Police 48,035.00 48,035.00
422     Fire 40,000.00 40,000.00
423     Protective Inspection 36,860.47 36,860.47
424     Corrections 0.00
429     Other Protection 2,908.00 2,908.00

  Total Public Safety 127,803.47 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 127,803.47

430   Public Works:
431     Highways and Streets 207,391.91 93,000.00 300,391.91
432     Sanitation 0.00
433     Water 0.00
434     Electricity 0.00
435     Airport 0.00
436     Parking Facilities 0.00
437     Cemeteries 0.00
438     Natural Gas 0.00
439     Transit 0.00

  Total Public Works 207,391.91 0.00 0.00 93,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 300,391.91



Exhibit IV
Page 3

Liquor Special Federal
Special Lodging Special Park Grant Other Total

General Park Dining Maintenance Gift CFDA #21027 Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

MUNICIPALITY OF CROOKS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

440   Health and Welfare:
441     Health 19,285.89 19,285.89
442     Home Health 0.00
443     Mental Health Centers 0.00
444     Humane Society 0.00
445     Drug Education 0.00
446     Ambulance 7,500.00 7,500.00
447     Hospitals, Nursing Homes and Rest Homes 0.00
449     Other 0.00

  Total Health and Welfare 26,785.89 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 26,785.89

450   Culture and Recreation:
451     Recreation 0.00
452     Parks 117,178.27 117,178.27
455     Libraries 0.00
456     Auditorium 0.00
457     Historical Preservation 0.00
458     Museums 0.00

Total Culture and Recreation 117,178.27 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 117,178.27

460   Conservation and Development:
463     Urban Redevelopment and Housing 0.00
465     Economic Development and Assistance 7,140.29 18,700.00 25,840.29
466     Economic Opportunity 0.00

  Total Conservation and Development 7,140.29 0.00 18,700.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 25,840.29

470   Debt Service 62,911.00 62,911.00
480   Intergovernmental Expenditures 0.00
485   Capital Outlay 0.00
490   Miscellaneous:
491     Judgements and Losses 0.00
492     Other Expenditures 0.00
493     Liquor Operating Agreements 0.00

  Total Miscellaneous 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Expenditures 738,182.40 0.00 18,700.00 93,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 849,882.40

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 120,906.56 22,200.00 786.56 1,679.05 4,670.00 239,982.57 0.00 390,224.74



Exhibit IV
Page 4

Liquor Special Federal
Special Lodging Special Park Grant Other Total

General Park Dining Maintenance Gift CFDA #21027 Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

MUNICIPALITY OF CROOKS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
391.01   Transfers In 22,200.00 22,200.00
391.02   Lease Proceeds 0.00
391.03   Sale of Municipal Property 12,397.06 12,397.06
391.04   Compensation for Loss or Damage to Capital Assets 0.00
391.20   Long-Term Debt Issued 0.00

511   Transfers Out (22,200.00) (239,982.57) (262,182.57)
512   Discount on Bonds Issued 0.00
513   Payments to Refunded Debt Escrow Agent 0.00

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 34,597.06 (22,200.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 (239,982.57) 0.00 (227,585.51)

391.06 (514)   Special Items 0.00
391.05 (515)   Extraordinary Items 0.00

Net Change in Fund Balances  155,503.62 0.00 786.56 1,679.05 4,670.00 0.00 0.00 162,639.23

Changes in Nonspendable 0.00

Changes in Accounting Estimate (See Note ___) 0.00

Fund Balance - Beginning 463,770.94 18,024.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 481,795.79
Adjustments:
  ____________________________ 0.00
  ____________________________ 0.00

Adjusted Fund Balance - Beginning 463,770.94 0.00 18,024.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 481,795.79

FUND BALANCE- ENDING 619,274.56 0.00 18,811.41 1,679.05 4,670.00 0.00 0.00 644,435.02

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Water Sewer Natural Gas Internal
Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals Service Funds

ASSETS:
Current Assets:
  Cash and Cash Equivalents  241,793.27 390,880.40 787,117.73 1,419,791.40

106   Cash with Fiscal Agent 0.00
151   Investments 0.00
115   Accounts Receivable, Net 34,819.99 42,955.92 304,308.47 382,084.38
117   Unbilled Accounts Receivable 0.00
121   Special Assessments Receivable--Current 0.00
122   Special Assessments Receivable--Delinquent 0.00
123   Special Assessments Receivable--Noncurrent 0.00
125   Interest Receivable--Special Assessments 0.00
126   Governmental Unit's Share of Assessment Improvement Costs 0.00
128   Notes Receivable 0.00
130   Leases Receivable 0.00
131   Due from __________________ Fund 120.82 152.25 2,032.87 2,305.94
132   Due from Other Government 5,900.31 5,900.31
129   Due from Component Unit 0.00
135   Interest Receivable 0.00
136   Accrued Interest on Investments Purchased 0.00
137   Dividend Receivable 0.00
141   Inventory of Supplies 7,952.00 51,261.00 59,213.00
142   Inventory of Stores Purchased for Resale 0.00
155   Prepaid Expenses 5,587.28 3,477.80 2,897.85 11,962.93

Total Current Assets 290,273.36 437,466.37 1,153,518.23 0.00 1,881,257.96 0.00

Noncurrent Assets:
107.1   Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.00
107.2   Restricted Investments 0.00

154   Deposits 0.00
157   Unamortized Discounts on Bonds Sold 0.00
133   Advance to ________ Fund 0.00
189   Net Pension Asset 191.63 195.95 172.64 560.22

  Capital Assets:
160     Land 2,000.00 188,058.00 190,058.00
162     Buildings 13,000.00 13,000.00
164     Improvements Other Than Buildings 1,375,093.00 730,109.72 1,973,404.45 4,078,607.17
166     Furnishings and Equipment 82,081.59 59,745.20 115,045.25 256,872.04
168     Construction/Development in Progress 2,268,663.51 81,212.78 2,349,876.29
169     Infrastructure 1,141,815.64 2,261,997.21 100,994.54 3,504,807.39

      Less:  Accumulated Depreciation (Credit) (709,495.07) (650,819.74) (1,033,730.47) (                           ) (2,394,045.28) (                           )
171     Intangible Assets--___________ 373,501.89 373,501.89
172       Less:  Accumulated Amortization-_______ (Credit) (                           ) (                           ) (205,678.36) (                           ) (205,678.36) (                           )
173     Intangible Lease Assets 5,412.75 5,412.75 5,412.76 16,238.26
174     Accumulated Amortization-Lease Assets (Credit) (1,119.84) (1,119.84) (1,119.96) (                           ) (3,359.64) (                           )

Total Noncurrent Assets 1,908,979.70 4,862,242.76 1,409,215.52 0.00 8,180,437.98 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS 2,199,253.06 5,299,709.13 2,562,733.75 0.00 10,061,695.94 0.00

MUNICIPALITY OF CROOKS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2022

Enterprise Funds



Water Sewer Natural Gas Internal
Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals Service Funds

MUNICIPALITY OF CROOKS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2022

Enterprise Funds

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
196   Pension Related Deferred Outflows 17,725.26 18,124.47 15,968.70 51,818.43
197   Deferred Charge on Refunding 0.00
198   Other Deferred Outflows of Resources 0.00

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 17,725.26 18,124.47 15,968.70 0.00 0.00 0.00

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:

201   Claims Payable 0.00
202   Accounts Payable 9,262.44 388,241.43 176,242.44 573,746.31
203   Judgments Payable 0.00
204   Annuities Payable 0.00
205   Notes Payable 0.00
206   Contracts Payable 1,119.84 1,119.84 1,119.96 3,359.64
207   Contracts Payable--Retained Percentage 0.00
208   Due to __________________ Fund 99.81 99.81
209   Due to __________________ Government 0.00
210   Due to Resigned Employees 0.00
211   Matured Bonds Payable 0.00
212   Matured Interest Payable 0.00
213   Incurred but Not Reported Claims 0.00
215   Accrued Interest Payable 16,056.15 16,056.15
216   Accrued Wages Payable 1,982.24 2,013.59 1,800.69 5,796.52
217   Accrued Taxes Payable 685.03 696.94 937.21 2,319.18
218   Amount Held for Special Assessment Debt Service 0.00
219   Amounts Held for Others 314.78 319.98 285.16 919.92
220   Customer Deposits 13,788.33 29,303.42 43,091.75
221   Due to Fiscal Agent 0.00
223   Unearned Revenue 11,176.31 11,176.31
225   Registered Warrants 0.00
226   Bonds Payable Current:

226.01     General Obligation 0.00
226.02     Revenue 26,207.65 51,951.89 78,159.54
226.03     Special Assessment 0.00

227   Unamortized Premiums on Bonds Sold 0.00
228   Payable from Restricted Assets 0.00
229   Due to Component Unit                             0.00
230   Compensated Absences Payable -- Current 0.00

Total Current Liabilities 53,360.31 460,499.63 220,865.19 0.00 734,725.13 0.00



Water Sewer Natural Gas Internal
Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals Service Funds

MUNICIPALITY OF CROOKS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2022

Enterprise Funds

Noncurrent Liabilities:
231   Bonds Payable:

231.01     General Obligation 0.00
231.02     Revenue 1,048,219.91 3,011,826.27 4,060,046.18
231.03     Special Assessment 0.00

232   Special Assessment Debt with Government Commitment 0.00
233   Accrued Leave Payable 6,091.48 6,002.08 5,165.87 17,259.43
234   Lease Liabilities 3,173.07 3,173.07 3,172.84 9,518.98
235   Accrued Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs 0.00
236   Advance from ________________ Fund 0.00
238   Net OPEB Obligation 0.00
237   Other Long-Term Liabilities 0.00

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1,057,484.46 3,021,001.42 8,338.71 0.00 4,086,824.59 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,110,844.77 3,481,501.05 229,203.90 0.00 4,821,549.72 0.00

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
247   Other Deferred Inflows of Resources 0.00
248   Pension Related Deferred Inflows 11,530.49 11,790.19 10,387.83 33,708.51

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 11,530.49 11,790.19 10,387.83 0.00 33,708.51 0.00

NET POSITION:
253.10   Net Investment in Capital Assets 830,067.60 1,409,817.53 1,404,750.08 3,644,635.21
253.20   Restricted For:
253.21     Revenue Bond Debt Service           1,321.00 88,605.20 89,926.20
253.22     Revenue Bond Retirement 0.00
253.23     Revenue Bond Contingency 0.00
253.24     Special Assessment Bond Guarantee 0.00
253.25     Special Assessment Bond Sinking 0.00
253.26     Equipment Repair and/or Replacement 0.00
253.27     Landfill Closure and Post Closure Costs 0.00
253.28     Permanently Restricted Purposes 0.00
253.29     SDRS Pension Purposes 3,903.17 3,869.26 4,584.90 12,357.33
253.29     Other Purposes 30,546.52 44,392.17 74,938.69
253.90   Unrestricted 228,764.77 277,858.20 929,775.74 1,436,398.71

  
TOTAL NET POSITION 1,094,603.06 1,824,542.36 2,339,110.72 0.00 5,258,256.14 0.00

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Water Sewer Natural Gas Internal
Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals Service Funds

Operating Revenue:
371   Surcharge as Security for Debt 67,256.00 67,256.00

372-389   Charges for Goods and Services 353,105.37 308,183.45 1,228,607.89 1,889,896.71
380.05   Lottery Sales 0.00

367   Contributions and Donations 0.00
369   Miscellaneous 771.85 56,645.19 33,635.44 91,052.48

Total Operating Revenue 353,877.22 432,084.64 1,262,243.33 0.00 2,048,205.19 0.00

Operating Expenses:
410   Personal Services 73,839.03 74,869.59 67,473.92 216,182.54
420   Other Current Expense 217,319.25 66,980.37 344,378.57 628,678.19

426.2   Materials (Cost of Goods Sold) 96,098.40 491,468.33 587,566.73
453   Amortization 1,119.84 1,119.84 57,159.14 59,398.82
457   Depreciation 50,276.77 118,028.01 57,804.75 226,109.53

Total Operating Expenses 438,653.29 260,997.81 1,018,284.71 0.00 1,717,935.81 0.00

Operating Income (Loss) (84,776.07) 171,086.83 243,958.62 0.00 330,269.38 0.00

Nonoperating Revenue (Expense):
330   Operating Grants 848,391.78 848,391.78
361   Investment Earnings 296.52 296.49 593.01
362   Rental Revenue 2,595.04 2,595.04
442   Interest Expense (27,098.14) (69,319.88) (18.40) (96,436.42)

(492) 366   Gain (Loss) on Disposition of Assets 0.00
(429) 369.01   Other (2,994.04) (2,994.04)

Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) (24,206.58) 779,368.39 (3,012.44) 0.00 752,149.37 0.00

Income (Loss) Before Contributions, Special
  Items, Extraordinary Items and Transfers (108,982.65) 950,455.22 240,946.18 0.00 1,082,418.75 0.00

Enterprise Funds

MUNICIPALITY OF CROOKS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022



Water Sewer Natural Gas Internal
Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals Service Funds

Enterprise Funds

MUNICIPALITY OF CROOKS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

391.07   Capital Contributions 0.00
391.10   Transfers In 0.00

511   Transfers Out 0.00

391.06 (514)   Special Items 0.00
391.05 (515)   Extraordinary Items 0.00

Change in Net Position (108,982.65) 950,455.22 240,946.18 0.00 1,082,418.75 0.00

Change in Accounting Estimate (See Note ___) 0.00

Net Position - Beginning 1,203,585.71 874,087.14 2,098,164.54 4,175,837.39
Adjustments:
  ________________________________ 0.00
  ________________________________ 0.00

Adjusted Net Position - Beginning 1,203,585.71 874,087.14 2,098,164.54 0.00 4,175,837.39 0.00

NET POSITION - ENDING 1,094,603.06 1,824,542.36 2,339,110.72 0.00 5,258,256.14 0.00

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Long-Term Add Less Long-Term
Debt New Debt Debt

Indebtedness January 1, 2022 Debt Retired December 31, 2022

Governmental Long-Term Debt:
  231.01 General Obligation Bonds 
  231.02 Revenue Bonds
  231.03 Special Assessment Bonds
  234      Lease Liabilities 0.00 265,445.01 42,718.19 222,726.82
  236      Advance from Other Funds
  237      Other Long-Term Liabilities 112,540.75 3,613.97 20,883.05 95,271.67
  238      Net OPEB Obligation

Enterprise Long-Term Debt: (only cash basis entities need to complete the enterprise section)
  231.01 General Obligation Bonds
  231.02 Revenue Bonds 3,409,324.14 804,464.00 75,582.42 4,138,205.72
  231.03 Special Assessment Bonds
  234      Lease Liabilities 16,238.26 3,359.64 12,878.62
  235      Accrued Landfill Closure and
               Postclosure Care Costs
  236      Advance from Other Funds
  237      Other Long-Term Liabilities 16,385.15 17,259.43 16,385.15 17,259.43
  238      Net OPEB Obligation

Total 3,554,488.30 1,090,782.41 158,928.45 4,486,342.26

(Do not include interest in the above figures)

Note 1 - Long-Term Debt:

Debt payable at December 31, 2022 is comprised of the following:

General Obligation Bonds:

-$                       

Revenue Bonds:

933,921.00$          

1,074,427.56$       

2,129,857.16$       

Notes Payable:

91,657.70$            

Lease Liabilities:

12,878.62$            

222,726.82$          

Other Debt:
Compensated absences:
Accrued annual leave and benefits, payment to be made by the fund that the payroll expenditures are charged to.

Governmental Activities 3,613.97$              
Business-Type Activities:
Water Fund 6,091.48$              
Sewer Fund 6,002.08$              
Gas Fund 5,165.87$              

[SHOW MATURITY DATES AND INTEREST RATES AND INDICATE THE FUND MAKING THE PAYMENTS TO
RETIRE THE DEBT.  IF VARIABLE-RATE DEBT EXISTS THE DEBT DESCRIPTIONS MUST DESCRIBE THE 
TERMS BY WHICH INTEREST RATES ARE ADJUSTED.]

Series 2019 State Revolving Fund - Clean Water #3
Interest rate of 2.5%
Final Maturity of May 2051, payable from Sewer Fund

Contract for Deed land purchase from John J. Bonander
Interest rate of 5.95% (assumed based on common rate to discount) / Annual payment of $62,930 ($314,650)
Final Maturity January 15, 2027, payable by the General Fund

USDA Community Facilities Loan
Interest rate of 3.25%
Final Maturity December 2027, payable by the General Fund

Copier Lease with A&B Business
Final Maturity November 4, 2026, payable by the Water Fund, Sewer Fund, and Natural Gas Fund

MUNICIPALITY OF CROOKS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Series 2019 State Revolving Fund - Drinking Water #2
Interest rate of 2.5%
Final Maturity of May 2051, payable from Water Fund

Series 2021 State Revolving Fund - Clean Water #4
Interest rate of 2.125%
Final Maturity of May 2053, payable from Sewer Fund



Council 525.00$                  
Mayor 420.00$                  
Planning and Zoning Commission 308.86$                  
Finance Office 2,520.31$               
Government Buildings 1,329.66$               
Building Inspector 938.59$                  
Highway & Streets 2,024.81$               
Highway & Streets ‐ Snow Removal 1,908.53$               
Solid Waste Collection 244.74$                  
Code Enforcement 98.68$                    
Animal Control 1,019.82$               
West Nile 80.18$                    
Parks 2,305.41$               
Water 5,243.98$               
Sewer 5,334.16$               
Gas 5,286.61$               

Total wage claims 29,589.34$            

Vendor Date incur. Description Amount
A&B Business Solutions 4/4/2023 copier lease 290.99$                        
Aflac 3/26/2023 Aflac payable 138.34$                        
Alliance Communications 4/1/2023 utilities office & sewer 372.33$                        
Builder's Electric 3/23/2023 repair lights & LED lights  1,897.01$                     
CC Storage 4/1/2023 storage unit rental fee 69.00$                           
Clayton Energy  3/13/2023 commodity purchase 88,943.60$                   
Clayton Energy  4/3/2023 reservation fee & monthly service fee 40,462.56$                   
Crooks Country Corner 3/7/2023 diesel exhaust fluid 19.95$                           
Crooks Municipal Utilities 4/6/2023 City shop utilities 376.30$                        
Crooks Municipal Utilities 4/6/2023 Palmira Park bathroom utilities 152.23$                        
Crooks Municipal Utilities 4/6/2023 Crooks Comm. Center utilities 754.80$                        
Crooks Municipal Utilities 4/6/2023 w lift station utilities 23.35$                           
Crooks Municipal Utilities 4/6/2023 n lift station utilities 23.35$                           
Crooks Municipal Utilities 4/6/2023 main lift station utilities 32.77$                           
Crooks Municipal Utilities 4/6/2023 New Hope bathroom utilities 87.70$                           
Crooks Municipal Utilities 4/6/2023 Sunset irrigation system 33.00$                           
Dell Rapids Community Ambulance 3/21/2023 2023 ambulance services 10,000.00$                   
Department of Treasury / EFTPS 4/4/2023 payroll tax deposit 5,491.41$                     
Department of Treasury / EFTPS 3/16/2023 payroll tax deposit 2,021.98$                     
DGR Engineering 3/20/2023 east side lift station con. admin. 3,344.00$                     
Display Sales 3/13/2023 LED lights 105.00$                        
DocuSign, Inc. 3/31/2023 service fee 1,725.00$                     
Dudley Laundry d/b/a Appeara 3/29/2023 mat, mop, towel, rag service 99.20$                           
Ecolab 3/14/2023 pest control services 97.29$                           
F. Butch Oseby 3/30/2023 per diem & mileage conference 399.05$                        
First Interstate Bank 3/31/2023 service charge 7.75$                              
First Interstate Bank 4/7/2023 purchase card payment 1,851.69$                     
Gas Training Specialties 4/3/2023 OQ training & mileage 746.47$                        
Glass Doctor ‐ Sioux Falls 3/14/2023 repair windshield plow truck 286.50$                        
Goebel Printing 4/3/2023 coroplast signs 854.00$                        
Health Pool of SD 4/1/2023 health + life insurance payable 3,883.85$                     

City of Crooks claims listing

City of Crooks
April 2023 claims

Gross wages by department for month of March 2023

Page 1



Lacey Rentals 4/4/2023 portable restroom rental 145.00$                        
Meierhenry Sargent LLP 3/8/2023 02‐2023 legal fees 180.00$                        
Menards 3/29/2023 shop supplies & shelving 150.71$                        
Mid States Audio 3/16/2023 video streaming equipment 1,542.98$                     
Minnehaha Community Water Corp. 4/4/2023 03‐2023 water purchase 6,242.40$                     
Minnehaha County Treasurer 3/27/2023 duplicate title fee 10.00$                           
Minnehaha County Treasurer 3/30/2023 title new truck & mailing fee 27.50$                           
New Century Press 3/17/2023 03/13/23 mtg minutes 159.51$                        
New Century Press 3/17/2023 Ord 322 publication 19.60$                           
New Century Press 3/10/2023 hearing notice zoning regulations 14.00$                           
New Century Press 3/17/2023 Ord 323 publication 45.36$                           
New Century Press 3/17/2023 Ord 321 publication 15.68$                           
New Century Press 3/3/2023 state wrestling ad 20.00$                           
Nyberg's Ace Hardware 3/23/2023 supplies 54.94$                           
Payment Service Network 4/3/2023 gateway fee 89.95$                           
Pfeifer Implement 3/15/2023 Kubota tractor & loader 55,597.41$                   
Q3 Contracting 3/22/2023 barricades district regulator station 5,966.07$                     
Raztech LLC 4/1/2023 04‐2023 managed IT services 763.75$                        
Revize LLC 4/5/2023 2023 hosting fee 1,975.00$                     
SD Assoc. of Rural Water Systems 3/27/2023 supplemental life insurance ‐ child 1.85$                              
SD Assoc. of Rural Water Systems 3/27/2023 supplemental life insurance 59.00$                           
SD Assoc. of Rural Water Systems 3/27/2023 supplemental life insurance ‐ spouse 50.40$                           
SD Assoc. of Rural Water Systems 3/27/2023 dental insurance 226.14$                        
SD Department of Transportation 3/20/2023 Progressing billing West Ave Tr. 839.69$                        
SD Department of Revenue 3/20/2023 02‐2023 sales tax payable 12,117.60$                   
SD Gov't Finance Officers' Assoc. 4/3/2023 conference fee 150.00$                        
SD Gov't Human Resource Assoc. 4/3/2023 conference fee 100.00$                        
SD Public Assurance Alliance 3/15/2023 additional insurable contents 675.10$                        
SD Retirement System 3/20/2023 monthly retirement contribution 3,101.82$                     
SDML Workers' Compensation Fund 3/16/2023 2022 payroll audit 1,000.00$                     
SDRS Supplemental Retirement Plan 3/20/2023 ROTH contribution 300.00$                        
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 3/17/2023 fuel skid steer 41.36$                           
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 3/21/2023 fuel pay loader 167.17$                        
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 3/21/2023 fuel skid steer 34.77$                           
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 3/30/2023 fuel white truck 80.74$                           
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 2/3/2023 fuel skid steer 56.52$                           
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 3/21/2023 fuel Kubota tractor 17.64$                           
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 3/12/2023 fuel loader 122.24$                        
Sioux Falls Area Humane Society 3/7/2023 animal control services 60.07$                           
Sioux Valley Energy 3/14/2023 sewer utilities 229.93$                        
Sioux Valley Energy 3/14/2023 469th lift station utilities 305.20$                        
Sioux Valley Energy 3/14/2023 street light utilities 254.00$                        
South Dakota 811 3/31/2023 03‐2023 message fees 7.35$                              
Utility Safety and Design, Inc. 3/27/2023 valves 425.00$                        
US Postal Service 3/29/2023 mailing fee water projects letter 268.81$                        
US Postal Service 4/6/2023 mailing fee utility billing postcards 325.84$                        
Verizon Wireless 3/23/2023 new jet pack & utilities 191.27$                        
Verizon Wireless 3/10/2023 utilities at metering stations  624.67$                        
Xcel Energy 4/3/2023 utilities 4,971.72$                     

Total claims 264,416.23$                

The City of Crooks is an equal opportunity provider
2



Vendor Date incur. Description Amount
Amazon 3/28/2023 replacement battery APC 196.00$                        
Amazon 3/20/2023 supplies 77.15$                           
Dudley Laundry d/b/a Appeara 3/15/2023 mat, mop, towel, rag service 95.67$                           
Mail Technologies/DocuSend 4/6/2023 ebills Crooks 6.44$                              
Mail Technologies/DocuSend 4/6/2023 ebills outside of Crooks 5.06$                              
Matheson Tri‐Gas 1/31/2023 gas charts 35.06$                           
Matheson Tri‐Gas 3/31/2023 gas charts 35.06$                           
Microsoft 3/20/2023 basic subscription 54.00$                           
Microsoft 3/20/2023 monthly subscription 365 100.00$                        
Nyberg's Ace Hardware 3/15/2023 supplies Crooks Community Cen. 37.54$                           
Nyberg's Ace Hardware 3/22/2023 shop supplies 47.94$                           
ODP Business Solutions 3/29/2023 printer paper 59.34$                           
Pfeifer Implement 3/14/2023 cutting edge skid steer 351.97$                        
Pfeifer Implement 3/10/2023 refund overcharges (170.10)$                       
Pfeifer Implement 3/20/2023 cutting edge + supplies 304.52$                        
Ramkota ‐ Pierre 3/28/2023 GOED conference room 82.00$                           
Scooby's Car Wash 3/22/2023 vehicle maintenance 25.00$                           
Scooby's Car Wash 3/30/2023 vehicle maintenance 15.75$                           
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 3/20/2023 fuel black truck 21.10$                           
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 3/13/2023 fuel City truck 47.51$                           
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 3/15/2023 fuel black truck 40.21$                           
Shell/Pump'N'Stuff 3/30/2023 fuel black truck 46.72$                           
US Postal Service 3/10/2023 postage delinquent letters 337.75$                        

Total purchase  card claims 1,851.69$                     

Purchase card payments & returns

The City of Crooks is an equal opportunity provider
3



The City of Crooks is an equal opportunity provider 
 

City of Crooks 
City Council 

Notice of Hearing 
 
 

Notice is hereby given that the Crooks City Council will hold a hearing at 6:00pm/CST 
on the 10th day of April, 2023 at the Crooks Community Center (701 S West Ave, 
Crooks, SD, 57020) regarding the adoption of revised zoning regulations for the City of 
Crooks. 
 
Notice is further given that at the time and place of aforesaid any person may appear and 
be heard upon all matters pertaining to the hearing. Interested parties may appear 
personally or through their designated agent(s), attorney(s), or representative(s). Anyone 
unable to attend may submit written comments prior to the hearing in-person at the 
municipal office (701 S West Ave, Crooks, SD) or via email at fo@crookssd.org. 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special 
assistance to participate in this hearing, please contact the Crooks Finance Officer at 
(605) 543-5238. Anyone who is deaf, hard-of-hearing or speech-disabled may utilize 
Relay South Dakota at (800) 877-1113 (TTY/Voice). Notification 48 hours prior to the 
hearing will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to 
this hearing. 
 
Tobias Schantz 
City Administrator/Finance Officer 
 
Published:  
Published once at the approximate cost of: $ 
 
 
 
 
 
Published: __________________________ 
Published once at the approximate cost of __________________________ 



2023 Revised Crooks Zoning 
Regulations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by the South Eastern Council of Governments at the direction of the 
Planning Commission and City Council of the City of Crooks, South Dakota.   

  



1 
 

CHAPTER 1 – GENERAL PROVISIONS 5 

1.01 TITLE AND APPLICATION 5 
1.02 JURISDICTION 5 
1.03 PURPOSE 5 
1.04 PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE DECLARED TO BE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS 5 
1.05 PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION 5 
1.06 SEPARABILITY CLAUSE 6 
1.07 REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES 6 
1.08 EFFECTIVE DATE 6 

CHAPTER 2 – DISTRICTS AND BOUNDARIES 7 

2.01 DISTRICTS DESIGNATED 7 
2.02 ADOPTION OF OFFICIAL ZONING MAP 7 
2.03 CHANGES TO OFFICIAL ZONING MAP 7 
2.04 INTERPRETATION OF DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 7 
2.05 ANNEXATIONS 8 

CHAPTER 3 – NRC: NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT 9 

3.01 PERMITTED USES 9 
3.02 CONDITIONAL USES 10 
3.03 LOT AND YARD REGULATIONS 11 

CHAPTER 4 – R-1: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 12 

4.01 PERMITTED USES 12 
4.02 CONDITIONAL USES 13 
4.03 LOT AND YARD REGULATIONS 14 

CHAPTER 5 – R-2: MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 16 

5.01 PERMITTED USES 16 
5.02 CONDITIONAL USES 17 
5.03 LOT AND YARD REGULATIONS 18 

CHAPTER 6 – R-3: MANUFACTURED HOUSING RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 20 

6.01 PERMITTED USES 20 



2 
 

6.02 CONDITIONAL USES 20 
6.03 LOT AND YARD REGULATIONS 21 

CHAPTER 7 – CB: CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 23 

7.01 PERMITTED USES 23 
7.02 CONDITIONAL USES 24 
7.03 LOT AND YARD REGULATIONS 25 

CHAPTER 8 – GB: GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 27 

8.01 PERMITTED USES 27 
8.02 CONDITIONAL USES 29 
8.03 LOT AND YARD REGULATIONS 31 

CHAPTER 9 – LI: LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT 33 

9.01 PERMITTED USES 33 
9.02 CONDITIONAL USES 35 
9.03 LOT AND YARD REGULATIONS 36 

CHAPTER 10 – HI: HEAVY INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT 39 

10.01 PERMITTED USES 39 
10.02 CONDITIONAL USES 40 
10.03 LOT AND YARD REGULATIONS 43 

CHAPTER 11 – PUD: PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 45 

11.01 INTENT COMPLIANCE WITH COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 45 
11.02 PROCEDURE 45 
11.03 INITIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 47 
11.04 FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 48 
11.05 AMENDMENTS 50 

CHAPTER 12 – ADDITIONAL USE REGULATIONS 53 

12.01 RESERVED 53 
12.02 VISIBILITY AT INTERSECTIONS AND DRIVEWAYS 53 
12.03 ACCESSORY BUILDINGS, GARAGES, RECREATIONAL FACILITIES, AND MISCELLANEOUS STRUCTURES 54 



3 
 

12.04 OFF-STREET PARKING 61 
12.05 OFF-STREET LOADING REQUIREMENTS 64 
12.06 SIGNS 65 
12.07 FENCES 76 
12.08 TELECOMMUNICATIONS TOWER, ANTENNA SUPPORT STRUCTURES, AND WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS 

FACILITIES 78 
12.09 SITE-BUILT SINGLE-FAMILY AND MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING STANDARDS 79 
12.10 LANDSCAPING STANDARDS 80 
12.11 HOME OCCUPATIONS 81 
12.12 MANUFACTURED HOME REQUIREMENTS 82 
12.13 BED AND BREAKFAST ESTABLISHMENTS 83 
12.14 ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS 84 
12.15 CANNABIS ESTABLISHMENTS 85 
12.16 MINI-WAREHOUSES AND CONSUMER STORAGE UNITS 89 

CHAPTER 13 – ADJUSTMENTS TO YARD REGULATIONS 91 

13.01 ADJUSTMENTS TO FRONT YARD REQUIREMENTS 91 
13.02 ADJUSTMENTS TO SIDE YARD REQUIREMENTS 91 
13.03 PROJECTION FROM BUILDINGS 91 

CHAPTER 14 – NON-CONFORMING USES 93 

14.01 USES AND STRUCTURES 93 
14.02 CONTINUATION OF NON-STANDARD USES 93 

CHAPTER 15 – ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT 95 

15.01 POWERS AND DUTIES 95 
15.02 RIGHT OF ENTRY 95 
15.03 STOP ORDER 95 

CHAPTER 16 – BUILDING PERMITS AND FEES 97 

16.01 BUILDING PERMITS 97 
16.02 FEES 97 
16.03 EXPIRATION OF A BUILDING PERMIT 97 

CHAPTER 17 – BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 99 



4 
 

17.01 ESTABLISHMENT 99 
17.02 POWERS AND DUTIES 99 
17.03 APPEAL PROCEDURE 99 
17.04 VARIANCES 100 
17.05 COURT REVIEW 102 

CHAPTER 18 – AMENDMENTS AND CHANGE OF ZONE 103 

18.01 PROCEDURE 103 

CHAPTER 19 – CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS 105 

19.01 CONDITIONAL USES 105 
19.02 COURT REVIEW 109 

CHAPTER 20 – DEFINITIONS 110 

20.01 PURPOSE 110 
20.02 DEFINITIONS 110 
 

 

 

  



5 
 

Chapter 1 – General Provisions 

1.01 Title and Application 
 
These regulations shall be referenced to as Zoning Ordinances of the City of Crooks. 
 

1.02 Jurisdiction 

The provisions of this ordinance shall apply to all territory within the boundaries of the City of 
Crooks, South Dakota, as established on the Official Zoning Map of the City of Crooks. 

1.03 Purpose 

These regulations have been based on the Crooks Comprehensive Plan adopted and in 
conformance with Chapter 11-4 and 11-6 of the South Dakota Codified Laws.  These regulations 
are designed to carry out the goals, objectives, and policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 

The Zoning Ordinances are intended to: 

• Lessen congestion in the streets; 
• Secure safety from fire, panic, and other dangers; 
• Promote health and the general welfare; 
• Provide adequate light and air; 
• Prevent overcrowding of land; 
• Avoid undue concentrations of populations; and 
• Facilitate the adequate provision of transportation, water, sewers, school, parks, and 

other public necessities. 
 

1.04 Provisions of Ordinance Declared to be Minimum Requirements 

In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this Ordinance shall be held to be 
minimum requirements, adopted for the promotion of the public health, safety, and general 
welfare. Wherever the requirements of this Ordinance are at variance with requirements of any 
other lawfully adopted rules, regulations, ordinances, or deed restrictions, the most restrictive 
or that which imposes the higher standards, shall govern. 

1.05 Penalties for Violation 



6 
 

Violation of the provisions of this ordinance or failure to comply with any of its requirements, 
including violations of conditions established in granting of Variances, shall constitute a 
misdemeanor.  Any person who violates this ordinance or fails to comply with any of its 
requirements shall upon conviction be subject to the penalties established by South Dakota 
law.  Each day such violation continues shall be considered a separate offense. 

1.06 Separability Clause 

Should any section or provision of this ordinance be declared by the courts to be 
unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a 
whole, or any part other than the part so declared to be unconstitutional or invalid. 

1.07 Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances 

All prior ordinances or parts of prior ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 
declared repealed. 

1.08 Effective Date 

These regulations shall be in full force and effect from and after their passage, approval, 
publication, and effective date of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Crooks, as provided for by 
South Dakota law. 

 

 

  



7 
 

Chapter 2 – Districts and Boundaries 

2.01 Districts Designated 

The City is hereby divided into the following districts: 

NRC Flood Plain/Conservation 
R-1 Residential – Single Family 
R-2 Residential – Multi-Family 
R-3 Residential – Manufactured Housing 
CB Central Business 
GB General Business 
LI Light Industrial 
HI Heavy Industrial 

2.02 Adoption of Official Zoning Map 

The Official Zoning Map for the City of Crooks, on record with the Finance Officer, is hereby 
adopted by reference and declared to be a part of this ordinance. 

2.03 Changes to Official Zoning Map 

Changes to or replacements of the Official Zoning Map shall require amendment of these 
regulations by ordinance, as provided in Chapter 18.01 of these regulations. 

2.04 Interpretation of District Boundaries 

Where uncertainty exists as to the boundaries of the districts as shown on the Official Zoning 
Map, the following rules shall apply: 

A. Boundaries indicated as approximately following platted lot lines or city limits shall be 
interpreted to follow such platted lot lines or city limits; 
 

B. Boundaries indicated as approximately following railroad lines shall be interpreted to be 
midway between the main tracks; 

 



8 
 

C. Boundaries indicated as approximately following the center lines of streets or other 
rights-of-way, or streams or other bodies of water, shall be interpreted to follow such 
center lines; 
 

D. Distances not specifically indicated on the Official Zoning Map shall be determined by 
the scale of the map.  Where physical or cultural features existing on the ground are a 
variance with those shown on the Official Zoning Map, the Board of Adjustment, as 
established in Chapter 16, shall interpret the district boundaries; 
 

E. Where a district boundary line divides a lot which was in single ownership at the time of 
passage of this ordinance, the Board of Adjustment may permit, as a Conditional Use 
Permit, the extension of the regulations for either portion of the lot into the remaining 
portion of the lot. 
 

2.05 Annexations 

In all territories which may hereafter be annexed to the City of Crooks, the zoning districts as 
they exist in Minnehaha County shall be continued until otherwise changed by ordinance. 

 

 

 

 

  



9 
 

Chapter 3 – NRC: Natural Resource 
Conservation District 

3.01 Permitted Uses 

The purpose of this district is to preserve lands best suited for natural drainage areas, public 
open space, and agricultural uses from encroachment by incompatible uses.  The area will also 
provide protection from floods and erosion, to protect views, to preserve natural settings for 
wildlife habitats, to add to the aesthetic quality of the community, and to lessen the urban 
density. 

Permitted Use Applicable Standards 

Agriculture 12.02 

Farm Dwelling, Single-Family 12.02, 12.04, 12.09, 12.10 and not within identified 
floodplain area 

Golf Course 12.02, 12.04, 12.06; 
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06 

Public Park Areas 12.02, 12.06 

Electrical Substation 
12.02, 12.10; 
An opaque screen, six feet in height located at all setback 
lines 

Public Utility Facility 12.02, 12.04, 12.06, 12.10 
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06 



10 
 

Cemeteries 

12.02 and not within an identified flood plain area; 
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06; 
At least 2 acres in size and adequate road system within 
cemetery 

Fences 12.07 

Bed and Breakfast 12.13 and all applicable farm dwelling standards; 
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06 

Accessory Use and Structure 
(i.e. garage, shed, etc) 

12.02, 12.03; 
(see definition) 

 

3.02 Conditional Uses 

Conditional Use Applicable Standards 

One additional single-family 
dwelling or manufactured 
home 

19.01 
Said dwelling shall be located within the farmstead 
perimeter; 
All farm dwelling, single-family requirements apply; 
Not within an identified floodplain area 

Wireless Communication 
Facility on existing support 
structure 

12.08, 19.01, and not within an identified floodplain area 

Municipally Owned Waste 
Water Treatment Facility 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01 

Home Occupation 12.11, 19.01, and all applicable dwelling standards 



11 
 

Accessory Structure (i.e. 
garage, shed, etc.) which does 
not meet the requirements as 
allowed within Chapter 12.03 

19.01 

 

3.03 Lot and Yard Regulations 

All measurements shall be taken from the lot line to the building line (see definitions).  A 
parking lot is not included as a portion of a side yard or rear yard (see 12.04). 

 

 Lot Area Lot Width Front Yard Side Yard Rear Yard Maximum 
Height 

All Uses 5 Acres 150 feet 75 feet 30 feet 50 feet 35 feet 

 

Exceptions: 

#1 See Adjustments to Yard Regulations (Chapter 12) for specific exceptions. 

 

 

  



12 
 

Chapter 4 – R-1: Single Family Residential 
District 
The purpose of this district is to provide for certain low density residential areas the City has 
now developed primarily with one family detached dwellings and where similar development is 
likely to occur. 

4.01 Permitted Uses 

Permitted Use Applicable Standards 

Single-Family Detached 
Dwellings 12.02, 12.04, 12.06, 12.09, 12.10 

Churches 

12.02, 12.04, 12.10; 
All parking lots being 8 feet from all residential properties; 
One of the principle frontages shall abut upon an arterial or 
collector street; 
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06 

Libraries 
12.02, 12.04, 12.10; 
All parking lots being 8 feet from all residential properties; 
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06 

Schools 

12.02, 12.04, 12.07, 12.10; 
All parking lots being 8 feet from all residential properties; 
One of the principle frontages shall abut upon an arterial or 
collector street; 
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06 

Electrical Substation 
12.02, 12.10; 
An opaque screen, six feet in height located at all setback 
lines 

Neighborhood Utilities 12.02 



13 
 

Fences 12.07 

Accessory Use and Structure 
(i.e. garage, shed, etc) 

12.02, 12.03; 
(see definition) 

 

4.02 Conditional Uses 

Conditional Use Applicable Standards 

Single-Family Attached 
Dwelling (up to 2) 12.02, 12.04, 12.06, 12.09, 12.10, 19.01 

Group Day Care 

19.01; 
A safe pickup and drop off area must be provided for 
children; 
All applicable dwelling standards apply 

Bed and Breakfast 
12.13, 19.01, and all single-family detached dwelling 
standards apply 
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06 

Group Home (see definition) 

19.01; 
Structure must be a single housekeeping unit; 
Applicant must provide copy of state agency license; 
All single-family detached dwelling standards apply 

Private Garage (as a principal 
use) 19.01 

Accessory Structure (i.e. 
garage, shed, etc.) which does 
not meet the requirements as 
allowed within Chapter 12.03 

19.01 

 



14 
 

4.03 Lot and Yard Regulations 

All measurements shall be taken from the lot line to the building line (see definitions).  A 
parking lot is not included as a portion of a side yard or rear yard (see 12.04).  Lot coverage shall 
not exceed 50% in R-1 Districts. 

 

 Lot Area Lot Width Front 
Yard Side Yard Rear Yard Maximu

m Height 

Single Family 
Detached 

9,600 sq. 
ft. 

80 feet  
See #1 

25 feet 
See #4 7 feet 30 feet 35 feet 

Single Family 
Attached (2) 2 

Lots 

4,800 sq. 
ft. 40 feet 25 feet 

See #4 

0’ or 7’ on 
nonparty 
wall side 

30 feet 35 feet 

Single Family 
Attached (2) 1 Lot 

9,600 sq. 
ft. 80 feet 25 feet 

See #4 7 feet 30 feet 35 feet 

All Other Uses 9,600 sq. 
ft. 80 feet 25 feet 

See #4 7 feet 30 feet 35 feet 

 

Exceptions: 

#1 A residence may be constructed on a lot-of-record which has a lot width of less than 80 
feet. 
 

#2 For a lot located on a cul-de-sac bulb, the required lot width will be measured at the 
required front yard setback line; however, the minimum lot width at the right-of-way 
line shall not be less than 50 feet. 
 

#3 There shall be a required front yard on each street side of a double-frontage lot.  There 
shall be a required front yard on each street side of a corner lot. 
 

#4 One required front yard may be reduced to 20 feet on corner lots. 



15 
 

 
#5 See also Adjustments to Yard Regulations (Chapter 13) for other specific exceptions. 

 

 

  



16 
 

Chapter 5 – R-2: Multi-Family Residential 
District 
The purpose of this district is to provide for certain high density residential areas the City has 
now developed primarily with single-family, two-family, and multiple family dwellings and 
where similar development is likely to occur. 

5.01 Permitted Uses 

Permitted Use Applicable Standards 

Multiple Dwellings 12.02, 12.04, 12.09, 12.10; 
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06 

Single-Family Detached 
Dwellings 12.02, 12.04, 12.06, 12.09, 12.10 

Single-Family Attached 
Dwellings 

12.02, 12.04, 12.06, 12.09, 12.10; 
This includes town homes and duplexes 

Churches 

12.02, 12.04, 12.10; 
All parking lots being 8 feet from all residential properties; 
One of the principle frontages shall abut upon an arterial or 
collector street; 
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06 

Libraries 
12.02, 12.04, 12.10; 
All parking lots being 8 feet from all residential properties; 
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06 

Schools 

12.02, 12.04, 12.07, 12.10; 
All parking lots being 8 feet from all residential properties; 
One of the principle frontages shall abut upon an arterial or 
collector street; 
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06 



17 
 

Electrical Substation 
12.02, 12.10; 
An opaque screen, six feet in height located at all setback 
lines 

Neighborhood Utilities 12.02 

Fences 12.07 

Accessory Use and Structure 
(i.e. garage, shed, etc) 

12.02, 12.03; 
(see definition) 

 

5.02 Conditional Uses 

Conditional Use Applicable Standards 

Group Day Care 

19.01; 
A safe pickup and drop off area must be provided for 
children; 
All applicable dwelling standards apply 

Home Occupation 12.11, 19.01, and all applicable dwelling standards 

Assisted Living Facility 

12.04, 12.10, 19.01; 
Applicant must provide copy of Department of Health 
license; 
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06 

Bed and Breakfast 
12.13, 19.01, and all single-family detached dwelling 
standards apply 
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06 



18 
 

Nursing Home 

12.02, 12.04, 12.10, 19.01; 
Applicant must provide copy of Department of Health 
license; 
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06 

Group Home (see definition) 

19.01; 
Structure must be a single housekeeping unit; 
Applicant must provide copy of state agency license; 
All single-family detached dwelling standards apply 

Convent/Monastery 12.02, 12.04, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06 

Accessory Structure (i.e. 
garage, shed, etc.) which does 
not meet the requirements as 
allowed within Chapter 12.03 

19.01 

 

5.03 Lot and Yard Regulations 

 Lot Area Lot Width Front 
Yard Side Yard Rear Yard Maximum 

Height 

3 to 8 Multiple 
Dwelling Units 

7,500 sq. 
ft 50 feet 25 feet 

See #4 
7 feet 
See #1 10 feet 35 feet 

9 to 12 Multiple 
Dwelling Units 

20,000 sq. 
ft. 75 feet 25 feet 

See #4 15 feet 10 feet 35 feet 

Over 12 Multiple 
Dwelling Units 

30,000 sq. 
ft. 100 feet 25 feet 

See #4 15 feet 10 feet 35 feet 



19 
 

Single-Family 
Detached 

7,500 sq. 
ft. 

75 feet 
See #2 

25 feet 
See #4 7 feet 25 feet 35 feet 

Single-Family 
Attached 

6,500 sq. 
ft. 30 feet 25 feet 

See #4 

0’ or 10’ 
on 

nonparty 
wall side 

25 feet 35 feet 

All Other Uses 7,500 sq. 
ft. 75 feet 25 feet 

See #4 15 feet 25 feet 35 feet 

 

Exceptions: 

#1 The side yard will be required to be increased to 10 feet when the building is three 
stories in height or more. 
 

#2 A residence may be constructed on a lot-of-record which has a lot width of less than 75 
feet. 
 

#3 There shall be a required front yard on each street side of a double frontage lot.  There 
shall be a required front yard on each street side of a corner lot. 
 

#4 One required front yard may be reduced to 20 feet on corner lots. 
 

#5 See also Adjustment to Yard Regulations (Chapter 13) for other specific exceptions. 
 

 

  



20 
 

Chapter 6 – R-3: Manufactured Housing 
Residential District 
The purpose of this district is to provide for high density residential areas in the City that may 
be developed for all types of manufactured housing and support facilities. 

6.01 Permitted Uses 

Permitted Use Applicable Standards 

Manufactured Homes in 
Licensed Manufactured Home 
Parks 

12.02, 12.03, 12.04, 12.06, 12.10, 12.12; 
Municipal code regulations regarding manufactured home 
parks 

Manufactured Homes 
12.02, 12.03, 12.04, 12.06, 12.10, 12.12; 
Municipal code regulations regarding manufactured home 
parks 

Electrical Substation 
12.02, 12.10; 
An opaque screen, six feet in height located at all setback 
lines 

Neighborhood Utilities 12.02 

Accessory Use and Structure 
(i.e. garage, shed, etc) 

12.02, 12.03; 
(see definition) 

 

6.02 Conditional Uses 

Conditional Use Applicable Standards 



21 
 

Churches 

12.02, 12.04, 12.10, 19.01 
All parking lots being 8 feet from all residential properties; 
One of the principle frontages shall abut upon an arterial or 
collector street; 
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06 

Schools 

12.02, 12.04, 12.07, 12.10, 19.01; 
All parking lots being 8 feet from all residential properties; 
One of the principle frontages shall abut upon an arterial or 
collector street; 
One freestanding sign as allowed within 12.06 

Group Day Care 

19.01; 
A safe pickup and drop off area must be provided for 
children; 
All applicable dwelling standards apply 

Group Home (see definition) 

19.01; 
Structure must be a single housekeeping unit; 
Applicant must provide copy of state agency license; 
All single-family detached dwelling standards apply 

Accessory Structure (i.e. 
garage, shed, etc.) which does 
not meet the requirements as 
allowed within Chapter 12.03 

19.01 

 

6.03 Lot and Yard Regulations 

All measurements shall be taken from the lot line to the building line (see definition).  A parking 
lot is not included as a portion of a side yard or rear yard (see 12.04). 

A. Each manufactured home park shall be at least five (5) acres. 
B. The licensed manufactured home park shall be surrounded by a landscaped area 25 feet 

wide along all public streets and all manufactured home park boundaries. 
C. The entrance to the manufactured home park shall be allowed one freestanding sign as 

allowed for specific uses in Chapter 12.06. 

 Lot Area Lot Width Front 
Yard Side Yard Rear Yard Maximum 

Height 



22 
 

Residential Uses 5,500 sq. 
ft. 50 feet 25 feet 5 feet ** 25 feet 35 feet 

Corner Lots 6,000 sq. 
ft. 60 feet 25 feet * 5 feet ** 25 feet 35 feet 

All Other Uses 6,000 sq. 
ft. 60 feet 25 feet 15 feet 25 feet 35 feet 

*  One required front yard may be reduced to 20 feet 
**  The side yard will be required to be increased to 10 feet when the building is 3 stories in 

height or more. 
 
Exceptions: 

#1 See also Adjustments to Yard Regulations (Chapter 13) for other specific exceptions. 

 

 

 

  



23 
 

Chapter 7 – CB: Central Business District 
The purpose of this district is to provide a commercial area for those establishments serving the 
general shopping needs of the trade area, with specific attention to preserving the City’s Main 
Street Commercial Core.  The grouping of uses is intended to preserve and improve the 
character and economic vitality of Main Street. 

7.01 Permitted Uses 

Permitted Use Applicable Standards 

Retail Trade or Service 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Office 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Personal Service 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Hotel/Motel 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Gasoline Dispensing Station 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Public Utility Facility 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Mortuary 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 



24 
 

Private Club 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Churches 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Arcade 
12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10; 
Subject to not being located within 500 feet of an adult 
use* 

Rooming/Boarding House 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.12; 
Subject to the residence being constructed above first floor 

Accessory Use and Structure 
(i.e. garage, shed, etc) 

12.02, 12.03; 
(see definition) 

Fences 12.07 

Commercial Parking 
Lots/Parking Ramps 12.02, 12.04, 12.06, 12.10 

* Measured from the closest point of the outside walls of both structures. 

7.02 Conditional Uses 

Conditional Use Applicable Standards 

Dwellings 
12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
No dwelling shall be located on the first floor 
 



25 
 

Adult Oriented Business 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
SDCL 11-12-2,3 

Electrical Substation 
12.02, 12.10, 19.01; 
An opaque screen, six feet in height located at all setback 
lines 

Wireless Communication 
Facility on existing support 
structure 

12.08, 19.01, and not within an identified floodplain area 

Day Care Center 
12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
Adequate and safe playground area with a fence four (4) 
feet high (see 12.07) 

Motor Vehicle Repair Shop 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01 
Subject to adequate number of parking spots to allow 
temporary storage of the cars only while being repaired, 
not exceeding twenty-one (21) days. 

Off/On-Sale Alcoholic 
Beverage Establishment 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01 

Telecommunications Tower 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01 

Accessory Structure (i.e. 
garage, shed, etc.) which does 
not meet the requirements as 
allowed within Chapter 12.03 

19.01 

Cannabis Dispensary 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 12.15, 19.01 

 

7.03 Lot and Yard Regulations 

All measurements shall be taken from the lot line to the building line (see definitions).  A 
parking lot is not included as a portion of a side yard or rear yard (see Chapter 12.04). 



26 
 

A. The average front and rear yard setback existing on each street shall apply. 
 

B. There are no side yard or lot area restrictions. 
 

C. See also Adjustments to Yard Regulations (Chapter 13) for specific exceptions. 
 

D. When abutting a residential district, uses, and structures shall have a minimum front 
yard of 25 feet, minimum side yards of 7 feet, and minimum rear yard of 30 feet. 
 

E. The maximum height of all buildings and structures shall not exceed 45 feet. 
 

 

 

 

 

  



27 
 

Chapter 8 – GB: General Business District 
The purpose of this district is to provide a commercial area for those establishments service the 
general shipping needs of the trade area, with specific attention to the carrying capacity of 
roads and streets, and to encourage provision of adequate off-street parking and loading space.  
It is not the intent of this district to encourage the extension or enlargement of strip 
commercial areas. 

8.01 Permitted Uses 

Permitted Use Applicable Standards 

Retail Trade or Service 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Office 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Personal Service 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Hotel/Motel 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Motor Vehicle Service 
Station/Gas Dispensing Station 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Printing Plant 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 



28 
 

Hospital/Clinic 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Public Utility Facility 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Mortuary 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Private Club 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Churches 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10; 
All parking lots being 8 feet from all residential properties 

Arcade 
12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10; 
Subject to not being located within 500 feet of an adult 
use* 

Greenhouse/Nursery 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Car Wash 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10; 
Five storage spaces for each bay beyond off-street parking 
requirements and the water from the car wash contained 
on the site 

Motor Vehicle Sales, Display, 
and Service 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Farm Store, Feed Store 
12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10; 
Subject to only accessory storage of fertilizer or farm 
chemicals on the site 



29 
 

Commercial Recreation Facility 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Accessory Use and Structure 
(i.e. garage, shed, etc) 

12.02, 12.03; 
(see definition) 

Commercial Parking 
Lots/Parking Ramps 12.02, 12.04, 12.06, 12.10 

Cannabis Dispensary 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 12.15 

* Measured from the closest point of the outside walls of both structures 

8.02 Conditional Uses 

Conditional Use Applicable Standards 

Adult Oriented Business 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
SDCL 11-12-2,3 

Electrical Substation 
12.02, 12.10, 19.01; 
An opaque screen, six feet in height located at all setback 
lines 

On/Off-Sale Alcoholic 
Beverage Establishment 12.01, 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01 

Wireless Communication 
Facility on existing support 
structure 

12.08, 19.01, and not within an identified floodplain area 



30 
 

Telecommunications Tower 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01 

Day Care Center 
12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
Adequate and safe playground area with a fence four (4) 
feet high (see 12.07) 

Motor Vehicle Repair Shop 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01 
Subject to adequate number of parking spots to allow 
temporary storage of the cars only while being repaired, 
not exceeding twenty-one (21) days. 

Off-Premise Signs 12.02, 12.06, 19.01 

Veterinarian 
12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
No outdoor kenneling of dogs within 1,000 feet of a 
residential area* 

Bus Passenger Terminal 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01 

Broadcast Tower 
12.02, 12.08, 12.10, 19.01; 
Subject to being located at least 300 feet from a residential 
district* 

Campground 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
Lot must contain at least 2,000 sq. ft. and supplied with city 
water and sanitary sewer services; access road on the 
campground site shall be paved or surfaced in a similar 
manner to the adjacent public roads, shall be approved by 
the City, and shall be 14 feet for one way and 20 feet for 
two way roads 

Kennel 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
Located 1,000 feet from residential district area* 

Accessory Structure (i.e. 
garage, shed, etc.) which does 
not meet the requirements as 
allowed within Chapter 12.03 

19.01 



31 
 

* Measured from the closest point of the outside walls of both structures. 

8.03 Lot and Yard Regulations 

All measurements shall be taken from the lot line to the building line (see definitions).  A 
parking lot is not included as a portion of a side yard or rear yard (see Chapter 13.04). 

 

 Lot Area Lot Width Front 
Yard Side Yard Rear Yard Maximum 

Height 

All Uses N/A 0 to 50 
feet 

25 feet 
See #3 

7 feet 
See #1, 3 

5 feet 
See #2 45 feet 

All Uses N/A 51 to 100 
feet 

25 feet 
See #3 

7 feet 
See #1, 3 

5 feet 
See #2 45 feet 

All Uses N/A 101 or 
more feet 

25 feet 
See #3 

7 feet 
See #1, 3 

5 feet 
See #2 45 feet 

 

Exceptions: 

#1 A side yard of 15 feet shall be required where a lot is adjacent to or abuts a residential 
district. 
 

#2 A rear yard of 30 feet shall be required where a lot is adjacent to or abuts a residential 
district. 
 

#3 There shall be a required front yard on each street side of a double frontage lot.  There 
shall be a required front yard on each street side of a corner lot. 
 



32 
 

#4 See also Adjustment to Yard Regulations (Chapter 13) for other specific exceptions. 
 

  



33 
 

Chapter 9 – LI: Light Industrial District 
This district is intended to provide for a number of light manufacturing, wholesale, 
warehousing, and service uses in an attractive industrial park-like setting. 

9.01 Permitted Uses 

Permitted Use Applicable Standards 

Wholesale Trade 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Light Manufacturing 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Contractor’s Shop/Storage 
Yard 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10; 
Subject to screening of all outdoor storage from view 

Office 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Public Utility Facility 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Frozen Food Locker 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Wireless Communication 
Facility on Existing Structure 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 



34 
 

Printing Plant 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Motor Vehicle Service Station 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Electrical Substation 
12.02, 12.10; 
Opaque screen, six feet in height, located as far back as all 
setback lines 

Lumberyard 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Retail Trade or Service 
12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10; 
Only when it is an accessory use when in conjunction with 
the primary use of wholesaling or manufacturing 

Truck or Bus Wash 
12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10; 
All water from the truck or bus wash being contained on 
the site 

Truck Repair, Sales, and 
Service Subject to no unscreened outdoor storage of parts 

Farm Store or Feed Store 
12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10; 
Only accessory storage of fertilizer or farm chemicals on 
the site 

Farm Implement Sales, 
Display, and Service 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Accessory Use and Structure 
(i.e. garage, shed, etc) 

12.02, 12.03; 
(see definition) 



35 
 

Cannabis Dispensary 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 12.15 

 

9.02 Conditional Uses 

Conditional Use Applicable Standards 

Telecommunications Tower 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01 

Off-Premise Sign 12.02, 12.06, 19.01 

Bus/Truck Terminal 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01 

Recycling Collection or 
Processing Facility 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
Screening of all recyclable material from view 

Automobile Storage Yard 
12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
Screening of the storage yard with fence, berm vegetation 
or placement on the lot 

Broadcast Tower 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
Located at least 300 feet from a residential district 

Motor Vehicle Repair Shop 
12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
An adequate number of parking spots to store the cars and 
screen parts and materials from view 



36 
 

Warehouses, mini-warehouses 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 12.16, 19.01 

Consumer Storage Units 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 12.16, 19.01  

Municipally Owned Waste 
Water Treatment Facility 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01 

Accessory Structure (i.e. 
garage, shed, etc.) which does 
not meet the requirements as 
allowed within Chapter 12.03 

19.01 

 

9.03 Lot and Yard Regulations 

 Lot Area Lot Width Front 
Yard Side Yard Rear Yard Maximum 

Height 

Mini-Warehouse 10,000 sq. 
ft. 100 feet* 25 feet* 

See #4, #5 
15 feet* 
See #5 20 feet* 45 feet 

All Uses N/A 75 feet 25 feet 
See #4 

10 feet 
See #2, 4 

30 feet 
See #3 

45 feet 
See #1 

* These requirements apply to the commonly owned space or common space owned by 
the owner of an individually platted lot.  This is the space that surrounds the individually 
platted lots.  For setbacks related to the individually platted lots, see Exception #7. 

Exceptions: 



37 
 

#1 A conditional use permit will be required for any structure having a maximum height 
exceeding 45 feet. (See 19.01). 
 

#2 A side yard of 15 feet shall be required only where a lot is adjacent to or abuts a 
residential district. 
 

#3 A rear yard of 35 feet shall be required where a lot is adjacent to or abuts a residential 
district. 
 

#4 There shall be a required front yard on each street side of a double frontage lot.  There 
shall be a required front yard on each street side of a corner lot. 
 

#5 See also Adjustments to Yard Regulations (Chapter 13) for other specific exceptions. 
 

#6 Waste water treatment facilities are exempt from minimum yard or setback 
requirements. 
 

#7 Zero lot line option:  Mini-warehouses held in common ownership and located on a 
single lot line shall observe the standard setback rules prescribed above.  However, the 
lot may be subdivided into separate lots upon which individually owned mini-
warehouses are located if the lots to be created through the subdivision process are 
individually platted.  In such event, the setbacks for the individually platted lots shall be 
as follows: 
 
a. Front Yard Setback(s): Zero (0) feet. 
b. Rear Yard Setback(s): Zero (0) feet. 
c. Side Yard Setback(s): Zero (0) feet. 

Mini-warehouses composed of two (2) or more individually platted lots already utilizing 
the zero lot line option described above shall not be considered Non-Conforming. 

This exception only applies if the individually platted lots are surrounded by either: (1) a 
space commonly owned by the owners of the individually platted lots; or (2) a common 
space surrounding the individually platted lots that is entirely owned by the owner or 
owners of an individually platted lot. The common space surrounding the individually 
platted lots shall meet all applicable requirements found in the Lot and Yard Regulations 
table above. 

 



38 
 

  



39 
 

Chapter 10 – HI: Heavy Industrial District 
This district is intended to provide for general industrial uses which may create some nuisance, 
and which are not properly associated with, nor compatible with residential, office, or 
commercial establishments.  All uses in this district shall comply with any state or local 
regulations regarding noise, emissions, dust, odor, glare, vibration, or heat when applicable. 

10.01 Permitted Uses 

Permitted Use Applicable Standards 

Wholesale Trade 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

General Manufacturing Other 
Than Those Listed Below 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Farm Store or Feed Store 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Contractor’s Shop/Storage 
Yard 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10; 
Subject to screening of all outdoor storage from view 

Public Utility Facility 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Frozen Food Locker 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 

Wireless Communication 
Facility on Existing Support 
Structure 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10 



40 
 

Electrical Substation 
12.02, 12.10; 
An opaque screen, six feet in height, must be located as far 
back as all setback lines 

Retailing 
12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10; 
Being an accessory use when in conjunction with a primary 
use of wholesaling or manufacturing 

Bus and Truck Wash 
12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10; 
All water from the truck or bus wash being contained on 
the site 

Truck Repair, Sales, and 
Service 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10; 
No unscreened outdoor storage of parts 

Fruit and Vegetable Canning 
and Processing 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10; 
Traffic to and from the facility will not travel on residential 
streets and the odor will not impact residential 
neighborhoods 

Refining 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10; 
Traffic to and from the facility will not travel on residential 
streets and the location shall not be located within ½ mile 
of a residential area 

Motor Vehicle Repair Shop 
12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10; 
An adequate number of parking spots to store the cars and 
screen parts and materials from view 

Accessory Use and Structure 
(i.e. garage, shed, etc) 

12.02, 12.03; 
(see definition) 

Airport 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10; 
Traffic to and from the airport will not travel on residential 
streets and the location will not be within ½ mile of a 
residential district 

 

10.02 Conditional Uses 



41 
 

Conditional Use Applicable Standards 

Bus/Truck Terminal 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01 

Telecommunications Tower 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01 

Off-Premise Signs 12.02, 12.06, 19.01 

Recycling Collection Facility 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
Subject to any outdoor storage of recyclable materials 
must be within an opaque screened area at least six feet in 
height 

Manufacture of: Acid, Alcohol, 
Ammonia, Asphalt, Bleach, 
Cement, Chlorine, Dyestuffs, 
Explosives, Fertilizer, Glue, 
Gypsum, Lime, Oils, Paint, 
Plaster or Paris, Shellac, Sizing, 
Turpentine or Yeast 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
Traffic to and from the facility will not travel on residential 
streets and the odor will not impact residential 
neighborhoods 

Stockyards/Slaughtering of 
Animals 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
Subject to traffic to and from the facility will not travel on 
residential streets and the odor will not impact residential 
neighborhoods 

Rendering 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
Traffic to and from the facility will not travel on residential 
streets and the location shall not be located within ½ mile 
of a residential area 

Distillation of Products 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
Traffic to and from the facility will not travel on residential 
streets and the odor will not impact residential 
neighborhoods 

Paper Manufacturing; 
Smelting; Boilerworks 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
Traffic to and from the facility will not travel on residential 
streets and the location shall not be located within ½ mile 
of a residential area 



42 
 

Tank Farm; Petroleum 
Products Terminal 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
Compliance with the City’s fire and health code and traffic 
to and from the facility will not travel on residential streets 
and the odor will not impact residential neighborhoods 

Grain Terminal; Grain 
Processing 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
Traffic to and from the facility will not travel on residential 
streets and the odor will not impact residential 
neighborhoods 

Salvage Yard 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
Being sited off the main thoroughfares of the City, ½ mile 
from a residential district and be screened from view; the 
owner shall agree to control rodents as a condition of the 
permit 

Manufacture and Storage of 
Electric Transformers 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
Chemicals associated with the transformers will be 
contained in an acceptable manner 

Quarry 
12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
Subject to the site being located at least 1,000 feet from 
commercial or residential properties 

Automobile Storage Yard 
12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
Screenings of the storage yard with fence, berm, 
vegetation or placement on the lot 

Recycling Processing Facility 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
Any outdoor storage of recyclable materials must be within 
opaque screened area at least six feet in height and all 
processing operations must be fully enclosed 

Broadcast Tower 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
Being located at least 300 feet from a residential district 

Solid Waste Transfer Facility 

12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 19.01; 
Screening of the storage area with fence, berm, vegetation 
or placement on the lot; 
Traffic to and from the facility will not travel on residential 
streets and the location shall not be located within ½ mile 
of a residential area 

Warehouse, mini-warehouse 12.02. 12.04. 12.05. 12.06. 12.10. 12.16, 19.01 



43 
 

Consumer Storage Units 12.02, 12.04, 12.05, 12.06, 12.10, 12.16, 19.01 

Accessory Structure (i.e. 
garage, shed, etc.) which does 
not meet the requirements as 
allowed within Chapter 12.03 

19.01 

 

10.03 Lot and Yard Regulations 

 Lot Area Lot Width Front 
Yard Side Yard Rear Yard Maximum 

Height 

Mini-Warehouse 10,000 sq. 
ft. 100 feet* 25 feet* 

See #4, #5 
15 feet* 
See #5 20 feet* 45 feet 

All Uses N/A N/A 25 feet 
See #4 

7 feet 
See #2, 4 

30 feet 
See #3 

45 feet 
See #1 

* These requirements apply to the commonly owned space or common space owned by 
the owner of an individually platted lot.  This is the space that surrounds the individually 
platted lots.  For setbacks related to the individually platted lots, see Exception #6. 

 

Exceptions: 

#1 A conditional use permit will be required for any structure having a maximum height 
exceeding 45 feet. (See 19.01). 
 

#2 A side yard of 20 feet shall be required where a lot is adjacent to or abuts a residential 
district. 
 



44 
 

#3 A rear yard of 35 feet shall be required where a lot is adjected to or abuts a residential 
district. 
 

#4 There shall be a required front yard on each street side of a double frontage.  There 
shall be a required front yard on each street side of a corner lot. 
 

#5 See also Adjustment to Yard Regulations (Chapter 13) for other specific exceptions. 
 

#6 Zero lot line option:  Mini-warehouses held in common ownership and located on a 
single lot line shall observe the standard setback rules prescribed above.  However, the 
lot may be subdivided into separate lots upon which individually owned mini-
warehouses are located if the lots to be created through the subdivision process are 
individually platted.  In such event, the setbacks for the individually platted lots shall be 
as follows: 
 
d. Front Yard Setback(s): Zero (0) feet. 
e. Rear Yard Setback(s): Zero (0) feet. 
f. Side Yard Setback(s): Zero (0) feet. 

Mini-warehouses composed of two (2) or more individually platted lots already utilizing 
the zero lot line option described above shall not be considered Non-Conforming. 

This exception only applies if the individually platted lots are surrounded by either: (1) a 
space commonly owned by the owners of the individually platted lots; or (2) a common 
space surrounding the individually platted lots that is entirely owned by the owner or 
owners of an individually platted lot. The common space surrounding the individually 
platted lots shall meet all applicable requirements found in the Lot and Yard Regulations 
table above. 

 

 

 

  



45 
 

Chapter 11 – PUD: Planned Unit 
Development District 

11.01 Intent Compliance with Comprehensive Plan 
 

A. It is the intent of this district to provide flexibility from conventional zoning regulations 
with increased public review for planned unit development district projects to: 
 
1. Encourage well-planned, efficient urban development. 

 
2. Allow a planned and coordinated mix of land uses which are compatible and are 

harmonious, but previously discouraged by conventional zoning procedures. 
 
3. Encourage more creative, higher quality and more ecologically sensitive urban 

design with special consideration given to projects which incorporate desirable 
design features, including but not limited to underground parking, orientation or 
design to take advantage of solar energy, environmental preservation, historic 
preservation, handicapped accessible structures, unique use of open spaces or 
other desirable design features. 

 
4. Improve communication and cooperation among the city, land developers, and 

interested residents in the urbanization of new lands and the renewal of existing 
deteriorated areas. 

 
B. The developments within the Planned Unit Development District shall comply with the 

policies and design standards of the City of Crooks Comprehensive Plan.  The 
development shall be mutually compatible with adjacent projected developments. 
 

11.02 Procedure 
 

A. Initial Development Plan. 
 
1. When a petitioner wants to request a rezoning to the Planned Unit Development 

District, it shall be submitted to the Director of Planning Zoning, showing the 
information specified in 11.03 INITIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN, a minimum of 30 



46 
 

days prior to the Planning Commission meeting at which consideration is 
desired.  After the planned unit development request has been reviewed, the 
Planning Commission shall make a recommendation to the City Council on the 
requested rezoning.  The City Council shall then act to approve or deny the 
request. 
 

2. This request for rezoning is subject to the requirements for amendment of the 
zoning regulations specified in 18.01 of the 2009 Revised Crooks Zoning 
Regulation.  No building permit shall be issues within the development until the 
final development plan is approved and the plat is filed. 
 

B. Final Development Plan. 
 
1. Prior to construction on any lots in the Planned Unit Development, the petitioner 

shall present a final development plan showing the information specific in 11.04 
FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN, to the Planning Commission, who shall have the sole 
authority to approve, deny, or amend the plan. 
 

2. The final development plan may be submitted in conjunction with the initial 
development plan for concurrent approval on any subareas the developer is 
ready to commit to a final plan.  All the information required for both an initial 
and final development plan must be shown for the area submitted for 
concurrent approval, except that the developer may reference the requirements 
of one of the traditional zoning districts as the development standard for a 
particular subarea. 

 
3. Signs shall be posted on the property for a continuous period of 7 days 

immediately prior to any public hearing held by the Planning Commission or City 
Council to consider any final development plan.  The signs shall be furnished by 
the Zoning Administrator and posted by the applicant in the numbers and 
locations prescribed by the Zoning Administrator. 

 
4. Before any action shall be taken by the Planning Commission, the applicant shall 

first file with the Zoning Administrator a certificate verifying that the signs have 
been posted at the proper location before the time specified by this section. 

 

 



47 
 

C. Amendments. 
 
1. Major Amendments.  Major Amendments to the initial and/or final development 

plan shall be required to be approved with a public hearing in the same manner 
as provided for in 11.05. AMENDMENTS. 
 

2. Minor Amendments. 
 

a. Minor amendments to the initial and/or final development plan shall be 
required to be approved by the Planning Commission.  Notice of the 
hearing shall be given by the posting of not less than 2 signs provided by 
the Zoning Administrator.  Before any action shall be taken by the 
Planning Commission, the applicant shall first file with the Zoning 
Administrator a certificate verifying that the signs have been posted at 
the proper location and for the time specified. 
 

b. Minor amendments to the initial development plan may also be made by 
the submission and approval of a final development plan which is 
changed from the approved initial development plan.  Any amendments 
shall be shown as a change from the initial development plan on the final 
development plan, and further these changes shall be made on the initial 
development plan on file with the County Register of Deeds. 

 
3. Minimal Amendments.  Minimal amendments to the final development plan 

shall be submitted to the Zoning Administrator on a reproducible development 
plan showing the requested changes.  The Zoning Administrator may then 
approve the change in writing if he/she deems it appropriate. 

 

11.03 Initial Development Plan 

Upon application for rezoning to the Planned Unit Development District, the petitioner shall 
present an initial development plan to the Planning Commission for review, and to the City 
Council, for their approval showing the following information: 

A. Project name and legal description. 
 

B. A preliminary subdivision plan in compliance with Article 4 of the City of Crooks 
Subdivision Regulations. 
 



48 
 

C. The proposed development scheme showing the following information: 
 
1. The proposed land uses, including the number and type of proposed residential 

buildings, the proposed number of dwelling unit per building, the number and 
type of any proposed nonresidential building and their square footage. 
 

2. The proposed maximum density of the development, which shall not exceed the 
density allowed in the traditional zoning districts for similar uses, except where 
unique physical, environmental, or design characteristics make such densities 
undesirable. 

 
3. The proposed maximum height which shall be no greater than that required in 

the traditional zoning districts for similar uses, except where unique physical, 
environmental, or design characteristics make the setbacks undesirable. 

 
4. The proposed maximum height which shall be no greater than that required in 

the traditional zoning districts for similar uses, except where unique, physical, 
environmental, or design characteristics make the heights undesirable. 

 
5. Proposed design features illustrating compatibility to the surrounding 

environment and neighborhood. 
 
6. Anticipated subarea development sequence. 
 

D. In addition, the developer shall provide an 8” x 11” scaled rendering on mylar of the 
approved initial development plan showing each of the subareas. 
 

11.04 Final Development Plan 
 

A. Prior to construction on any lots in the Planned Unit Development Zoning District, the 
petitioner shall present a final development plan to the Planning Commission for their 
approval.  When a subarea is proposed by the developer for only single-family detached 
homes or 2-family attached units, a final development plan will not be required. 
 

B. Final development plan approval shall expire 1 year from the date upon which it 
becomes effective if no work has commenced.  Upon written request to the Zoning 



49 
 

Administrator and prior to the final development plan approval expiration date, a time 
extension for the final development plan approval may be granted. 
 

C. The final development plan shall show the following information: 
 
1. The subdivision name, the legal description, and the individual project name (if 

any). 
 

2. Boundaries of the subarea or subareas submitted for approval superimposed on 
the map of the initial development plan. 

 
3. A subdivision plat of the subarea or subareas submitted for approval in 

compliance with Article V of the Subdivision Ordinance. 
 

4. A scale drawing showing the following information will be required: 
 

a. Size and location of proposed structures including height and number of 
units. 
 

b. Calculated floor area for each structure and a generic listing of the uses 
within the structure. 

 
c. Off-street parking lot arrangement designating all parking spaces, off-

street loading spaced and any outdoor trash container. 
 

d. Any sidewalks, bikeways or other paths. 
 

e. Any outdoor lighting, type and location.   Standard street lights owned by 
the City are not required. 

 
f. Landscaping plans showing the type and location of any walls or fences, 

the placement, size, and species of any trees or shrubs and berms in 
areas that will be sod or seeded. 

 
g. All existing and proposed utilities, drainage ways, water courses, and 

location of above ground existing utilities on adjacent property. 
 

h. Proposed final ground contours. 



50 
 

 
i. Curb cuts and all private drives. 

 
j. Adjacent, existing, and proposed uses. 

 
k. First floor elevation for any structure located in a flood hazard area. 

 
l. Accurate building elevation of all proposed structures. 

 
m. Documentation of the ownership and maintenance responsibility of any 

common open spaces, structures or facilities, including private streets. 
 

n. Any subareas proposed for multiple residential development will be 
required to provide an open area for recreation.  The open spaces shall 
not be included in any required yard, but shall be located in the same 
subarea it is intended to serve. 

 
o. Proposed parking and loading spaces which shall be in conformance with 

12.04 of the 2009 Revised Crooks Zoning Regulation, except where 
unique physical, environmental, or design characteristics make the 
requirements undesirable. 

 
p. Unless otherwise specified on the final development plan, all 

development standards shall be the same as those set forth in the 
traditional zoning districts, which shall be the same as those set forth in 
the traditional zoning districts, which shall be referenced for each 
subarea as part of the final development plan.  For example: townhouses 
on block X shall be developed in conformance with the requirements of 
R-2 Residential District. 
  

11.05 Amendments 
 

A. Major Amendments.  The following changes in an initial and/or final development plan 
are considered major amendments: 
 
1. Any change in the proposed land uses should follow a rezoning process detailed 

in 18.01 of the 2009 Revised Crooks Zoning Regulation. 
 



51 
 

2. An increase in the density above that provided in division (B)(5) below should 
follow a rezoning process detailed in 18.01 of the 2009 Revised Crooks Zoning 
Regulation. 

 
B. Minor Amendments.  The following changes in an initial and/or final development plan 

are considered minor amendments: 
 
1. Any adjustment in the size or shape of the building envelope (increasing the 

height or reducing the building setback). 
 

2. Any change in the number or location of curb cuts. 
 
3. Any decrease in the size of required open areas. 
 
4. A minor change in the street pattern. 
 
5. Any increase in density of a subarea: 
 

a. Less than 25% for a subarea with less than 8 units. 
 

b. Less than 15% for a subarea with between 9 and 20 units. 
 

c. Less than 8% for a subarea with 21 units or more. 
 
6. Any change in the number of parking spaces. 

 
7. Any minor change to on-premise signage. 
 
8. Any major change in the street pattern. 
 

C. Minimal Amendments.  The following changes in an initial and/or final development 
plan are considered minimal amendments: 
 
1. Any adjustment of a building within a previously established building envelope. 

 
2. A reduction in density and scale. 
 
3. Any minimal change in the street pattern. 



52 
 

 
4. Any minimal change in the parking and loading requirements. 
 
5. Any minimal change to on-premise signage. 
 

 

 

 

  



53 
 

Chapter 12 – Additional Use Regulations 

12.01 Reserved 

[Reserved] 

12.02 Visibility at Intersections and Driveways 
 

A. Intersection Safety Zones.  No monument style sign or other sign with its face less than 
twelve (12) feet above grade or any fence, wall, shrub, or other obstruction to vision 
exceeding three (3) feet in height above the established street grade shall be erected, 
planted, or maintained within a triangular area of a corner lot that is included by 
measuring straight lines along the curb lines at points 40 feet distant in each direction 
from the intersection of the curbs and a straight line connecting the first two lines. (See 
Figure 1). 
 

B. Driveway Safety Zones.  No monument style sign or other sign with its face less than ten 
(10) feet above grade or any fence, wall, shrub, or other obstruction to vision exceeding 
three feet in height above the established street grade shall be erected, planted, or 
maintained within the area from the curb line to ten (10) feet behind the curb line. (See 
Figure 1). 
 

 



54 
 

12.03 Accessory Buildings, Garages, Recreational Facilities, and 
Miscellaneous Structures 
 

A. In General. 
 
1. Accessory structures, excluding miscellaneous structures in Section 12.03(B)(5), 

shall not exceed 30% of the rear yard area. 
 

2. Any structure placed within an easement that impedes the access or intended 
use of that easement may be removed by the City or the City’s representative at 
the owner’s expense. 

 
3. Accessory buildings may not be used for dwelling purposes. 
 
4. No accessory building or use shall be constructed upon a lot until the 

construction of the main building has been actually commenced, and no 
accessory building shall be used unless the main building on the lot is also being 
used. 

 
 
5. A building permit is required for accessory building over two hundred (200) 

square feet. 
 
 
6. The garage(s) shall be used only by persons residing on the premises.  Any 

garage not meeting these requirements shall be allowed only as a conditional 
use pursuant to Section 19.01. 

 
 
7. Conditional Use Application Fee.  Upon application and before any conditional 

use hearings are held, the applicant shall pay a fee to the Finance Officer. 
 
 
8. Height shall be measured from grade.  Grade is the average elevation of the land 

around a building.  See Definitions BUILDING, HEIGHT. 
 
 



55 
 

9. Stop Order.  Section 15.03. Whenever any work or use is being done contrary to 
the provisions of this title, the Authorized Official may order the work or use 
stopped by notice in writing served on any person engaged in the doing or 
causing such work to be done, and any such persons shall forthwith stop work or 
use until authorized by the Authorized Official to proceed with the work or use. 

 
 
10. Penalties for Violation. Section 1.05  ‘… Any person who violates this ordinance 

or fails to comply with any of its requirements shall upon conviction be subject 
to penalties established by South Dakota Law.’ 

 
 
11. No carports will be allowed in Residential Districts. 
 
 

B. Residential Districts. 
 
1. Accessory Buildings: Two hundred (200) square foot and under (counts as your 

one allowable building). 
 
a. Shall be setback at least four (4) feet from the side and rear property 

lines. 
 

b. Shall not be located in the front yard. 
 

c. Accessory Buildings. Two hundred (200) square feet and under do not 
require a building permit. 

 
d. Shall not be more than twelve (12) feet (one story) in height. 

 
e. Shall not have a door opening that exceeds six (6) feet in width. 

 
f. Shall not be located within ten (10) feet of the principal structure. 

 
g. Cloth, canvas, plastic sheets and tarps, and similar materials are not 

allowed as primary materials, except greenhouses are allowed to have 
sheeting (glass or plastic) of prescribed building thickness as an outer 



56 
 

covering.  As an exterior material, steel siding and roofing is allowed on 
accessory buildings two hundred (200) square feet and under only. 

 
h. Shall be limited to a maximum of one (1) accessory building per lot. 

 
i. Shall not be placed on drainage, utility, or other easements. 

 
2. Accessory Buildings: Two hundred and one (201) square feet to four hundred 

(400) square feet (counts as your one allowable building). 
 
a. Shall be setback at least four (4) feet from the side and rear property 

lines. 
 

b. Shall not be located in the front yard. 
 

c. Shall not have a wall height exceeding ten (10) feet in height. 
 

d. Shall not have a roof pitch that exceeds a 6:12 pitch and shall not be 
more than one story in height. 

 
e. Shall not have a door opening that exceeds six (6) feet in width. 

 
f. Shall not be located within ten (10) feet of the principal structure. 

 
g. The size of the accessory building shall not exceed four hundred (400) 

square feet or the requirements of Section 12.03(A)(1), whichever is less.  
Any accessory building exceeding two hundred (200) square feet requires 
a conditional use permit.  Conditions may be attached to such a permit to 
mitigate the impact on adjacent properties, including but not limited to, 
increased setbacks, landscape screening, architectural color and detail 
requirements, drainage provisions, and limiting additional exterior 
storage. 

 
h. Cloth, canvas, plastic sheets and tarps, and similar materials are not 

allowed as primary materials.  As an exterior material, corrugated steel 
siding and roofing is also not allowed.  The exterior finish of accessory 
buildings 201-400 square feet in size shall be of materials matching the 
principal structure in color and texture. 



57 
 

 
i. Shall be limited to a maximum of one (1) accessory building per lot, 

regardless of size. 
 

j. Shall not be placed on drainage, utility, or other easements. 
 
3. Detached Garages. 

 
a. Primary Garage.  In a situation where there will be no attached garage to 

the dwelling structure, the detached garage becomes the primary garage.  
In this situation only, the garage shall not exceed one thousand (1000) 
square feet.  All other detached garage and general conditions of this 
ordinance will still apply.  If there is no attached garage and one detached 
garage, then one (1) additional accessory building four hundred (400) 
square feet or less will be allowed OR one (1) 600 square foot detached 
garage.  All applicable detached garage rules will apply.  All relevant 
conditions of this ordinance will still need to be met. 
 

b. Shall be setback at least seven (7) feet from the side and rear property 
lines. 

 
c. Shall not be located in the front yard. 

 
d. Shall not have a wall height exceeding twelve (12) feet in height. 

 
e. Shall not have a roof pitch that exceeds a 6:12 pitch and shall not be 

more than one story in height. 
 

f. Shall not have doors that exceed ten (10) feet in height. 
 

g. Conditions may be attached to such a permit to mitigate the impact on 
adjacent properties, including but not limited to, increased setbacks, 
landscape screening, architectural color and detail requirements, 
drainage provisions, and limiting additional exterior storage. 

 
h. The exterior finish of detached garages shall be of materials matching the 

principal structure in color and texture. 
 



58 
 

i. The architectural design of detached garages must be similar to the 
principal structure. 

 
j. Detached garages shall be paved with a hard surfaced concrete or asphalt 

driveway to an adjacent public street. 
 

k. Any damage caused by a change in grading shall be the responsibility of 
the land owner.  Change from these approved elevations may cause 
water drainage problems. 

 
l. Shall not be placed on drainage, utility, or other easements. 

 
4. Attached Garages. 

 
a. Attached garages shall not exceed the main floor area of the principal 

building. 
 

b. Setbacks for attached garages shall be according to the zoning district 
regulations. 

 
c. Shall not have a wall height exceeding twelve (12) feet in height. 

 
d. Shall not have doors that exceed ten (10) feet in height. 

 
e. The exterior finish of the attached garages must be similar to the 

principal structure. 
 

f. Attached garages shall be paved with a hard surfaced concrete or asphalt 
driveway to an adjacent public street. 

 
g. One (1) additional detached garage of six hundred (600) square feet or 

less OR one (1) additional accessory building, four hundred (400) square 
feet or less, will be allowed on the condition that all relevant requirement 
of this ordinance are met. 

 
5. Miscellaneous Structures. 

 



59 
 

a. Swing sets, sandboxes, play structures, dog kennels, satellite dishes, and 
similar structures shall not be located closer than four (4) feet from the 
side or rear property lines, and shall not be located within the front yard 
setback. 
 

b. Any miscellaneous structure placed within an easement that impedes the 
access or intended use of that easement may be removed by the City or 
the City’s representative at the owner’s expense. 

 
c. No miscellaneous structure, unless an integral part of the principal 

building, shall be created, altered, or moved within ten (10) feet of the 
principal building. 

 
6. Recreational Facility. 

 
a. Shall be set back at least five (5) feet from the side and ten (10) feet from 

the rear property lines. 
 

b. Shall not be placed on drainage, utility, and other easements. 
 

c. Shall not be located in front of the principal structure. 
 

d. A chain link or non-opaque fence not exceeding ten (10) feet in height 
shall be allowed to enclose a recreational facility containing concrete, 
asphalt, or similar material.  If such a fence is used it shall be set back at 
least five (5) feet from the side and ten (10) feet from the rear property 
lines and may not be placed in front of the principal structure. 

 
C. Nonresidential Districts. 

 
1. One accessory building is allowed.  Exception: Picnic shelters, gazebos and 

similar structures may be allowed as additional accessory structures. 
 

2. The maximum floor area allowed is two hundred (200) square feet.  Exception: 
Size may be increased up to four hundred (400) square feet with a conditional 
use permit. 

 



60 
 

3. Exterior finish shall be of materials matching the principal structure in color and 
texture. 

 
4. Architectural design must be similar to the principal structure. 
 
5. Location of the accessory structure shall have minimum negative impact on the 

site and adjacent properties and shall meet the setbacks of the district. 
 
6. Accessory structures shall not exceed the height of the principal structure.  

Exception: Height may be increased with a conditional use permit. 
 
7. Shall not be located in front of the principal structure. 
 

D. Large Lot Developments (all lots in development exceeding 1.0 acres) 
 
1. One accessory building is allowed and shall not exceed 1000 square feet. 

 
2. If less than 200 square feet, follow regulations outlined above in 12.03(B)(1). 
 
3. If between 201 to 400 square feet, follow regulations outlined above in 

12.03(B)(2). 
 
4. If between 401 to 1000 square feet: 
 

a. An approved building permit and conditional use permit are required 
prior to grading or building. 
 

b. Shall be setback at least seven (7) feet from the side and rear property 
lines. 

 
c. Shall not be located in the front yard. 

 
d. Shall not have a wall height exceeding twelve (12) feet in height. 

 
e. Conditions may be attached to such a permit to mitigate the impact on 

adjacent properties, including but not limited to, increased setbacks, 
landscape screening, architectural color and detail requirements, 
drainage provision, and limiting additional exterior storage. 



61 
 

 
f. The exterior finish of detached garages shall be of materials matching the 

principal structure in color and texture. 
 

g. The architectural design of detached garages must be similar to the 
principal structure. 

 
h. Shall be paved with a hard surfaced concrete or asphalt driveway 

connecting to a public street. 
 

i. Any damage caused by a change in grading shall be the responsibility of 
the landowner.  Change from these approved elevations may cause water 
drainage problems. 

 
j. Shall not be placed on drainage, utility, or other easements. 

 
k. All relevant conditions of this ordinances will still need to be met. 

 

12.04 Off-Street Parking 
 

A. General Conditions. 
 
1. No parking spaces are permitted in the required front or side yard in any district 

except for the portions of the front yard necessary for hard surfaced driveways 
or as otherwise provided in this title.  Parking spaces in backyards shall be 
prohibited in the R-1 and R-3 districts.  Parking spaces in the backyards shall be 
allowed only by conditional use in the R-2 district. 
 

2. Driveways shall not exceed 36 feet in width.   
 

a. An exception for 40 feet driveways shall be allowed for businesses 
expecting tanker truck traffic. 
 

b. Additional off-street parking is permitted abutting the primary structures’ 
primary garage in the R-1 Zoning District.  The width of the parking area 
must not exceed fourteen (14) feet and must not extend beyond the 
depth of the primary garage.  Additional parking must be hard surfaced 



62 
 

with asphalt or concrete.  Additional off-street parking must not interfere 
with natural drainage.  All easement, zoning, and code enforcement 
regulations must also be adhered to. 

 
3. Each parking space shall be directly accessible to an access aisle. 
 
4. Except in conjunction with a legal nonconforming business, it is unlawful for any 

person to park, store, leave, or permit the parking, storing, or leaving of any 
commercial vehicle in a NRC, R-1, R-2, or R-3 Zoning District, unless the vehicle is 
parked in connection with the performance of a service.  The transferring of 
refuse from a smaller satellite vehicle to a large packer garbage truck is 
prohibited. 

 
5. All parking, loading, and maneuvering and drive areas thereto shall be hard 

surfaced with asphalt or concrete. 
 
6. The parking requirements in this section shall not be applicable to property in 

the CB Central Business District, except for residential uses which are authorized 
by a conditional use permit. 

 
B. Required Parking Spaces. 

In computing the number of required off-street parking spaces, the floor area shall mean the 
gross floor area of the specific use, excluding any floor or portion used for parking.  Where 
fractional spaces result, the parking spaces required shall be the nearest whole number.  For 
the number of off-street parking and loading spaces required in all other districts, see TABLE 1 
below: 

TABLE 1: Minimum Off-Street Parking & Loading Requirements: 

Uses and Structures Minimum Parking Requirements 

Single-Family and Two-Family 
Dwellings 2 spaces for each dwelling unit 



63 
 

Multiple-Family Dwellings 

One and one-half (1 ½) spaces for each dwelling unit of one 
bedroom or less; 
Two spaces for each dwelling unit of two bedrooms or 
more   

Rooming and Boarding 
Houses; Sororities and 
Fraternities 

One (1) parking space for each two hundred (200) square 
feet of floor area (one space per two beds) 

Bowling Alleys Four (4) spaces per land 

Church or Temple 1 space for each four (4) seats in main setting area 

Private Club or Lodge One (1) parking space for each three hundred (300) square 
feet of floor area 

High School 

Four (4) spaces for each classroom or office room, plus one 
(1) for each one hundred fifty (150) square feet of seating 
area in any auditorium or gymnasium or cafeteria intended 
to be used as an auditorium. 

Elementary School 

Two (2) spaces for each classroom or office room, plus one 
(1) for each one hundred fifty (150) square feet of seating 
area in any auditorium or gymnasium or cafeteria intended 
to be used as an auditorium 

Eating and Drinking Places 
One (1) space for each one hundred (100) square feet of 
gross floor area or one (1) space for each three seats, 
whichever is greater. 

Hospitals 1 space for each bed 

Nursing, Convalescent and 
Rest Homes 1 space for each 3 beds 



64 
 

Auditoriums, Theaters, and 
Places of Public Assembly 1 space for each four (4) seats of design capacity 

Hotels and Motels One (1) space for each two (2) rental rooms 

Funeral Homes One (1) space for each four (4) seats in the chapel 

Retail Sales Establishments One (1) space for each three hundred (300) square feet 
floor area 

Medical and Dental Clinics 
One (1) space for each two (2) staff members and full-time 
employees, plus one (1) space for each six hundred (600) 
square feet of gross floor area 

Manufactured Home Parks Two (2) spaces for each manufactured home lot 

Industrial Uses One (1) space for each two (2) employees on the maximum 
working shift 

Service Establishments One (1) space for each three hundred (300) square feet of 
floor area 

Wholesale and Distribution 
Establishment 

One (1) space for each two (2) employees on the maximum 
working shift 

 

All other uses not specified above shall have minimum off-street parking and off-street loading 
spaces as determined by the City Council. 

12.05 Off-Street Loading Requirements 



65 
 

There shall be provided at the time any building is erected or structurally altered, off-street 
loading spaces for the following uses: 

Use Gross Square Feet Floor Area Number of Off-Street Loading 
Spaces 

Office Buildings 25,000 – 50,000 
Every Additional 75,000 

One 14’ x 35’ space 
Add one 14’ x 35’ space 

Retail, Service and Trade 
Establishments, and 
Industrial and 
Wholesale Commercial 

5,000 – 20,000 
20,000 – 100,000 
Every Additional 75,000 

One 14’ x 35’ space 
Two 14’ x 35’ space 
Add one 14’ x 35’ space 

 

 

12.06 Signs 
 

A. Sign Permits. 
 
1. Permit Required. 

Except as otherwise provided herein, it shall be unlawful for any person to erect, 
alter, or relocate any sign without first obtaining a permit therefor from the City. 

 
2. Permit Application. 

An application for a sign permit shall be submitted to the Planning & Zoning 
Administrator on a form as he or she may prescribe and shall include all 
information as may be required for a complete understanding of the proposed 
sign and all other information necessary to show full compliance with this 
Ordinance and all other federal, state, and local laws. 

If the Planning & Zoning Administrator determines that a proposed sign 
conforms to the requirements of this ordinance and all other federal, state, and 



66 
 

local laws, the Planning & Zoning Administrator shall issue the permit as soon as 
practicable. 

 
3. Validity of Permit. 

The issuance of granting of a permit shall not be construed to be a permit for, or 
an approval of, any violation of any of the provisions of this Ordinance or of any 
federal, state, or local law.  Permits presuming to give authority to violate or 
cancel one (1) or more provisions of this Ordinance or of any other federal, state, 
or local law shall not be valid. 

 
4. Expiration. 

 
Every permit issued shall become invalid unless the sign authorized by such 
permit is completely erected, altered, or relocated within one hundred eighty 
(180) days after its issuance.  If an inspection has not been requested after one 
hundred eighty (180) days of permit issuance and the permit has not been 
extended, the permit shall expire without notice.  The Planning & Zoning 
Administrator is authorized to grant, in writing, one (1) extension of time for a 
period not more than one hundred eighty (180) days.  The extension shall be 
requested in writing and justifiable cause demonstrated. 

 
5. Suspension or Revocation. 

 
The Planning & Zoning Administrator is authorized to suspend or revoke a permit 
issued under the provision of this Ordinance whenever the permit has been 
issued in error; on the basis of incorrect, inaccurate, or incomplete information; 
or if the Planning & Zoning Administrator determines that the permit was 
granted in violation of this Ordinance or any other federal, state, or local law. 

 
6. Application Fee. 

 
An application fee shall be paid to the City for each permit required by this 
Ordinance in an amount set by resolution of the City Council.  All applicable fees 
must be paid prior to the Planning & Zoning Administrator’s review of the 
application. 

 



67 
 

7. Sign Maintenance. 
 
Maintenance of legally permitted signs or signs existing prior to the effective 
date of this Ordinance is allowed and shall not require a permit.  Sign 
maintenance includes, but is not limited to, the replacement or repair of a part 
or portion of a sign required by wear, tear, or damage, with like material, color, 
and design. 

 
8. Non-Issuance Due to Existing Illegality. 

 
Unless necessary to protect the health, safety, and general welfare of the 
community, a permit for a new sign shall not be issued for a lot upon which 
there exists an illegal sign or other violation of this Ordinance. 

 
9. Assignment. 

 
A current and valid permit is freely assignable to a successor as owner of the lot. 

 
10. Building Permit Not Required. 

 
If a conditional use permit, building permit, or other permit has been issued 
pursuant to this Chapter, the applicant is not required to obtain a sign permit for 
the sign until such time as the sign is altered or changed from its depiction on 
the plans used to approve the permit. 

 
B. Signs Not Regulated. 

 
The following signs may be allowed in addition to the signs permitted by this Ordinance.  
They do not require a sign permit, but must be in conformance with all other federal, 
state, and local laws. 
 
1. Names of buildings, dates of erection, monumental citations, commemorative 

tablets and the like, of permanent-type construction and made an integral part 
of the building structure. 
 

2. Street address, street name, or building identification signs necessary for first 
responders to locate the building, structure, or lot as necessary to respond to 
any fire or public safety emergency. 



68 
 

 
3. Signs located entirely inside a building or other enclosed place. 
 
4. Signs affixed to or painted on a display window. 
 
5. Signs erected by the City or other governmental entity. 
 
6. Signs regulated, approved, or otherwise required by federal or state agencies, 

including but not limited to, historical marker signs, official traffic control 
devices, etc. 

 
7. Holiday lights and decorations displayed during the appropriate time of the year. 
 
8. National, state, or historical flags or their emblem or insignia. 
 

C. Prohibited Signs. 
 
1. Signs that imitate an official traffic sign or signal or that are of a size, location, 

movement, content, coloring, or manner of illumination that may be reasonably 
confused with or construed as a traffic control device. 
 

2. Signs attached to trees, telephone poles, public benches, street lights, street 
signs, or otherwise placed on any public property or within the public right-of-
way.  This prohibition does not apply to signs that are integrated into the 
object’s support structure by design. 

 
3. Signs which obstruct any required ingress or egress from a building or structure. 
 
4. Abandoned signs. 
 
5. Signs placed on vehicles or trailers which are parked or otherwise located on a 

lot for the primary purpose of displaying the sign. 
 
6. Any sign that is not protected by either federal or state law, or otherwise 

allowed by this Ordinance. 
 

D. General Regulations. 
 



69 
 

The following shall apply to all signs unless otherwise indicated: 
 
1. Except as required by law, no sign may be displayed without the consent of the 

legal owner of the lot on which the sign is located.  For purposes of this section, 
the term “owner” shall mean the holder of the legal title to the lot and any party 
and person holding a present legal right to possession, control, or use of the lot. 

 
2. Except as required by law or otherwise permitted by the City, any sign installed 

or placed on public property shall be deemed illegal and shall be forfeited to the 
public and subject to confiscation.  In addition to other remedies hereunder, the 
City shall have the right to declare such sign to be a nuisance pursuant to the 
City’s municipal ordinances and act accordingly. 

 
3. No wall or projecting sign may project over the public right-of-way or sidewalk 

unless the building or structure to which the sign is attached is less than five (5) 
feet from said right-of-way or sidewalk.  In such a situation, the sign shall be 
placed at an adequate height so as not to interfere with pedestrians, vehicular 
traffic, or snow removal. 

 
E. Computations. 

 
1. Computation of Area of Individual Signs.  

 
The area of a sign face (which is also the sign area of a wall sign or other 
sign with only one face) shall be computed by means of the smallest 
square, circle, rectangle, triangle, or combination thereof that will 
encompass the extreme limits of the writing, representation, emblem, or 
other display, together with any material or color forming an integral part 
of the background of the display or used to differentiate the sign from 
the backdrop or structure against which it is placed, but not including any 
supporting framework, bracing, or decorative fence or wall when such 
fence or wall otherwise meets the requirements of this Ordinance and is 
clearly incidental to the display itself. 

 
2. Computation of Area of Multi-faced Signs. 

 
The sign area for a sign with more than one (1) face shall be computed by 
adding together the area of all sign faces visible from any single 



70 
 

viewpoint. When two (2) identical sign faces are placed back to back, so 
that both faces cannot be viewed from any point at the same time, and 
when such sign faces are part of the same sign structure and are not 
more than forty-two (42) inches apart, the sign area shall be computed 
by the measurement of the largest of the two (2) faces. 
 

3. Computation of Height. 
 

The height of a sign shall be computed as the distance from the grade at 
the base of the sign at normal grade to the top of the highest attached 
component of the sign. Normal grade shall be construed to be from 
finished grade. Any berms shall be construed to be a part of the sign base 
and added to the overall height of the sign. 

 
F. Permanent Signs. 

 
1. General Standards.  All permanent signs shall conform to the following 

standards: 
 

a. All signs shall be constructed of permanent materials and shall be 
permanently attached to the ground, building, or another structure by 
direct attachment to a wall, frame, or other sign structure. 

 
b. All signs shall be constructed to withstand a wind load of at least thirty 

(30) pounds per square foot. 
 

c. Signs shall be maintained in a safe and legible condition at all times. 
 

d. Nuisance.  Any permanent signs not meeting these standards shall be 
declared a nuisance and remedied pursuant to the City’s municipal 
ordinances.  

 
2. Single-Family Detached Dwelling or Single-Family Attached Dwelling(s). 

 
a. Each lot containing a single-family detached dwelling or single-family 

attached dwelling may have one (1) wall or freestanding sign. One (1) 
additional wall or freestanding sign shall be allowed per approved Home 
Occupation. Each sign shall be a maximum of two (2) square feet in area. 



71 
 

If placed as a freestanding sign, the sign shall not exceed two (2) feet in 
height above grade. 

 
3. Manufactured Home Parks. 

 
a. Each individual manufactured home space within the manufactured 

home park may have one (1) wall or freestanding sign. One (1) additional 
wall or freestanding sign shall be allowed per approved Home 
Occupation. Each sign shall be a maximum of two (2) square feet in area. 
If placed as a freestanding sign, the sign shall not exceed two (2) feet in 
height above grade. 
 

b. One (1) freestanding or wall sign shall be permitted at each entrance to 
the manufactured home park. Each sign shall have a maximum area of 
thirty-two (32) square feet. If placed as a freestanding sign, the sign shall 
not exceed six (6) feet in height above grade. 

 
4. Multiple-Family Dwelling. 

 
a. One (1) wall sign may be attached to each principal building. It shall have 

a maximum area of ten (10) square feet. 
 
b. One (1) freestanding sign shall be permitted per lot. It shall not exceed 

fifty (50) square feet in area nor be taller than six (6) feet above grade. 
 
c. Each individual dwelling unit within a multiple-family dwelling if 

immediately accessed through an exterior door may have one (1) wall or 
freestanding sign. One (1) additional wall sign shall be permitted for each 
dwelling unit if it is immediately accessed through an exterior door and it 
contains an approved Home Occupation. Each sign shall be a maximum of 
two (2) square feet in area. If placed as a freestanding sign, the sign shall 
not exceed two (2) feet in height above grade. 

 
5. House of Worship or School. 

 
a. Wall signs shall have a maximum area of ten (10) square feet. 
 



72 
 

b. Freestanding signs shall not exceed fifty (50) square feet in area nor be 
taller than six (6) feet above grade. 

 
6. NRC Lots Not Containing a Dwelling, House of Worship, or School. 

 
a. One (1) wall sign may be attached to each principal building. It shall have 

a maximum area of ten (10) square feet. 
 
b. One (1) freestanding sign shall be permitted per lot. It shall not exceed 

fifty (50) square feet in area nor be taller than six (6) feet above grade. 
 
7. R-1, R-2, or R-3 Lots Not Containing a Dwelling, House of Worship, Manufactured 

Home Park, or School. 
 
a. One (1) wall sign may be attached to each principal building. It shall have 

a maximum area of ten (10) square feet. 
 
b. One (1) freestanding sign shall be permitted per lot. It shall not exceed 

fifty (50) square feet in area nor be taller than six (6) feet above grade. 
 
8. CB Lots 

 
a. Wall, roof, and projecting signs shall be permitted so long as their 

cumulative area per lot does not exceed two (2) square feet per one (1) 
foot of lineal street frontage with a total maximum of two hundred (200) 
square feet. No portion of any wall, roof, or projecting sign shall exceed 
five (5) feet above the roofline of the building or structure to which it is 
attached. 

 
b. Freestanding signs shall be permitted so long as their cumulative total 

area per lot does not exceed one (1) square foot per one (1) foot of lineal 
street frontage with a total maximum of two hundred (200) square feet. 
No freestanding sign shall be taller than eighteen (18) feet above grade. 

 
9. GB Lots 

 
a. Wall, roof, and projecting signs shall be permitted so long as their 

cumulative area per lot does not exceed two (2) square feet per one (1) 



73 
 

foot of lineal street frontage with a total maximum of two hundred (200) 
square feet. No portion of any wall, roof, or projecting sign shall exceed 
five (5) feet above the roofline of the building or structure to which it is 
attached. 
 

b. Freestanding signs shall be permitted so long as their cumulative total 
area per lot does not exceed one (1) square foot per one (1) foot of lineal 
street frontage with a total maximum of two hundred (200) square feet. 
No freestanding sign shall be taller than thirty (30) feet above grade. 

 
10. LI and HI Lots 

 
a. Wall, roof, and projecting signs shall be permitted so long as their 

cumulative area per lot does not exceed one (1) square foot per three (3) 
feet of lineal street frontage with a maximum of one hundred (100) 
square feet.  No portion of any wall, roof, or projecting sign shall exceed 
five (5) feet above the roofline of the building or structure to which it is 
attached. 

 
b. Freestanding signs shall be permitted so long as each does not exceed 

one (1) square foot per three (3) lineal feet of street frontage with a 
maximum of one hundred (100) square feet. No freestanding sign shall be 
taller than twenty (20) feet above grade level. 

 
G. Temporary Signs. 

 
The requirements set forth herein shall apply to all temporary signs: 
 
1. General Standards.  All temporary signs shall conform to the following standards: 

 
a. No temporary sign may be illuminated in any manner. 

 
b. Any temporary sign larger than nine (9) square feet in area shall be 

located at least ten (10) feet from all lot lines. 
 

c. Signs shall be kept in good repair.  Faded, torn, damaged, or otherwise 
unsightly signs shall be repaired or removed.  In addition to other 
remedies hereunder, the City shall have the right to declare such sign to 



74 
 

be a nuisance pursuant to the City’s municipal ordinances and act 
accordingly. 

 
d. Signs shall be securely attached to a sign support, building, or other 

structure. 
 

2. Temporary Signs Requiring a Permit.  Unless it is exempt from requiring a permit 
in conformance with Chapter 12.06(G)(3), a lot’s temporary signs shall be limited 
to and conform to the following: 
 
a. R-1, R-2, and R-3 Lots 

 
One (1) wall or freestanding sign shall be allowed for up to sixty (60) days 
if it is larger than nine (9) square feet, but equal to or less than fifty (50) 
square feet in area.  If it is a freestanding sign, it cannot be taller than 
four (4) feet above grade. 
 

b. NRC, CB, GB, and HI Lots 
 
Two (2) wall or freestanding signs shall be allowed per calendar year so 
long as they do not cumulatively exceed two hundred (200) square feet in 
area.  Any such temporary sign shall be allowed for no longer than sixty 
(60) days and shall be located at least fifteen (15) feet from all lot lines. 

 
3. Temporary Signs Not Requiring a Permit.  A temporary sign that complies with 

the following standards does not require a permit: 
 
a. R-1, R-2, and R-3 Lots. 

 
i. One (1) wall or freestanding sign shall be allowed per lot so long 

as it does not exceed nine (9) square feet in area.  If it is a 
freestanding sign, it cannot be taller than four (4) feet above 
grade. 
 

ii. Two (2) additional wall or freestanding signs shall be allowed per 
lot for up to fourteen (14) consecutive days during a special event 
so long as it does not exceed nine (9) square feet in area.  If it is a 



75 
 

freestanding sign, it cannot be taller than four (4) feet above 
grade. 

 
iii. One (1) additional wall or freestanding sign up to nine (9) square 

feet in area shall be allowed per lot during any period of time in 
which the lot is available for sale, lease, or rent.  If it is a 
freestanding sign, it cannot be taller than four (4) feet above 
grade. 

 
b. NRC, CB, GB, LI, and HI Lots. 

 
i. Two (2) wall or freestanding signs shall be allowed per lot for up 

to sixty (60) days per calendar year so long as no individual sign 
exceeds nine (9) square feet in area.  If either or both is a 
freestanding sign, it cannot be taller than five (5) feet above 
grade. 
 

ii. Two (2) additional wall or freestanding signs shall be allowed per 
lot for up to thirty (30) consecutive days during a special event so 
long as no individual sign exceeds thirty (30) square feet in area.  
If either or both is a freestanding sign, it cannot be taller than five 
(5) feet above grade. 

 
iii. One (1) additional wall or freestanding sign up to forty five (45) 

square feet in area shall be allowed per lot during any period of 
time in which the lot is available for sale, lease, or rent.  If it is a 
freestanding sign, it cannot be taller than five (5) feet above 
grade. 

 
H. Off-Premise Signs 

 
Off-premise signs are allowed in the GB, LI, and HI Districts, subject to the following 
requirements: 
 
1. Off-premise signs will be allowed a maximum size of two hundred (200) square 

feet. 
 



76 
 

2. Signs will be allowed a maximum height of forty (40) feet and a minimum height 
of twelve (12) feet. 

 
3. Minimum setback for the sign face of ten (10) feet and a minimum setback for 

the sign structure of twenty two (22) feet. 
 

I. Nonconforming Signs 
 
Any sign existing on the date of adoption of this chapter that does not conform with the 
provisions of this Code is eligible for characterization as a “legal nonconforming sign” 
and is permitted to remain except as specified below. 
 
1. The sign has been altered in a fashion exceeding the allowed maintenance 

standards in subsection (d) below, or the sign has been relocated. 
 

2. The sign has been brought into compliance with this chapter. 
 
3. The sign is abandoned. 
 
4. Nonconforming signs may be maintained, altered, modified, or reconstructed 

provided that such changes do not increase the overall sign area or height.  
Nonconforming signs or portions thereof may be removed for maintenance, 
modifications, or reconstruction so long as they are replaced in their original 
positions and orientations upon completion of the work.  The alteration of a sign 
via the addition of a changeable copy or the addition of an electronic message 
center shall not constitute a change to the sign structure so long as the overall 
sign area is not enlarged; a new sign permit will be required for inspection 
purposes. 

 
12.07 Fences 

Fences may be erected in required yards, provided they meet or exceed the following 
requirements: 

A. No barbed wire fence shall be erected or maintained. 
 

B. No fence shall be erected or maintained in such manner as to unreasonably obstruct the 
view of others or their access to light or air. 



77 
 

 
C. For R-1, R-2, R-3, or CB District – Fences not more than six (6) feet in height may be 

erected on any part of a lot other than in the required front yard.  Fences not more than 
four (4) feet in height may be located on any part of the lot. 
 

D. On double frontage and corner lots used residentially, fences not more than six (6) feet 
in height may be placed in a required front yard abutting an arterial or collector street 
where: 
 
1. The required front yard abutting an arterial or collector street is not used as the 

front yard. 
 

2. The fence is set back a minimum of ten (10) feet from the property line abutting 
the arterial or collector street. 

 
3. Intersection safety zones are maintained. 
 

E. For GB, LI, or HI District – Fences not more than eight (8) feet in height may be erected 
on any part of a lot other than in the required front yard except any yard adjacent to a 
residential use. 
 

F. No fence shall be erected which violates 12.02. 
 

G. To preserve the neighborhood character of the Residential districts, fences along the 
perimeter of a front yard shall be of a traditional design and shall not be more than 30 
percent solid. 
 

H. The maximum fence height for golf courses, public swimming pools, school track and 
field areas, parks and ball parks shall be eight (8) feet and for public tennis courts, 
twelve (12) feet on any portion of the lot.  Fences associated with these uses shall not 
be more than 30 percent solid. 
 

I. Fences that are adjacent to alleys shall be set back five (5) feet from the 
street/boulevard right-of-way. 
 

J. The side of the fence considered being the face (facing as applied to the fence post) 
should face the abutting property. 
 



78 
 

K. In the event a fence is to be constructed on the property line, abutting property owners 
shall be notified prior to the issuance of a permit. 
 

L. The installation of a fence shall be in a manner as to which access to the City for the 
purposes of reading or maintaining utility meters is provided. 
 

M. The installation of fences in drainage easements shall be prohibited.  Fences placed in 
utility easements, and other designed easements will require prior approval from the 
City.  The City may enter easement for construction, reconstruction, replacement, 
repair, and maintenance purposes; and will be held harmless for the cost of the 
replacement or damage to any improvement or vegetation with the easement and may 
make any other appropriate or necessary requirements. 

 

12.08 Telecommunications Tower, Antenna Support Structures, and 
Wireless Communications Facilities 

Regulations regarding development of telecommunications towers, antenna structures and 
wireless communications facilities are intended to encourage the development of a competitive 
wireless communications marketplace while protecting the health, safety, and welfare of the 
public and maintaining the aesthetic integrity of the community.  The regulations cover the 
placement, construction, and modification of telecommunications facilities. 

A. A minimum distance of three hundred (300) feet from the telecommunications tower 
to any residentially zoned or used property measured from the base of the 
telecommunications tower to the property line. 
 

B. A minimum distance of ½ mile between telecommunications towers measured from 
the base of one telecommunications tower to the base of another except when an 
existing antenna support structure is used to co-locate a wireless communication 
facility. 

 
C. Building permit shall include documented Federal Communications Commission (FCC) 

approval prior to permit issuance. 
 

D. The maximum height for telecommunications towers and wireless communications 
facilities shall not exceed 100 feet for single users or 200 feet for two or more users.  



79 
 

When such structure is located in an airport approach zone, Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA) approval will be required prior to permit issuance. 

 
E. The tower shall be constructed in a manner that will make it inaccessible for 

unauthorized persons to climb. 

 

12.09 Site-Built Single-Family and Multi-Family Dwelling Standards 
 

A. All dwellings must be placed on a permanent foundation and the space between the 
foundation and the bottom of the home must be enclosed by concrete or approved 
concrete products. 
 

B. All single-family dwellings shall be oriented on the lot, so that the primary pedestrian 
entrance faces the street or access easement. 

 
C. The pitch of the main roof shall not be less than one foot of rise for each four feet of 

horizontal run.  Use of flat or corrugated sheet metal for roofing shall not be 
permitted. 

 
D. Roofing materials shall be wood shingle or shake, composition, asphalt laminate, clay 

or metal shingles.  Exposed fastener corrugated metal or corrugated fiberglass roofing 
is not permitted. 

 
E. The primary exterior finish of each residence shall be sided with hardboard siding, 

aluminum siding, steel siding, vinyl siding, stucco, brick, rock, or similar material.  The 
use of corrugated sheet metal for exterior walls is prohibited. 

 
F. No dwelling shall be constructed, installed, or moved into the area under the 

jurisdiction of these regulations, unless said dwelling is constructed upon, installed on 
or moved onto a permanent foundation as defined in these regulations, excepting 
manufactured homes placed in an approved R-3 district.  The Authorized Official or his 
or her designee shall inspect and authorize all dwellings moved into the City of Crooks.  
For the purposes of these regulations, manufactured housing shall be allowed only in 
the R-3 Manufactured Housing Residential District. 

 



80 
 

G. The minimum width of the main body of the site-built dwelling shall not be less than 
twenty (20) feet, as measured across the narrowest portion. 

 
 

12.10 Landscaping Standards 

It is the desire of the City of Crooks to encourage development which is environmentally 
sensitive and aesthetically pleasing.  To assist in these objectives, a minimum standard for 
landscaping is prescribed. 

A. Within any zoning district, at least 90 percent of the required front yard setback shall 
be landscaped and maintained with living ground cover except for the portion of the 
front yard necessary for hard surfaced driveways (see 12.04). 
 

B. Within GB, CB, LI, and HI districts, one tree per 50 feet of lot width is required.  No 
more than 25 percent of the required trees may be deciduous ornamental, evergreen, 
or coniferous trees. 

 
C. Each existing tree of at least 1 ¾ -inch caliper in size shall count toward the tree 

requirement. 
 

D. The unpaved portion of a dedicated public right-of-way abutting any development 
shall be landscaped with sod, seed, or other living ground cover. 

 
E. Landscape areas must be capable of providing a substantially full expanse of foliage 

within three years after planting.  All deciduous trees shall be 1 3/4 -inch caliper and 
all deciduous ornamentals shall be 1 ¼ -inch caliper.  These requirements are 
considered to be minimum requirements, and under no circumstances shall these 
measurements be lowered. 

 
F. Screening.  A fence, wall, or shrubbery six (6) feet in height and of a character 

necessary for adequate screening shall be installed or planted when a parking lot is 
located adjacent to residentially used property or across the right-of-way from 
residentially used property (unless the right-of-way is an arterial street).  Berms or 
other landscaping techniques may be used for all or part of the six (6) foot screening if 
they have a maximum grade of three (3) feet horizontal to one (1) foot vertical and 
sodded or planted with other acceptable living ground cover. 

 



81 
 

G. Parking Lot Buffer Areas.  A setback of at least five (5) feet shall be provided between 
a parking lot and residentially zoned property. 

 
Exception: If proper screening is provided, the setback may be two (2) feet. 

 
H. Lighting Standards.  When property is adjacent to or within one hundred and fifty 

(150) feet of residentially used or zoned property, the following lighting standards 
apply: 
 
1. The maximum light level shall be no greater than three (3) foot candles field 

measured at the property line (ground level). 
 

2. The maximum height of light luminaries shall be twenty five (25) feet above 
the ground. 

 
3. Canopy luminaries and other on-site lighting with luminaries greater than 2000 

lumens shall include a 90-degree cut-off type, deflector, refractor, or forward 
throw light fixture. 

 
4. The maximum number of canopy luminaries shall be determined by the 

following industry standard: 
 

Canopy length (ft.) x canopy width (ft.) x 3 = Max. Luminaries Lamp Wattage 

 All other light luminaries shall have a maximum height of 38 feet above the ground.  
Submittal of photometric plans shall be required with all site plan checks for building 
projects on property with lighted parking lots or lighted canopies. 

 The following structures or uses are exempt from these lighting standards: public 
recreation facilities, parks, pedestrian walkways, illuminated flags or statutes, airport 
runways, telecommunication towers, broadcast towers, and historic period lighting. 

 

12.11 Home Occupations 

Home occupations are those secondary uses allowed on a premise in conjunction with the 
following: 



82 
 

A. The use of a dwelling unit for a home occupation shall be clearly incidental and 
subordinate to its residential use.  This standard is met by and limited to one of the 
following: 
 
1. No more than the lesser of 25 percent or 500 square feet of the floor area of 

the dwelling is devoted to the home occupation; or 
 

2. One hundred and sixty (160) square feet of an accessory building is devoted to 
the home occupation. 

 
B. Not more than one volunteer and/or nonresident employee, partner, or other person 

engaging in the conduct of the home occupation for pay or profit shall work on the 
subject property. 
 

C. Any sign for the Home Occupation must comply with the provisions of Chapter 
12.06(F)(2)(a) and Chapter 12.06(F)(3)(a) of these Zoning Regulations. 

 
D. Such occupations shall not require substantial internal or external alterations or 

involve construction features not customary in a dwelling. 
 

E. No more than 20% of merchandise, including samples, can be sold on the premises. 
 

F. Materials that are combustible, toxic or consist of any animal or vegetable matter 
cannot be stored on the premises. 

 
G. Any process which will cause odor, dust, glare, noise, heat or vibration which would 

have a negative effect on adjacent properties would not be allowed. 
 

 

12.12 Manufactured Home Requirements 
 

A. The manufactured home shall meet or exceed the current federal Manufactured 
Home Construction Safety Standards. 
 

B. Each manufactured home shall be properly secured to the ground with either a 
permanent foundation extending no less than four (4) feet below grade, or with tie 
downs installed as recommended by the manufacturer, but in no event more than 



83 
 

twelve (12) feet apart along the perimeter of the structure.  Such tie downs shall 
extend down no less than four (4) feet below grade. 

 
C. Each manufactured home shall be skirted with material approved by the Zoning 

Administrator.  Skirting shall be installed as recommended by the manufacturer.  
Skirting shall be of a material which is compatible with the appearance and condition 
of neighboring dwelling units.  Appropriate materials shall include commercially 
manufactured colored steel, fiberglass, plastic or masonry materials.  Tie downs and 
skirting shall be installed prior to occupancy. 

 
D. Each manufactured home shall be connected to the municipal wastewater collection 

system and municipal water supply system. 
 

E. The manufactured home shall be aesthetically compatible with the neighboring 
dwelling units, including but not limited to the following factors: width, length, area, 
number of stories, siding and roofing materials, roof style and pitch, and condition. 

 
F. No manufactured home placed within the City limits of Crooks may exceed ten years 

from the date of manufacture. 
 

 

12.13 Bed and Breakfast Establishments 
 

A. Bed and Breakfast establishments shall be limited to a residential structure. 
 

B. They shall comply with applicable state laws including South Dakota Department of 
Health  The Bed and Breakfast establishment must maintain a guest list and provide a 
smoke detector in each sleeping room. 

 
C. Such uses shall be an incidental use with an owner-occupied principal dwelling 

structure provided that not more than four (4) bedrooms in such dwelling structure 
shall be used for such purpose. 

 
D. Off-street parking requirements shall be one space per guest room and shall be in 

addition to the parking requirements for the residence. 
 



84 
 

E. The length of stay shall not exceed fourteen (14) days during any one hundred and 
twenty (120) day consecutive period. 

 
F. Meals shall be limited to breakfast which is prepared in a common facility (household 

kitchen).  Meals may be served only to overnight registered guests and cooking is not 
permitted in the sleeping rooms. 

 

12.14 Architectural Standards 

These standards are intended to promote the general welfare of the community as well as 
protect the value of its buildings and property.  Additionally, these standards serve to minimize 
incompatible and unsightly surroundings and visual blight which prevent orderly community 
development.  However, it is not the intent of these standards to unduly restrict design 
freedom or to apply a particular architectural style to all structures. 

A. Commercial Standards.  The following standards shall apply to commercial buildings in 
Central Business and General Business zoning districts (Sections 7.01, 7.02, 8.01, and 
8.02). 
 
1. Exterior building material shall be composed of high quality, durable, low 

maintenance material, such as wood, masonry, stone, brick, glass, or 
comparable materials. 
 

2. The front façade of the building should address its primary access street with 
entrances, windows, and architectural features facing the street.  No overhead 
door or docking bays shall face the street, unless first approved by the 
Authorized Official.  In the case where the side or rear façades face a street, or 
if parking is located at the side or rear of a building, the façade shall be 
designed to enhance, and not detract, from the building’s overall appearance, 
using materials and architectural features similar to those present on the front 
of the building. 

 
3. All loading and unloading areas, as well as docking bays, shall be maintained 

and kept free of trash or litter. 
 

4. Variation in architectural details will be encouraged to provide visual variation 
and interest. 

 



85 
 

5. Windows in a commercial building in areas fronting its primary access street or 
with entrances used by the public should cover at least thirty (30) percent of 
the front façade and be at eye level.  Windows may be constructed from 
reflective glass for “office uses,” but shall not be used for retail stores of any 
kind. 

 
6. All mechanical equipment, including but not limited to, electrical, heating 

ventilating, air conditioning equipment, and antennae shall be placed in an 
inconspicuous location or screened from view.  If equipment is placed on 
rooftops, it shall also be screened from the public view in a manner that does 
not draw attention to the placement of the equipment. 

 
7. Lighting shall comply with the standards set forth in Section 12.10(H). 

 
8. Façade colors shall be of a low reflectance, subtle or earth-tone colors.  The 

use of high intensity colors, metallic colors, black or fluorescent colors is 
prohibited.  Neon tubing as a building accent is prohibited.   

 
9. Long, massive, unbroken, or monotonous building facades shall be prohibited. 

 
10. Building facades greater than one hundred (100) feet in length shall 

incorporate recesses and projections along at least twenty (20) percent of the 
façade. 

 
11. Architectural interest shall be provided through the use of repeating patterns 

of changes in color, texture, and material modules. 
 

12. There shall be variations in roof lines to reduce the massive scale of the 
structure and add visual interest. 

 
13. Size and height of buildings should be compatible with the character and 

existing views of the surrounding area. 
 

12.15 Cannabis Establishments 
 

A. Intent.  To minimize the negative effects that Cannabis Establishments have on 
adjacent land uses and to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of 
the City, the City Council adopts the following regulations, recognizing that the City 



86 
 

has a great interest in the present and future character of its residential and 
commercial neighborhoods. 
 
Adoption of these regulations is not intended to unreasonably restrict the opportunity 
of cannabis establishments to locate in the City, but rather to ensure Cannabis 
Establishments are not located in areas contrary to public interest, injurious to nearby 
properties, nor concentrated in one area of the City. 
 

B. Definitions.  Unless an alternative definition is explicitly state in this section, this 
chapter utilizes the definitions for cannabis related terms which are defined by SDCL 
34-20G-1. 
 
CANNABIS (or MARIJUANA) – All parts of any plant of the genus cannabis, whether 
growing or not, in its natural and unaltered state, except for drying or curing and 
crushing or crumbling.  The term includes an altered state of marijuana absorbed into 
the human body.  The term does not include fiber produced from the mature stalks of 
such plant, or oil or cake made from the seeds of such plant.  The term does not 
include the plant Cannabis sativa L. and any part of that plant, including the seeds 
thereof and all derivatives, extracts, cannabinoids, isomers, acids, salts, and salts of 
isomers, whether growing or not, with a delta-9 tetrahydrocannabinol concentration 
of not more than three-tenths of one percent on a dry weight basis. 
 
CANNABIS CULTIVATION FACILITY – A legally licensed entity that acquires, possesses, 
cultivates, delivers, transfers, transports, supplies, or sells cannabis and related 
supplies to a cannabis establishment. 
 
CANNABIS DISPENSARY – A legally licensed entity that acquire, possesses, stores, 
delivers, transfers, transports, sells, supplies, or dispenses cannabis, cannabis 
products, paraphernalia, or related supplies and educational materials. 
 
CANNABIS PRODUCT MANUFACTURING FACILITY – A legally licensed entity that 
acquires, possesses, manufactures, delivers, transfers, transports, supplied, or sells 
cannabis products to a cannabis dispensary. 
 
CANNABIS TESTING FACILITY – A legally licensed entity legally authorized to analyze 
the safety and potency of cannabis. 
 
CITY – The city of Crooks, South Dakota. 



87 
 

 
NON-LICENSED CANNABIS ESTABLISHMENT – An entity which would otherwise meet 
the definition of a cannabis establishment, but which is not legally licensed. 
 

C. Location for Cannabis Dispensary.  No Cannabis Dispensary shall be owned or 
operated at a location within the City’s zoning jurisdiction except as provided by this 
section.  A Cannabis Dispensary shall be considered a permitted use in the following 
districts: Light Industrial (LI) and General Business (GB).  A Cannabis Dispensary shall 
be considered a conditional use in the following districts: Central Business (CB). 
 

D. Cannabis Dispensary Regulations. 
 

1. Maximum Number of Cannabis Dispensaries.  The City shall allow no more 
than one (1) Cannabis Dispensary provided the time, place, and manner of said 
Cannabis Dispensary complies with this ordinance. 
 

2. Required Separation Distances. 
 

a. The Cannabis Dispensary shall be located not less than one thousand 
(1,000) feet from a public or private school existing before the date of 
the Cannabis Dispensary application. 
 

b. The Cannabis Dispensary shall be located not less than five hundred 
(500) feet from primary structures of churches, residences, libraries, 
and day care facilities, and property lines of public parks existing before 
the date of the Cannabis Dispensary application. 

 
c. Exemptions.  Any separation distance requirement, other than the 

State requirement from schools (1,000 feet), may be waived, provided 
the applicant provides documentation waiving the setback 
requirements from the title holder of the land benefitting from the 
separation. 

 
d. Prescribed separation/setback distances from certain existing uses are 

to be measured from the primary structure where the Cannabis 
Dispensary is proposed. 

 
3. Other Location Requirements. 



88 
 

 
a. Permanent or temporary Cannabis Establishments are prohibited in all 

other zoning districts and not eligible for a home occupation use. 
 

b. It shall be unlawful to operate a Cannabis Dispensary in a building 
which contains a residence or a mixed-use building with commercial 
and residential use. 

 
4. Controlled Access.  No Cannabis Establishment shall share premises with or 

permit access directly from a business that sells alcohol or tobacco, or, if 
allowed by law, other Cannabis Establishments. 
 

5. Hours of Operation.  The Cannabis Dispensary is allowed to be open between 
the hours of 9:00am to 9:00pm on Monday through Sunday. 

 
6. Documentation of State Licensure.  No Cannabis Dispensary shall acquire, 

possess, store, deliver, transfer, transport, supply or dispense cannabis, 
cannabis products or paraphernalia without providing documentation of 
licensure from the State of South Dakota. 

 
7. The Zoning Official is authorized to issue permits (building and/or use) for the 

Cannabis Dispensary subject to the following: 
 

a. Submission of a site plan containing the following: 
 

I. Any information required for applicable building permit; 
II. Ingress and egress plan; 

III. Parking plan; 
IV. Lighting plan (including security lighting) 
V. Screening/security fencing plan; 

VI. Refuse plan; 
VII. Hours of operation; and 

VIII. Any other information as lawfully may be required by 
the Zoning Official to determine compliance with this 
ordinance. 
 

b. Documentation of ability to meet setback/separation requirements. 
 



89 
 

c. Documentation of State Licensure. 
 

8. The Cannabis Dispensary is required to be constructed in conformation with 
the 2021 Edition of the International Building Code and International Fire 
Code. 
 

E. Prohibited Districts for Non-Licensed Cannabis Establishments.  All Non-Licensed 
Cannabis Establishments are prohibited in all zoning districts. 
 

F. Prohibition of Cannabis Cultivation Facility, Cannabis Testing Facility, and Cannabis 
Product Manufacturing Facility.  The City does not allow any of the following Cannabis 
Establishments within the City: 

 
1. Cannabis Cultivation Facility. 

 
2. Cannabis Testing Facility. 

 
3. Cannabis Product Manufacturing Facility. 

 

12.16 Mini-Warehouses and Consumer Storage Units 
 

A. All warehouses, mini-warehouses, and commercial storage units must be at least one 
hundred (100) feet away from any residential district.  When abutting a residential 
district, a landscape buffer and screening must be provided within the side and rear 
yard setbacks.  Said buffer and screening strip must consist of any combination of 
berming, fencing, and vegetaton which will provide a six (6) foot high visual buffer. 
 

B. Perimeter walls shall be designed with physical breaks, façade material changes, or 
other architectural details and features (not just paint) intended to mimic the style of 
a retail structure as opposed to a continuous, visually monotonous warehouse wall. 

 
C. All warehouses, mini-warehouses, and commercial storage units must have exterior 

doors that conceal all items inside from external view.  No items may be stored 
outside of units. 

 
D. Overhead doors shall be oriented to the interior of the site or screened from street 

view with a six (6) foot high barrier such as a fence or hedge. 



90 
 

 
E. Materials stored on the premises shall have a level 1 or below in the Fire Protection 

Guide on Hazardous Materials. 
 

F. Must be paved with a hard surfaced concrete or asphalt driveway connecting to an 
adjacent public street. 
 

G. Structural coverage of the total lot area must not exceed 40%. 

 

 

  



91 
 

Chapter 13 – Adjustments to Yard 
Regulations 

13.01 Adjustments to Front Yard Requirements 

A front yard may be adjusted to an average of the adjacent structures’ front yards where 
existing adjacent structures have a front yard less than required. 

13.02 Adjustments to Side Yard Requirements 

Buildings constructed prior to the effective date of this Ordinance with side yard setbacks of 
less than required by this Ordinance, may have additions erected in line with the existing 
building and provided further that said addition will be erected no closer to the lot line than the 
existing building. 

13.03 Projection from Buildings 

Every part of any required yard shall be open to the sky and unobstructed except: 

A. Eaves may project into a front, side, or rear yard; 
 

B. Ordinary projection of sills, belt courses, cornices, vertical solar screen, ornamental 
features which may project twelve (12) inches; 

 
C. Air conditioners may project into a required side or rear yard setback; 

 
D. Solar collectors which are a part of the main building may extend into a required rear 

yard for a distance not to exceed ten feet; 
 

E. An open, unenclosed porch may project into a required front yard for a distance not 
exceeding ten (10) feet.  Balconies and paved terraces may project into a required 
front yard for a distance not exceeding six (6) feet.  An enclosed vestibule containing 
not more than 40 square feet may project into a required front yard for a distance not 
to exceed four (4) feet; and 

 
F. Terraces, uncovered porches, platforms, decks, and ornamental features which do not 

extend above the level of ground (first) floor may project into a required yard, 



92 
 

provided these projections be distances at least two feet from the adjacent side or 
rear lot line. 

 

 

 

  



93 
 

Chapter 14 – Non-Conforming Uses 
 

14.01 Uses and Structures 

A lawful use or structure existing at the time this ordinance is adopted or amended may 
continue even though such use does not conform with the district regulations subject to the 
following provisions: 

A. Whenever a nonconforming use or structure has been changed to a more restricted or 
conforming use, it shall not be changed back to a less restricted use. 
 

B. Should any conforming use or structure be destroyed by any means to the extent of 
more than 50% of its replacement cost, such nonconforming use shall not continue. 

 
C. When a nonconforming use or structure is discontinued for a period of one year, the 

City Council may adopt, after notice by certified mail to the property owners, an 
amortization schedule to bring about the gradual elimination of such nonconforming 
use. 

 
D. Any nonconforming use may be extended throughout any part of a structure which 

was arranged or designed for such use previous to the adoption of this ordinance, but 
shall not be extended outside such structure. 

 
E. No existing nonconforming use or structure shall be enlarged, moved, or structurally 

altered except to change to a permitted use.  This is not to include normal repairs and 
maintenance which do not enlarge, move, or structurally alter a nonconforming use. 

 
 

14.02 Continuation of Non-Standard Uses 

Nonstandard uses existing immediately prior to the effective date of this ordinance may be 
continued, although such uses do not conform to the provisions hereof.  Nonstandard buildings 
or structures may be enlarged or extended, converted, reconstructed, or structurally altered as 
follows: 



94 
 

A. Enlargements, extensions, conversions, or structural alterations may be made as 
required by law or ordinance. 
 

B. Structural alteration of buildings or structures may otherwise be made if such changes 
do not encroach into an existing front yard, side yard, or rear yard which is less than 
the minimum required yards for the district in which they are located. 

 
C. Enlargement, extension, conversion of buildings or structures may otherwise be made 

if such changes comply with the minimum required yards, lot area, height, 
landscaping, parking, and density for the district in which they are located. 

 

 

 

  



95 
 

Chapter 15 – Administration and 
Enforcement 
 

15.01 Powers and Duties 

The Authorized Official is hereby authorized and directed to enforce all the provisions of the 
Zoning Ordinance and establish rules for its administration.  For such purposes, he or she shall 
have the powers of a law enforcement officer.  The Authorized Official shall have the power to 
render interpretations of this ordinance.  Such interpretations shall be within the intent and 
purpose of the Zoning Ordinance and be set forth in writing.  In addition, the Authorized Official 
may appoint or solicit technical advice from inspectors, city officials, and other city employees 
to assist with the administration of the Zoning Ordinance.  The Authorized Official shall be a City 
employee, with work week, hours of work, and salary to be determined by the City Council or 
another person approved by the City Council.  With approval of the City Council, the Mayor 
shall appoint the Authorized Official. 

15.02 Right of Entry 

Whenever necessary to make an inspection or to enforce any of the provisions of this title, the 
Authorized Official and authorized representatives may enter such building or premise at all 
reasonable times to inspect.  Provided such building or premises is occupied, the Authorized 
Official shall first present proper credentials and request entry.  If such building or premises is 
unoccupied, the Authorized Official shall first make a reasonable effort to locate the owner or 
other persons having charge or control of the building or premises and request entry.  If such 
entry is refused, the Authorized Official shall have recourse to every remedy provided by law to 
secure entry. 

When the Authorized Official or authorized representative shall have first obtained a proper 
inspection warrant or other remedy provided by law to secure entry of the building or 
premises, no owner or occupant or any other person having charge, care, or control of any 
building or premise shall fail or neglect to promptly permit entry. 

15.03 Stop Order 

Whenever any work or use is being done contrary to the provisions of this title, the Authorized 
Official may order the work or use stopped by notice in writing served on any person engaged 



96 
 

in the doing or causing such work to be done, and any such persons shall forthwith stop such 
work or until authorized by the Authorized Official to proceed with the work or use. 

 

 

  



97 
 

Chapter 16 – Building Permits and Fees 

16.01 Building Permits 

No new development, change of use, moving in/moving out of structures, demolition, or other 
action which may be regulated by the provisions of this ordinance including use, height, 
number of occupants, lot area, off-street parking or yard requirements, shall occur without a 
Building Permit issued by the Authorized Official, or his of her authorized designee, of the City 
of Crooks. 

A. An application for building permit, available from the City’s Authorized Official, shall 
be completed by the landowner or his or her representative requesting the building 
permit.  Completed applications shall be returned to the City’s Authorized Official for 
review.  To be considered complete, the application form shall be accompanied by the 
following items: 
 

1. Any required attachments and City fees; 
 

2. A copy of plans drawn to scale, showing the dimensions and shape of the lot to 
be built upon; the exact sizes and locations on the lot of buildings already 
existing, if any; and the location and dimensions of the proposed building or 
alteration; 

 
3. Any additional information, as requested by the City’s Authorized Official, as 

lawfully may be required to determine conformance with and provide for the 
enforcement of this ordinance. 

 

16.02 Fees 

A schedule of fees, charges, and expenses for permits, change of zone, appeals, and other 
matters pertaining to this Zoning Ordinance shall be established by resolution of the City 
Council.  The current fees schedule shall be available from the Authorized Official of the City of 
Crooks.  All fees shall be the property of the City and shall be paid over to the Authorized 
Official of the City of Crooks for credit to the General Fund of the City which under no condition 
shall be refunded.  Until all applicable fees, charges, and expenses have been paid in full, no 
action shall be taken on any application or appeal. 

16.03 Expiration of a Building Permit 



98 
 

Every building permit issued under the provisions of this Chapter shall expire by limitation and 
become null and void if the work or use authorized by such permit is not completed within 365 
days or is not commenced within 180 days from the date of such permit, or if the work or use 
authorized by such permit is suspended or abandoned at any time after the work is 
commenced for a period of 180 days.  Before such work can be recommenced, a new permit 
shall gist be obtained to do so, provided no changes have been made or will be made in the 
original plans and specifications for such work and provided further that such suspension or 
abandonment has not exceeded one year. 

Any permittee holding an unexpired permit may apply for an extension of the time within 
which he may commence work under that permit when he is unable to commence work within 
the time required for this section for good and satisfactory reasons.  The Authorized Official 
may, except as otherwise provided herein, extend the time for action by the permittee for a 
period not exceeding 365 days upon written request by the permittee showing that 
circumstances beyond the control of the permittee have prevented action from being taken. 

 

 

  



99 
 

Chapter 17 – Board of Adjustment 

17.01 Establishment 

A Board of Adjustment is hereby established for the City of Crooks, which shall consist of the 
members of the City Council, pursuant to SDCL 11-4-24. 

17.02 Powers and Duties 

The Board of Adjustment shall have the following powers and duties: 

A. To hear and decide appeals where it is alleged there is error in any requirement or 
determination made by the Authorized Official of the City of Crooks in the 
enforcement of this ordinance. 
 

B. To hear and decide upon petitions for variances to vary the strict applications of the 
height, area, setback, yard, parking, or density requirements as will not be contrary to  
the public interest.  A variance shall not be allowed to vary the use regulations. 

 
C. To hear and decide only such conditional use permits as the Board of Adjustments is 

specifically authorized to pass on by the terms of this ordinance; to decide such 
questions as are involved in determining whether conditional use permits should be 
granted; and to grant conditional use permits with such conditions and safeguards as 
are appropriate under this ordinance, or to deny conditional use permits when not in 
harmony with the purpose and intent of this ordinance and the comprehensive plan. 

 
 

17.03 Appeal Procedure 
 

A. Any person or persons, jointly or severally, aggrieved by any decision of the 
Authorized Official, may present to that Official a notice of appeal setting forth that 
such decision is illegal, in whole or in part, specifying the grounds of the illegality.  The 
notice of appeal shall be filed with the Authorized Official of the City of Crooks, who 
shall transmit to the Board of Adjustment all information and records concerning the 
appeal.  Such notice of appeal shall be presented to the Authorized Official within 
thirty (30) days after the filing of the decision in the office of the Authorized Official. 
 



100 
 

B. The Board of Adjustment shall keep a public record of all findings and decisions.  All 
meetings shall be held at the call of the Chairman and at such other times as 
necessary.  Each session at which an appeal is to be heard shall be a public meeting.  
No less than ten (10) days before the public hearing, the Authorized Official of the City 
of Crooks shall publish notice of the public hearing in the legal newspaper of the city. 

 
C. The public hearing shall be held.  The appellant may appear in person, or by agent or 

attorney.  Minutes of the public hearing shall be recorded and kept in the records of 
the Board of Adjustment.  Written findings certifying compliance with the specific 
rules governing the action considered at the public hearing shall be completed by the 
Board.  The concurring cote of two-thirds (2/3) of the members of the Board of 
Adjustment shall be necessary to approve any appeal or arrive at any determination. 

 
 

17.04 Variances 

The Board of Adjustment shall have the jurisdiction to hear and decide upon petitions for 
variances to vary the strict application of the height, area, setback, yard, parking, or density 
requirements as will not be contrary to the public interest.  For purposes of these regulations, 
public interest shall include the interests of the public at large within the City, not just 
neighboring property owners.  At all times, the burden shall be on the applicant to prove the 
need for a variance.  The following issues are to be considered, each and all of them, as 
determining factors in whether or not the issuance of a variance is justified: 

A. An unnecessary hardship must be established by the applicant who applies for the 
variance.  For purposes of this Chapter, an unnecessary hardship is a situation where, 
in the absence of a variance, an owner can make no feasible or reasonable use of the 
property.  Convenience, loss of profit, financial limitations, or self-imposed hardship 
shall not be considered as grounds for approving a variance by the Board of 
Adjustment. 
 

B. Literal interpretation of the provisions of this ordinance would deprive the applicant 
of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same district under the terms 
of this ordinance. 

 
C. The variance requested is the minimum variance that will alleviate the hardship. 

 
D. Granting the variance will comply with the general purpose and intent of this 

ordinance, and will not be offensive to adjacent areas or to the public welfare. 



101 
 

 
E. No nonconforming use or structure in the same district and no permitted or 

nonconforming use or structure in other districts shall be considered grounds for the 
issuance of a variance. 

 
F. Exceptional and extraordinary circumstances apply to the property that do not apply 

to other properties in the same zone or vicinity and that result from lot size or shape, 
topography, or other circumstances which are not of the applicant’s making. 

 
G. In order to preserve the intent of these Zoning Regulations and to protect the public 

interest, the Board of Adjustment may attach conditions to a Variance.  A Variance 
shall remain valid only as long as the property owner complies with any terms and 
conditions of the Variance, as attached by the Board of Adjustment. 

 
H. An application for a Variance, available from the Authorized Official of the City of 

Crooks, shall be completed by the landowner requesting the Variance.  Completed 
applications shall be returned to the Authorized Official for review.  To be considered 
completed, the application shall contain the following information: 

 
1. Legal description of the land on which such variance is requested, together 

with local street address; 
 

2. Name and address of each owner of the property; 
 

3. Name, address, phone number, and signature of the applicant; 
 

4. Zoning district classification under which the property is regulated at the time 
of such zoning application; 

 
5. Description of the variance sought from the Zoning Regulations; 

 
6. Be accompanied with a site plan, unless waived by the Authorized Official. 

 
I. The Authorized Official shall review the application, and shall make a recommendation 

to the Board of Adjustment to either approve or not approve said application.  The 
Authorized Official’s recommendation shall include a summary of the application, and 
the reasons and justification for either approval or disapproval of the application.  The 



102 
 

Authorized Official or the Board of Adjustment may refer requests for variances to the 
Crooks Planning Commission for review and recommendation. 
 

J. The Authorized Official shall set the date, time, and place for a public hearing to be 
held by the Board of Adjustment.  The Authorized Official shall notify the landowner 
by mail, and shall post notices of the public hearing at the City Office and on the 
property affected by the proposed Variance no less than seven (7) days prior to the 
scheduled public hearing.  No less than ten (10) days before the public hearing, the 
Authorized Official shall publish notice of the public hearing in a legal newspaper of 
the city. 

 
K. The public hearing shall be held.  The applicant may appear in person, or by agent or 

attorney.  Minutes of the public hearing shall be recorded and kept in the records of 
the Board of Adjustment.  Written findings certifying compliance with the specific 
rules governing the action considered at the public hearing shall be completed by the 
Board.  The concurring cote of two-thirds (2/3) of the members of the Board of 
Adjustment shall be necessary to approve any variance or arrive at any determination. 

 
 

17.05 Court Review 

Any person aggrieved by any decision of the Board of Adjustment may petition a court of 
record within thirty (30) days after the filing of the Board’s decision as provided by SDCL 11-4-
25. 

 

 

  



103 
 

Chapter 18 – Amendments and Change of 
Zone 

18.01 Procedure 

Zoning amendments and change of zones are changes to the City of Crooks’ Zoning Regulations.  
Applications for amendment may be submitted by either the City or any owner of land within 
the City.  The regulations, restrictions, and boundaries set forth in this ordinance may, from 
time to time, be amended, supplemented, or repealed, provided however, that no such action 
may be taken until after public hearings, at which parties in interest and citizens shall have an 
opportunity to be heard. 

The following procedure for requesting an amendment shall be followed: 

A. The Authorized Official of the City of Crooks shall review the application for 
amendment or change of zone and forward the application and his/her comments to 
the Planning Commission for review. 
 

B. The Authorized Official of the City of Crooks shall set the date, time, and place for a 
Planning Commission Public Hearing.  The Authorized Official of the City of Crooks 
shall publish notice of the public hearing in a legal newspaper of the city once not less 
than ten (10) days prior to the public hearing.  At least two signs shall be posted on 
the property for a continuous period of seven (7) days immediately prior to any public 
hearing held by the Planning Commission to consider any rezoning application. 

 
C. The public hearing shall be held.  Any person may appear in person, or by agent or 

attorney.  Minutes of the public hearing shall be recorded and kept in the records of 
the Planning Commission. 

 
D. The Planning Commission shall either recommend or not recommend approval of the 

amendment to the City Council. 
 

E. The Authorized Official of the City of Crooks shall set the date, time, and place for a 
City Council Public Hearing.  The Authorized Official of the City of Crooks shall publish 
notice of the public hearing in a legal newspaper of the city once not less than ten (10) 
days prior to the public hearing.  At least two signs shall be posted on the property for 



104 
 

a continuous period of seven (7) days immediately prior to any public hearing held by 
the City Council to consider any rezoning application. 

 
F. The City Council shall either approve or not approve the ordinance describing the 

proposed amendment or change of zone to these Zoning Regulations, in accordance 
with standard procedures for reading, approval, publication, and effective date. 

 
G. When a proposed amendment or change of zone is approved by the City Council, the 

amendment shall take effect twenty (20) days after publication, unless the 
referendum shall have been invoked. 

 

 

 

  



105 
 

Chapter 19 – Conditional Use Permits 

19.01 Conditional Uses 

Any conditional use approved by the Board of Adjustment shall conform to the standards set 
forth for such uses below.  These standards shall be construed to be the minimum 
requirements for any of the specified conditional uses, and the Board of Adjustment may 
require additional reasonable stipulations at their discretion.  In all cases, the impact of the 
proposed use on adjacent properties shall be a major consideration. 

A. Procedure.  The Board of Adjustment may authorize by Conditional Use Permit those 
uses specifically designated as Conditional Uses in Chapters 3 through 10.  The Board 
of Adjustment shall impose such conditions as are appropriate and necessary to insure 
compliance with the Comprehensive Plan and protect the health, safety, and general 
welfare in the issuance of such Conditional Use Permit. 
 

B. Application.  To obtain a Conditional Use Permit, the applicant shall file an application, 
therefore, in writing on a form furnished by the Authorized Official or Finance Officer.  
Every application shall contain the following information: 

 
1. Legal description of the land on which such Conditional Use is requested, 

together with local street address; 
 

2. Name and address of each owner of the property; 
 

3. Name, address, phone number, and signature of the applicant; 
 

4. Zoning district classification under which the property is regulated at the time 
of such application; 

 
5. Be accompanied with a site plan, unless waived by the Authorized Official; 

 
6. Any other information concerning the property as may be requested by the 

Authorized Official or the Board of Adjustment. 
 

C. Fees.  Upon the filing of any application for a Conditional Use Permit with the 
Authorized Official, the applicant shall pay to the City the appropriate fee as 
designated by Resolution of the City Council. 



106 
 

 
D. Information on Site Plan.  In addition to the information, plans shall be drawn to scale 

upon substantial paper or cloth and shall be of sufficient clarity to indicate the 
location, nature, and extent of the work proposed and show in detail that it will 
conform to the provisions of this Chapter and all relevant laws, ordinances, rules, and 
regulations.  The Authorized Official may waive the submission of plans, if he or she 
finds that the nature of the work applied for is such that reviewing of plans is not 
necessary to obtain compliance with this Chapter. 

 
1. The address of the property and the legal description; 

 
2. The name of the project and/or business; 

 
3. The scale and north arrow; 

 
4. All existing and proposed buildings or additions; 

 
5. Dimensions of all buildings; 

 
6. Distance from all building lines to the property lines at the closest points; 

 
7. Building height and number of stories; 

 
8. Dimensions of all property lines; 

 
9. Parking lots or spaces; designate each space, give dimensions of the lot, stalls, 

and aisles; 
 

10. Screening; show height, location, and type of material to be used; 
 

11. The landscaped setback and trees; indicate species of trees and material to be 
used for landscaping; 

 
12. Name and location of all adjacent streets, alleys, waterways, and other public 

places. 
 



107 
 

Approved plans shall not be changed, modified, or altered without authorization from 
the Board of Adjustment giving final approval, and all work shall be done in 
accordance with the approved plans. 

E. Review and Public Hearing Procedure. 

Prior to the approval of a Conditional Use Permit, the Authorized Official shall meet with the 
applicant to review the application.  After review of the application, the Authorized Official shall 
make a recommendation to the Board of Adjustment to either approve or not approve said 
application.  The Authorized Official’s recommendation shall include a summary of the 
application, and the reasons and justification for either approval or disapproval of the 
application.  The Authorized Official or the Board of Adjustment may refer requests to 
Conditional Use Permits to the Crooks Planning Commission for review and recommendation. 

The Authorized Official shall set the date, time, and place for a public hearing to be held by the 
Board of Adjustment.  The Authorized Official shall notify the landowner by mail, and shall post 
notices of the public hearing at the City Office and on the property affected by the proposed 
Conditional Use Permit no less than seven (7) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  No 
less than ten (10) days before the public hearing, the Authorized Official shall publish notice of 
the public hearing in a legal newspaper of the city. 

The following procedure shall be followed by the Board of Adjustment in considering the 
recommendation of the Authorized Official: 

1. The public hearing shall be held.  Any person may appear in person, or by 
agent or attorney.  Minutes of the public hearing shall be recorded and kept in 
the records of the Board of Adjustment. 
 

2. Before any Conditional Use Permit shall be granted, the Board of Adjustment 
shall make written findings certifying compliance with the specific rules 
governing individual Conditional Uses and that satisfactory provision and 
arrangement has been made concerning the following, where applicable: 

 
a. Ingress and egress to property and proposed structures thereon, with 

particular reference to automotive and pedestrian safety and 
convenience, traffic flow and control, and access in case of fire or 
catastrophe; 
 

b. Off-street parking and loading areas where required; 
 



108 
 

c. Refuse and service areas, with particular reference to (a) and (b) above; 
 

d. Utilities, with reference to locations, availability, and compatibility; 
 

e. Screening and buffering with reference to type, dimensions, and 
character; 

 
f. Signs, if any, and proposed exterior lighting with reference to glare, 

traffic safety, economic effect, and compatibility and harmony with 
other properties in the district; 

 
g. Required yards and other open space; 

 
h. General compatibility with adjoining properties and other property in 

the zoning district in which such use is to be located; 
 

i. The goals and objectives of the most recently adopted Comprehensive 
Plan. 

 

The Board of Adjustment shall make a finding that it is either empowered or not empowered by 
these Zoning Regulations to grant the requested Conditional Use Permit, and that such 
Conditional Use Permit is either consistent or inconsistent with these Zoning Regulations and 
the City’s most recently adopted Comprehensive Plan.  The concurring vote of two-thirds (2/3) 
of the members of the Board of Adjustment shall be necessary to approve any conditional use 
permit or arrive at any determination. 

A conditional use permit shall expire one year from the date upon which it becomes effective if 
no work has commenced.  Upon written request to the Authorized Official and prior to the 
Conditional Use Permit expiration date, a one-year time extension for the conditional use 
permit may be granted by the Authorized Official, subject to the following conditions: 

1. There was no public objection presented during the public hearing process fot 
the original conditional use permit; 
 

2. The land uses for the surrounding properties have not significantly been 
altered since the original approval date for the conditional use permit; 

 



109 
 

3. Due to other on-going permitting processes or necessary engineering/planning 
studies relating to the specific project for the conditional use permit that may 
impact the one-year schedule for project completion. 

 

A conditional use permit approved in accordance with Chapter 19 shall expire one year after 
the use discontinues on the premises, or the use is changed to another permitted use in the 
underlying district. 

 

19.02 Court Review 

Any person aggrieved by any decision of the Board of Adjustment may petition a court of 
record within thirty (30) days after the filing of the Board’s decision as provided by SDCL 11-4-
25. 

 

 

  



110 
 

Chapter 20 – Definitions 

20.01 Purpose 

In the application of this ordinance, the rules and definitions contained in this section shall be 
observed and applied, except when the context clearly indicates otherwise. 

A. Words used in the present tense shall include the past and future. 
 

B. Words used in the singular number shall include the plural number and the plural, the 
singular. 

 
C. The word “shall” is mandatory and not discretionary. 

 
D. The word “may” is permissive. 

 
E. The words “used” or “occupied” shall include the words “intended,” “designed,” or 

“arranged to be used or occupied.” 
 

F. The word “lot” shall include the words “plot,” “parcel,” or “tract.” 
 

G. The word “person” shall include a “firm,” “association,” “organization,” “partnership,” 
“trust,” “company,” or “corporation” as well as an “individual.” 

 
H. The word “building” shall include the words “structure” and “premises.” 

 
I. Any word not herein defined shall be as defined in any recognized standard English 

dictionary. 
 

 

20.02 Definitions 

ABUTTING – Abutting shall mean adjacent or contiguous and shall include property separated 
by an alley.  The term “abutting” implies a closer proximity that the term “adjacent.” 

ACTIVITY – Any application for a permit under this ordinance or any development or use 
encompasses within the jurisdiction of this Ordinance. 



111 
 

ACCESSORY USE OR BUILDING – As applied to use, accessory means customarily subordinate or 
incidental to that of the main building or the main use of the premises, and located on the 
same lot with such use or structure.  As applied to building, accessory means a subordinate 
detached building of which is located on the same lot on which the main building or use is 
situated and which is reasonably necessary and incidental to the conduct of the primary use of 
such main building or use. 

ADULT ARCADE – Any place to which the public is permitted or invited and in which coin-
operated or slug operated or electronically, electrically, or mechanically controlled still or 
motion picture machines, projectors, or other image producing devices are maintained to show 
images involving specific sexual activities or specific anatomical areas to persons in booths or 
viewing rooms. 

ADULT BOOKSTORE OR VIDEO STORE – A commercial establishment that offers for sale or rent 
any of the following as one of its principal business purposes: 

1. Books, magazines, periodicals, or other printed matter, photographs, films, motion 
pictures, videocassettes or reproductions or slides, or other visual representations 
that depict or describe specific sexual activities or specific anatomical areas. 
 

2. Instruments, devices, or paraphernalia that are designed for use in connection with 
specific sexual activities. 

 

ADULT CABARET – Any nightclub, bar, restaurant, or other similar commercial establishment 
that regularly features: 

1. Persons who appear in a state of nudity or semi-nudity. 
 

2. Live performances that are characterized by the exposure of specific anatomical areas 
or specific sexual activities. 

 
3. Films, motion pictures, videocassettes, slides or other photographic reproductions 

that are characterized by the depiction or description of specific sexual activities or 
specific anatomical areas. 

 

ADULT MOTION PICTURE THEATER – A commercial establishment in which, for any form of 
consideration, films, motion pictures, videocassettes, slides, or other similar photographic 
reproductions that are characterized by the depiction or description of specific sexual activities 
or specific anatomical areas are predominantly shown. 



112 
 

ADULT ORIENTED BUSINESS – Any adult arcade, adult bookstore or video store, cabaret, adult 
live entertainment establishment, adult motion picture theater, adult theater, massage 
establishment that offers adult services, or nude model studios. 

ADULT SERVICE – Dancing, serving food or beverages, modeling, posing, wrestling, singing, 
reading, talking, listening, or other performances or activities conducted for any consideration 
in an adult oriented business by a person who is nude or semi-nude during all or part of the 
time that the person is providing the service. 

ADULT THEATER -  A theater, concert hall, auditorium, or similar commercial establishment that 
predominantly features persons who appear in a state of nudity or who engage in live 
performances that are characterized by the exposure of specific anatomical areas or specific 
sexual activities. 

AGRICULTUTE – The production, keeping, or maintenance, for sale, lease or personal use, of 
plants and land useful to man, including but not limited to: forages sod crops; grains and seed 
crops; trees and forest products; fruits of all kinds, including grapes, nuts, and berries; 
vegetables; nursery, floral, ornamental and greenhouse products; or lands devoted to a soil 
conservation or forestry management program. 

AIRPORT – A place where aircraft can land and take off, usually equipped with hangars, facilities 
for refueling and repair, and various accommodations for passengers, including Heliports. 

ALLEY – An alley is a public right-of-way which affords only a secondary means of access to 
abutting property. 

ANTENNA – Any device that radiates or captures electromagnetic wave signals, including digital 
voice and data signals, analog voice and data signals, video signals or microwave signals, and is 
mounted on a structure that allows freedom from obstruction for the radiation and capture of 
the electromagnetic signals. 

AQUIFER – A geologic formation, group of formations, or part of a formation capable of 
yielding, storing, or transmitting a usable amount of groundwater to wells or springs for 
domestic or animal use. 

ARCADE – A building or structure, open to the public, which contains coin operated games and 
similar entertainment and amusement devices, as the primary use of with five (5) or more 
games as an accessory use. 

ASSISTED-LIVING CENTER AND CONGREGATE CARE FACILITY – A licensed health care facility to 
provide 24-hour supervision of the frail and elderly that provide rooms, meals, personal care, 



113 
 

and supervision of self-administrated medication.  They may also provide services, such as 
recreational activities, financial services, and transportation. 

AUTOMOBILE STORAGE YARD – The temporary storage of vehicles which are impounded, 
licensed, and operable, in an unroofed area. 

AWNING/CANOPY – A roof-like cover that is temporary in nature and that projects from the 
wall of a building for the purpose of shielding a doorway or window from the elements. 

BED AND BREAKFAST ESTABLISHMENT – A private single-family residence which is used to 
provide limited meals and temporary accommodations for a charge to the public. 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT – Public and quasi-judicial agency charged with duty to hear and 
determine zoning appeals. 

BOARDING HOUSE – A building, other than a hotel or apartment hotel, where for compensation 
and by prearrangement for definite periods, lodging, meals, or lodging and meals are provided 
for three or more persons. 

BROADCAST TOWER – Shall mean a structure, not including offices or studio, for the 
transmission of radio or television broadcast communications. 

BUILDABLE AREA – The three-dimensional space within which a building is permitted to be built 
on a lot and which is defined by maximum height regulations and yard setback requirements. 

BUILDING – Any structure built for the support, shelter, or enclosure of persons, animals, 
chattels, or movable property of any kind, and which is constructed or erected on the ground or 
attached to the ground with a fixed location on the ground. 

BUILDING, DETACHED – A building surrounded by open space on the same lot. 

BUILDING, HEIGHT – The vertical distance above grade to the highest point of the coping of a 
flat roof or to the deck line of a mansard roof, or to the average height of the highest roof, or to 
the average height of the highest gable of a pitched, hipped, or shed roof.  The measurement 
shall be taken from the average elevation of the finished grade within ten (10) feet of the 
structure. 

BUILDING LINE – A line parallel to the curb line touching that part of a building or parking lot 
closest to the street. 

BUILDING PERMIT – A document signed by the Authorized Official of the City of Crooks as a 
condition precedent to the commencement of a use or the erection, construction, re-
construction, restoration, alteration, conversion, or installation of a building, which 



114 
 

acknowledges that such use or building complies with the provisions of the municipal zoning 
ordinance or an authorized variance therefrom. 

BUILDING, RESIDENTIAL – A building which is arranged, designed, used or intended to be used 
for residential occupancy by one or more families or lodgers, and which includes, but is not 
limited to, the following types: 

1. Single-family detached dwellings; 
 

2. Single-family attached dwellings; 
 

3. Multiple-family dwellings (including apartment hotels); 
 

4. Lodging houses; and 
 

5. Fraternity and sorority houses. 
 

BUS PASSENGER TERMINAL – A place where the transfer of people between modes of 
transportation takes place. 

BUS/TRUCK TERMINAL – An area and building where buses, trucks, and cargo is stored; where 
loading and unloading is carried on regularly; and where minor maintenance of these types of 
vehicles is performed. 

BUS/TRUCK WASH – Any building or portions thereof used for washing buses and/or trucks. 

CAMPGROUND, TRAVEL TRAILER PARKING AREA – Shall mean a plot of ground for public use 
upon which two or more campsites are located, established, maintained, advertised, or held 
out to the public, to be a place where camping units can be located and occupied as temporary 
living quarters. 

CAR WASH – Any building or portions thereof used for washing automobiles. 

CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY – A document issued by the proper authority allowing the 
occupancy or use of a building and certifying that the structure or use has been constructed or 
will be used in compliance with all the applicable municipal codes and ordinances. 

CHANGE OF USE – Substitution of one thing for another specifically regarding use of land or use 
of a building. 



115 
 

CHURCH – A building or structure, or groups of buildings or structures, which by design and 
construction are primarily intended for the conducting of organized religious services and 
accessory uses associated therewith. 

CITY – Means City of Crooks, South Dakota. 

CITY COUNCIL – Means Board of City Council Members, Crooks, South Dakota. 

CLINIC – An establishment where patients are admitted for examination and treatment by one 
or more physicians, dentists, psychologists, optometrists, social workers, etc., and where 
patients are not usually lodged overnight. 

CLUB – Building and facilities owned or operated by a corporation, association, person, or 
persons for a social, educational, or recreational purpose, but not primarily for profit and not 
primarily to render a service which is customarily carried on as a business. 

COMMERCIAL PARKING LOT/FACILITY – An approved open or enclosed off-street parking area 
or structure where licensed and operable motor vehicles are temporarily stored for a fee. 

COMMISSION – Means City Planning Commission of Crooks, South Dakota. 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – The adopted long-range plan intended to guide the growth and 
development of the community and region, including analysis, recommendations and proposals 
of the community’s population, economy, housing, transportation, community facilities, and 
land use. 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT – A permit issued by the Board of Adjustment stating that a 
Conditional Use complies with the conditions and standards set forth in this Ordinance. 

CONSUMER STORAGE UNITS – A warehouse structure containing separate storage spaces for 
household items, which may be of various sizes, leased or rented on an individual basis.  This 
definition includes warehouse structures containing individual storage spaces for consumer 
automobiles, campers, recreational vehicles, trailers, ect. 

CONTRACTOR’S SHOP AND STORAGE YARD – Use of land or buildings for storage and 
preparation of materials used by that same individuals in conducting the business of 
construction and repair work, generally completed at some other on-site location. 

CONTAMINANT – Any “regulated substance” as defined by SDCL 34A-12-1(8), as in effect on the 
date of passage of this ordinance and as amended from time to time, and all petroleum 
products, including gasoline, oil, waste oils, and other fuels as well as their hazardous 
constituents. 



116 
 

CONVENT AND MONASTERY – A place of residence for bona fide members of a religious order 
who carry on religious, medical, educational, or charitable work in adjacent institutions. 

CURB LINE – The outside lines of the pavement or roadway. 

DAY CARE – The providing of care and supervision of a child or children/adults as a supplement 
to regular parental/home care, without transfer of legal custody or placement for adoption, 
with or without compensation, on a regular basis for a part of a day. 

DAY CARE, CENTER – Is normally in a facility used only for providing day care, nursery, or pre-
kindergarten services, and is limited in number over twelve (12) by the square footage of usable 
space available.  The ratio is presently thirty five (35) square feet per child indoors and fifty (50) 
square feet per person outdoors. 

DAY CARE, FAMILY – Care is done in a family home, and the number of persons cared for is 
limited to a maximum of six (6) adults or six (6) children under fourteen.  Included in that count 
are the providers’ own children six (6) years and under.  See Home Occupation. 

DAY CARE, GROUP = Is normally in a family home.  The number of persons cared for is seven (7) 
to twelve (12) adults or children under the age of fourteen including the providers’ own 
children six (6) years and under. 

DENSITY – The number of families, individuals, dwelling units, or housing structures per unit of 
land. 

DEVELOPMENT – The carrying out of any construction, reconstruction, alteration of surface, 
structure, change or land use or intensity of use, and including but not limited to the deposit of 
refuse, solid or liquid waste, any mining or drilling operation, or work relating to the creation of 
a road, street, or parking area. 

DISTILLATION OF PRODUCTS – A building or premises used for the purification and 
concentration of a substance by volatilization or evaporation and subsequent condensation. 

DISTRICT – A part, zone, or geographic area of the City of Crooks within which certain zoning or 
development regulations apply. 

DRIVE-UP SERVICE WINDOW/DEVICE – An establishment which accommodates the patron’s 
motor vehicles, from which the occupants may obtain or receive a service or obtain a product 
through a service window or automated device. 

DWELLING – A building, or portion thereof, used exclusively for human habitation, including 
single-family, two-family, and multi-family dwellings, but not including hotels, motels, or 
lodging houses. 



117 
 

DWELLING, ATTACHED – A one-family dwelling attached to two or more one-family dwellings 
by common vertical walls 

DWELLING, MULTIPLE-FAMILY – A building, or portion thereof, containing three (3) or more 
dwelling units. 

DWELLING, SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED – A dwelling which is designed for and occupied by not 
more than one family and is surrounded by yards and is not attached to any other dwelling by 
any means. 

DWELLING, SINGLE-FAMILY FARM – Single family dwelling located on a farm which is used or 
intended for use by the farm’s owner or relative of the owner or a person employed thereon. 

DWELLING, TOWNHOUSE – One of a group or row of two or more single-family dwellings 
designed and built as a single structure facing upon a street in which the individual townhouse 
may or may not be owned separately.  The townhouse need not face upon a street if otherwise 
specifically provided in this title.  For the purpose of side yard regulations, the structure 
containing the row or group of townhouses shall be considered as one building occupying a 
single lot. 

DWELLING UNIT – One or more rooms, designed, occupied, or intended for occupancy as 
separate living quarters, with cooking, sleeping, and sanitary facilities provided within the 
dwelling unit for the exclusive use of a single family maintaining a household. 

ELECTRICAL SUBSTATION – A premises which may or may not contain buildings, where the 
interconnection and usual transformation of electrical service takes place between systems.  An 
electrical substation shall be secondary, supplementary, subordinate, and auxiliary to the main 
system. 

EXISTING ANTENNA SUPPORT STRUCTURE – Any existing structure that supports wireless 
communications facilities, such as but not restricted to, telecommunications and broadcast 
towers, buildings, clock towers, steeples and light poles. 

FAMILY – One or more individuals, related by blood or law, occupying a dwelling unit and living 
as a single household unit.  A family shall not include more than three adults who are unrelated 
by blood or law.  In addition to the persons actually related by blood or law, the following 
persons shall be considered related by blood or law for the purposes of this title: 

1. A person residing with the family for the purpose of adoption; 
 

2. Not more than six persons under eighteen years of age, residing in a foster home 
licensed or approved by a governmental agency. 



118 
 

 
3. Not more than four persons eighteen years of age or older residing with the family for 

the purpose of receiving foster care licensed or approved by a governmental agency; 
 

4. Any persons living with the family at the direction of a court; and 
 

5. Twenty-four hour supervised living of persons with physical or mental disabilities, but 
not including group homes for drug and alcohol rehabilitation or halfway houses for 
persons adjudicated by a court.  Such residential facilities shall be licensed by the State 
of South Dakota and proof of such licensing shall be required prior to zoning certificate 
approval. 

 

FARM – A parcel of land used for agricultural purposes with a minimum of 10 acres in size. 

FARM IMPLEMENT DEALER – The use of any building or land area for the display and sale of 
new and used farm implements, including any warranty repair work and other repair service 
conducted as an accessory use. 

FARMSTEAD – The area of a farm in which the out buildings sit and is normally protected by a 
grove(s) and not used for crops or grazing. 

FARM STORE/FEED STORE – A retail store selling primarily agricultural products, including the 
bulk storage of fertilizers and related agri-chemicals. 

FENCE – An artificially constructed barrier of any material or combination of materials erected 
to enclose or screen areas of land. 

FLOOR AREA – The square feet of floor space within the outside line of walls and includes the 
total of all space on all floors of a building.  It does not include porches, garages, or space in a 
basement, or a cellar when said space is used for storage or incidental uses. 

FRONTAGE – That side of a lot abutting on a street; the front lot line. 

FRUIT/VEGETABLE CANNING AND PROCESSING – A commercial establishment in which food is 
processed or otherwise prepared for human consumption but not consumed on the premises. 

GARAGE, PRIVATE – A residential accessory building designed or used for the storage of motor 
vehicles, excluding commercial vehicles, owned and used by the occupants of the building to 
which it is an accessory. 



119 
 

GARDEN CENTER – Garden center shall mean a building or premises used primarily for the retail 
sale of items useful in the culture, display, or decoration of lawns, gardens, or indoor plants; 
including books, appliances, and tools, but not including power tools or tractors. 

GAS DISPENSING STATION – Any building or premises which provides for the retail sale of 
gasoline or oil.  No automobile repair work or sale of auto accessories, or testing may be done.  
Gasoline pumps and islands shall be located more than twelve (12) feet from the nearest 
property line. 

GENERAL MANUFACTURING – Those manufacturing processes including light manufacturing 
which have the potential to be a nuisance due to dust, odor, noise, vibration, pollution, smoke, 
heat, glare, or the operation of the processes outside the building. 

GOLF COURSE – A tract of land for playing golf, improved with tees, greens, fairways, hazards, 
and which may include clubhouses and shelters. 

GRADE – The average elevation of the land around a building. 

GRAIN TERMINAL – A facility for the storage of agricultural grains. 

GREENHOUSE – A building whose roof and sides are made largely of glass or other transparent 
or translucent material and in which the temperature and humidity can be regulated for the 
cultivation of delicate or out-of-season plants for subsequent sale or for personal enjoyment. 

GROUP HOME – A supervised living or counseling arrangement in a family home context 
providing for the twenty-four (24) hour care of children or adults. 

GROUNDWATER – Subsurface water that occurs in soils and geologic formations that are fully 
saturated. 

HAZARDOUS MATERIAL – Any contaminant as defined in this ordinance, and any hazardous 
chemical for which a material safety data sheet must be filed under 42 USC 11021 and 11022 as 
in effect on the date of publication of this ordinance. 

HOME OCCUPATIONS – A home occupation is any occupation carried on by a member of the 
immediate family residing on the premises, in accordance with Section 12.11 of these zoning 
regulations. 

HOSPITAL – An institution providing primary health services and medical or surgical care to 
persons, primarily inpatients, suffering from illness, disease, injury, deformity, and other 
abnormal physical or mental conditions, and including, as an integral part of the institution, 
related facilities such as laboratories, outpatient facilities, or training facilities. 



120 
 

HOTEL, MOTEL, MOTOR COURT, MOTOR LODGE, OR TOURIST COURT – Any building or group of 
buildings containing guest rooms or dwelling units, some or all of which have a separate 
entrance leading directly from the outside of the building with garage or parking space 
conveniently located on the lot, and designed, used, or intended wholly or in part for the 
accommodation of automobile transients. 

JUNKYARD – Any lot, land, parcel or portion thereof, used for the storage, wrecking, 
dismantling, salvage, collection, processing, purchase, sale, or exchange of abandoned or 
discarded vehicles, goods, waste, and scrap materials, including but not limited to: two or more 
abandoned or inoperable motor vehicles, waste paper, rags, glass, tires, wood, lumber, 
appliances, machinery, or automotive and mechanical parts.  A junkyard does not include 
operations entirely enclosed within buildings. 

KENNEL – Any premise, or portion thereof, where dogs, cats, and other household pets are 
maintained, boarded, bred, or cared for, in return for remuneration, or are kept for the purpose 
of sale. 

LANDSCAPED AREA/LIVING GROUND COVER – An area that is permanently devoted and 
maintained in blue grass/creeping red fescue, herbaceous perennials, trees, shrubbery, and 
flowers. 

LIGHT MANUFACTURING -  Those manufacturing processes which are not obnoxious due to 
dust, odor, vibration, pollution, smoke, heat, or glare.  These commercial and industrial uses are 
characterized by generally having all aspects of the process carried on within the building itself. 

LOADING SPACE – A space within the main building or on the same lot for the standing, loading, 
or unloading of trucks. 

LOT – A parcel of land occupied or intended for occupancy by a use permitted in this ordinance, 
which may include one (1) main building together with its accessory building, the open spaces 
and parking spaces required by this ordinance, and having its principal frontage upon a street or 
upon an officially approved place. 

LOT LINE, FRONT – The lot line separating a lot from a street right-of-way. 

LOT LINE, REAR – The lot line opposite and most distant from the front lot line; or in the case of 
triangular or otherwise irregular shaped lots, a line ten feet in length entirely within the lot, 
parallel to and at a maximum distance from the front lot line.  In no case shall any structure be 
closer than three (3) feet to any lot line. 

LOT LINE, SIDE – Any lot line other than a front or rear lot line. 



121 
 

LOT OF RECORD – A lot of record is a lot which is part of a subdivision or a certified survey map 
which has been recorded in the office of the County Register of Deeds; or a parcel of land, the 
deed to which was recorded in the office of said Register of Deeds prior to the effective date of 
this ordinance. 

MANUFACTURE OF: ACID, ALCOHOL, AMMONIA, ASPHALT, BLEACH, CEMENT, CHLORINE, 
DYESTUFFS, EXPLOSIVES, FERTILIZER, GLUE, GYPSUM, LIME, OILS, PLASTER OF PARIS, SHELLAC, 
SIZING, TURPENTINE OR YEAST, ETC. – Establishments engaged in the mechanical or chemical 
transformation of materials or substances into new products including the assembling of 
component parts, the manufacturing of products, and the blending of materials such as 
lubricating oils, plastics, resins, or liquors. 

MANUFACTURED HOME – A dwelling unit which is fabricated in one or more sections at a 
location other than the home site by assembly line-type production techniques or by other 
construction methods unique to an off-site manufacturing process.  A manufactured home is 
designed to be towed on its own chassis or be site delivered by alternative means.  Every 
section shall bear a label certifying that it is built in compliance with the Federal Manufactured 
Home Construction and Safety Standards. 

For manufactured homes built prior to June 15, 1976, a label certifying compliance to the 
Standard for Mobile Homes, NFPA 501, ANSI 119.1, in effect at the time of the manufacture is 
required. 

MANUFACTURED HOME PARK, LICENSED – A contiguous parcel of land operated as a unit, 
under the same ownership where six or more lots are rented for the temporary placement of 
manufactured homes, with all necessary facilities and services, and is licensed by the City of 
Crooks. 

MASSAGE ESTABLISHMENT – An establishment in which a person, firm, association, or 
corporation engages in or permits massage activities, including any method of pressure on, 
friction against, stroking, kneading, rubbing, tapping, pounding, vibrating, or stimulating of 
external soft parts of the body with the hands or with the aid of any mechanical apparatus or 
electrical apparatus or appliance.  This subdivision does not apply to: 

1. Physicians who are licensed pursuant to SDCL 36-4 or a podiatrist licensed pursuant to 
SDCL 36-8. 
 

2. Registered nurses or licensed practical nurses who are licensed pursuant to SDCL 36-9. 
 

3. Physician assistants who are licensed pursuant to SDCL 36-4A or certified nurse 
practitioners and certified nurse midwives who are licensed pursuant to SDCL 36-9A. 



122 
 

 
4. Physical therapists licensed pursuant to SDCL 36-10. 

 
5. Athletic trainers licensed pursuant to SDCL 36-29. 

 
6. Massage therapists licensed pursuant to SDCL 36-35. 

 
7. Chiropractors licensed pursuant to SDCL 36-5. 

 

MINI-WAREHOUSE – A storage facility that is characterized by individual separate spaces which 
are accessible by customers for the storing and retrieval of personal effects and household 
goods.  In no case shall storage spaces be used for manufacturing, retail or wholesale selling, 
business services, or human habitation. 

MORTUARY – A place for the storage of human bodies prior to their burial or cremation. 

MOTEL – A motel is an establishment consisting of a group of attached living or sleeping 
accommodations with bathroom and closet space, located on a single zoning lot, and designed 
for use by transient automobile tourists.  A motel furnishes customary hotel services such as 
maid service and laundering of linen, telephone, and secretarial or desk service, and the use 
and upkeep of furniture.  In a motel, less than fifty percent (50%) of the living and sleeping 
accommodations are occupied or designed for occupancy by persons other than transient 
automobile tourists.  See Hotel/Motel. 

MOTOR VEHICLE – Any vehicle which is designed to travel along the ground or in the water and 
shall include but not be limited to automobiles, vans, buses, motorbikes, trucks, trailers, go 
carts, golf carts, boats, ATVs, snowmobiles, and campers. 

MOTOR VEHICLE REPAIR – Any building or premises involving the repair and/or painting of 
motor vehicle bodies or parts thereof and the rebuilding and/or overhauling of engines or 
transmissions. 

MOTOR VEHICLE, COMMERCIAL – Any vehicle which has more than sixteen (16) square feet of 
signage or which is adapted, designed, equipped, and used to perform a specific commercial 
function and which does not meet the definition of Motor Vehicle, Personal/Passenger as 
defined herein. 

MOTOR VEHICLE, INOPERABLE – A motor vehicle which is not in operating condition due to 
damage, removal, or inoperability of one or more tires and/or wheels, engine, or other 
essential parts, or which is not in operating condition due to damage or removal of equipment 



123 
 

as required by the State of South Dakota for its lawful operation, or which does not have 
lawfully affixed thereto a valid state license plate, or which constitutes an immediate health, 
safety, fire or traffic hazard. 

MOTOR VEHICLE, PERSONAL/PASSENGER – Any car, pickup-truck, or van which has no more 
than sixteen (16) square feet of signage and which is designed and facilitates 
personal/passenger travel and has not been externally altered with features not customary to 
personal usage. 

MOTOR VEHICLE, RECREATIONAL – Any vehicle which is adapted, designed, and equipped to 
facilitate leisure time activities including but not limited to the following: ATVs, boats, motor 
bikes, snowmobiles, along with trailers to haul said vehicles; RVs and travel trailers. 

MOTOR VEHICLES, DISPLAY AND RENTAL – The use of any building, land area, or premises, for 
the display, sale, or rental of new or used motor vehicles, and including any warranty repair 
work and other repair service conducted as an accessory use.  The sale or display of inoperable 
motor vehicles is not allowable as part of this use category.  See Junkyard. 

MOTOR VEHICLE SERVICE STATION – Any building or premises which provides for the retail sale 
of gasoline, oil, tires, batteries, and accessories for motor vehicles and/or for certain motor 
vehicle services, including washing, tire changing, repair service, battery service, radiator 
service, lubrication, brake service, wheel service, and testing or adjusting of automotive parts.  
Motor vehicle repair work may be done at a motor vehicle service station provided that no 
rebuilding of engines, spray paint operations, or body or fender repair is conducted.  Gasoline 
pumps and gasoline pump islands shall be located more than twelve (12) feet from the nearest 
property line. 

NEIGHBORHOOD UTILITY FACILITY – Telephone, electric, and cable television lines, poles, and 
equipment; water or gas pipes; mains and valves; sewer pipes and valves; lift stations; 
telephone exchanges and repeaters; and all other facilities and equipment (excluding buildings, 
facilities and above ground structures that exceed one hundred twenty (120) square feet of an 
area necessary for conduction a service by a government or public utility. 

NONCONFORMING USE – A use of land, buildings, structures, or premises that lawfully existed 
prior to the adoption, revision, or amendment to this title, but which fails, by reason of such 
adoption, revision, or amendment, to conform to the present use restrictions of the zoning 
district in which it is located. 

NUDE MODEL STUDIO – A place in which a person who appears in a state of nudity or who 
displays specific anatomical areas is observed, sketched, drawn, painted, sculptured, 
photographed, or otherwise depicted by other persons who pay money or other 



124 
 

considerations.  The term, nude model studio, does not include a proprietary school that is 
licensed by this state, a college, or university that is supported entirely by taxation, a private 
college or university that maintains and operates educational programs in which credits are 
transferable to a college or university that is supported entirely or in part by taxation or a 
structure to which the following apply: 

1. A sign is not visible from exterior of the structure and no other advertising appears 
indicating that a nude person is available for viewing. 
 

2. A student must enroll at least three days in advance of a class in order to participate. 
 

3. No more than one nude or seminude model is on the premises at any time. 
 

NUDE, NUDITY, OR STATE OF NUDITY – Any of the following: 

1. The appearance of a human anus, genitals, or a female breast below a point 
immediately above the top of the areola. 

2. A state of dress that fails to opaquely cover a human anus, genitals, or a female breast 
below a point immediately above the top of the areola. 

NURSERY – Land or greenhouses used to raise flowers, shrubs, and plants for sale.  See 
Greenhouse. 

NURSING HOME – An extended or intermediate care facility licensed or approved to provide 
full-time convalescent or chronic care to individuals who, by reason of advanced age, chronic 
illness or infirmity, are unable to care for themselves. 

OFFICE BUILDING – A building designed for or used as the office of professional, commercial, 
industrial, financial, religious, institutional, public, or semipublic persons or organizations.  
Broadcast stations, offices, and studios shall be considered office buildings; broadcast towers as 
defined in this title shall not be considered office buildings. 

OFF-SALE ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE ESTABLISHMENT – Any use which has been licensed to sell 
alcoholic beverages for consumption off the premises where sold. 

ON-SALE ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE ESTABLISHMENT – Any use which has been licensed to sell 
alcoholic beverages for consumption upon the premises where sold, except for special one-day 
liquor or special malt beverage licenses. 

OUTDOOR STORAGE – The keeping, in an unroofed area, of any goods, material, merchandise, 
or vehicles in the same place for more than twenty-four (24) hours.  Goods, material, 



125 
 

merchandise, or vehicles shall not include items listed, nor be of a nature as indicated in the 
definition of junkyard as defined herein. 

PARKING SPACE – A hard-surfaced area, enclosed or unenclosed, sufficient in size to park one 
motor vehicle.  A parking space must be provided an unobstructed means of access, and all 
spaces shall meet the minimum criteria as prescribed by City Ordinance. 

PARTY WALL – A common shared wall between two separate structures, buildings, or dwelling 
units. 

PERMANENT FOUNDATION – A continuous foundation around the perimeter of a structure, 
which, at the bottom, extends no less than forty-eight (48) inches below the surface of the 
ground. 

PERMITTED USES – Any permissive or conditional uses allowed in a zoning district subject to the 
restrictions applicable to that zoning district. 

PERSONAL SERVICES – Establishments primarily engaged in providing services involving the care 
of a person or their apparel.  Including, but not limited to: laundry or dry cleaning; receiving 
station; garment services; coin-operated laundries; photographic and art studios; beauty shops; 
barber shops; shoe repair; reducing salons and health clubs; clothing rental. 

PLACE OF WORSHIP – A structure where persons regularly assemble for worship, ceremonies, 
rituals, and education relating to a particular form of religious belief and which a reasonable 
person would conclude is a place of worship by reason of design, signs, or architectural or other 
features. 

PLANNING COMMISSION -  The duly designated planning board of the municipality responsible 
for reviewing and approving applications for development and preparation of master plans and 
ordinances. 

PRINCIPAL BUILDING – A building in which is conducted the primary or predominant use of the 
lot on which it is located. 

PRINCIPAL USE – The primary or predominant use or building of any lot. 

PRINTING PLANT – A commercial printing operation which makes reproductions involving the 
use of a printing press and the making of photographic plates. 

PRIVATE CLUB – A group of people organized for a common purpose to pursue common goals, 
interests, or activities, and usually characterized by certain membership qualifications, payment 
of fees and dues, regular meetings, and a constitution and bylaws. 



126 
 

PROJECTING SIGN – A sign other than a wall sign which is attached to and projects from a 
structure or building face. 

PROPERTY LINE – See Lot Lines. 

PUBLIC UTILITY FACILITIES – See Neighborhood Utility Facilities.  The definition is the same as 
the Neighborhood Utilities Facilities except that buildings, structures, and facilities that exceed 
one hundred twenty (120) square feet are allowable. 

QUARRY – A surface excavation used for the removal of rock, stone, sand, gravel, and fill dirt for 
sale or use off-site and includes sifting, crushing, and washing and bagging. 

RECREATIONAL FACILITY – A facility that is located on or next to the ground, including but not 
limited to: swimming pools, putting greens, volleyball, tennis and basketball courts; batting, 
pitching, soccer, and golf cages and nets; hockey and ice rinks, skate board ramps, trampolines, 
portable flooring for aerobics, dance, and weight lifting. 

RECYCLABLE MATERIALS – Materials or products that may be readily separated from the solid 
waste stream and may be used or reused as a substitute for raw materials or other items, 
including but not limited to, aluminum, paper, glass, steel, and plastic. 

RECYCLING COLLECTION FACILITY – An established facility where recyclable materials are 
collected for shipment off site, with no processing such as grinding or crushing of the materials.  
Fully enclosed automated self-service aluminum collection machines not more than seven 
hundred fifty (750) square feet are considered recycling collection facilities regardless of 
whether they contain a crusher or grinder.  Facilities which handle recyclable hazardous 
materials, or waste petroleum products as a primary or substantial portion of their business are 
not included. 

RECYCLING PROCESSING FACILITY – An established facility where recyclable materials are 
collected and/or processed for shipment off site, including processing operations such as 
grinding or crushing of the materials.  No on-site sales of materials, nor salvage-type 
automobiles may be processed at these types of facilities.  Facilities which handle recyclable 
hazardous materials, or waste petroleum products as a primary or substantial portion of their 
business are not included. 

RESIDENCE – A permanent dwelling place. 

RETAIL SERVICES AND TRADE – Establishments engaged in selling products, goods, or 
merchandise to the general public for personal or household consumption; and establishments 
engaged in providing services or entertainment to the general public including eating 
establishments, hotels, motels, repair shops, indoor amusement, copying services, health, 



127 
 

professional, educational, and social services, and other miscellaneous services but does not 
include on-sale or off-sale alcoholic beverage establishments. 

RESTAURANT – An establishment where food and drink is prepared, served, and consumed 
primarily within the principal use. 

ROOF SIGN – Any sign erected upon, against, or directly above a roof or on top of the parapet 
of a building. 

ROOMING/BOARDING HOUSE – See Boarding House 

SCHOOL, ELEMENTARY OR SECONDARY (HIGH SCHOOL) – Any building or part thereof, whether 
public or private, which is designed, constructed, or used for instruction in elementary or 
secondary (high school) education. 

SEMINUDE – A state of dress in which clothing covers no more than the genitals, pubic region, 
and female breast below a point immediately above the top of the areola, as well as portions of 
the body that are covered by supporting straps or devices. 

SETBACK/SETBACK LINE – That line that is the required minimum distance from any lot line that 
establishes the area within which the principal use must be erected or placed. 

SHALLOW/SURFICIAL AQUIFIER – An aquifer in which the permeable media (sand and gravel) 
starts near the land surface immediately below the topsoil.  The shallow aquifer is further 
defined as an aquifer within fifty (50) feet or less below the land surface within fifteen (15) feet 
or less of continuous overlying, extremely low permeability material, such as clay, till, or shale.  
Weathered till or highly fractured weathered shale is not an extremely low permeability 
material for purposes of this ordinance; or, the aquifer is greater than fifty (50) feet but less 
than one hundred (100) feet below the land surface with thirty (30) feet or less of continuous 
overlying low to extremely low permeability geological material that may be a combination of 
weathered and unweathered till, shale, or till and shale. 

SIGN – Any object, device, display, or structure, or part thereof, situated outdoors or visible 
from outdoors, which is used to advertise, identify, display, direct, or attract attention to an 
object, person, institution, organization, business, product, service, event, or location by any 
means, including words, letters, figures, design, symbols, fixtures, colors, illumination, or 
projected images.  This definition does not include signs not exceeding twelve (12) square feet 
for advertising the sale or lease of real estate, national or state flags or their emblem or 
insignia, interior window displays, athletic scoreboards, or the official announcements or signs 
of government. 



128 
 

SIGN, ABANDONED – A freestanding or wall sign that is located on property that has been 
vacated for a period of six months or more. 

SIGN AREA – The area of the largest single face of the sign within a perimeter which forms the 
outside shape including any frame which forms an integral part of the display, but excluding the 
necessary supports or uprights on which the sign may be placed.  If the sign consists of more 
than one section or module, all areas will be totaled. 

SIGN FACE (DISPLAY SURFACE) – The entire area of sign on which copy could be placed. See Sign 
Area. 

SIGN, FREESTANDING (GROUND SIGN) – A sign supported by one or more uprights, poles, or 
braces in the ground, thereby freestanding, and not attached to any building. 

SIGN, ILLUMINATED – Any sign characterized by the use of artificial light, either projecting 
through its surface or reflecting off its surface. 

SIGN, NONCONFORMING – Any type of sign that lawfully existed prior to the adoption, revision, 
or amendment to this title but which fails, by reason of such adoption, revision, or amendment 
to conform to the present use restrictions of the zoning district in which it is located. 

SIGN, OFF-PREMISE – A sign which directs attention to a business, commodity, service, or 
entertainment conducted, sold, or offered at a location other than the premises on which the 
sign is located. 

SIGN, ON-PREMISE – A sign which directs attention to a business or profession conducted, or to 
a commodity or service sold, offered, or manufactured, or to an entertainment offered on the 
premises where the sign is located. 

SIGN, PERMANENT – Signs that exist perpetually; everlasting, especially without significant 
change. 

SIGN, STRUCTURE – Any structure which support, has supported, or is capable of supporting a 
sign. 

SIGN, TEMPORARY – A device, display, structure, or pennant that acts as a sign and is intended 
to be displayed for a limited time period. 

SIGN, WALL – A sign attached to or erected against a wall of a building and projecting no more 
than twelve (12) inches with the face in a parallel plane to the plane of the building wall. 

SLAUGHTERHOUSE – A facility for the slaughtering and processing of animals and the refining of 
their by-products. 



129 
 

SOLID WASTE TRANSFER FACILITY – A fixed facility where solid waste from collection vehicles is 
consolidated and temporarily stored for subsequent transport to a permanent disposal site.  
This does not include an infectious waste incineration facility. 

SPECIFIED ANATOMICAL AREAS – Any of the following: 

1. A human anus, genitals, the pubic region, or a female breast below a point immediately 
above the top of the areola that is less than completely and opaquely covered. 
 

2. Male genitals in a discernibly turgid state even if completely and opaquely covered. 
 

SPECIFIC SEXUAL ACTIVITIES – Any of the following: 

1. Human genitals in a state of sexual stimulation or arousal. 
 

2. Sex acts, normal or perverted, actual or simulated, including acts of human 
masturbation, sexual intercourse, oral copulation, or sodomy. 
 

3. Fondling or other erotic touching of the human genitals, pubic region, buttocks, anus, or 
female breast. 
 

4. Excretory functions as part of or in connection with activities under subsection (1), (2), 
or (3) of this subdivision. 
 

STORY – Story is that portion of a building included between the upper surface of any floor and 
the upper surface of the floor next above, except that the topmost story shall be that portion of 
a building included between the upper surface of the topmost floor and the ceiling or roof 
above.  If the finished floor level directly above a basement, cellar, or unused underfloor space 
is more than six (6) feet above grade as defined herein for more than 50 percent of the total 
perimeter or is more than twelve (12) feet above grade as defined herein at any point, such 
basement cellar or unused under-floor space shall be considered a story. 

STREET – A public way which affords the principal means of access to abutting property. 

STREET, ARTERIAL – A principal traffic artery, more or less continuous across the city, which acts 
as a principal connecting street with the state and federal highways and includes each street 
designated as an arterial street on the Major Street Plan. 



130 
 

STREET, COLLECTOR – A street which carries traffic from local streets to arterial streets or 
highways, including the principal entrance streets of a residential development and streets for 
circulation in such development. 

STREET, LOCAL – A street intended to provide access to other streets from individual properties 
and to provide right-of-way beneath it for various utilities but not intended to be used for 
through traffic. 

STRUCTURAL ALTERATION – Any change or rearrangement in the supporting members of an 
existing building, such as bearing walls, columns, beams, girders, or any complete rebuilding of 
the roof or the exterior wall. 

STRUCTURE – Anything constructed or erected on the ground or attached to the ground with a 
fixed location on the ground or attached to something having a fixed location on the ground.  
Among other things, structures, include buildings, walls, fences, signs, docks, dams, 
manufactured homes, and sheds. 

TANK FARM – An open air facility containing a number of above-ground, large containers for 
the bulk storage in liquid form of petroleum products. 

TELECOMMUNICATIONS TOWER – A self-supporting lattice, guyed-lattice, or monopole 
structure which supports wireless communications facilities.  The term includes new and 
existing towers that are used for services such as microwave, common carrier, cellular 
telephone, personal communication services, two-way radio paging, and other similar services.  
The term telecommunications tower does not include amateur radio operators’ equipment, as 
licensed by the Federal Communications Commission. 

TEMPORARY SIGN – A banner, pennant, poster, or advertising display constructed of cloth, 
canvas, plastic, wallboard, or other like materials, and intended to be displayed for a limited 
period of time. 

TELECOMMUNICATIONS TOWER HEIGHT – The vertical distance above grade to the highest 
point of the telecommunications tower, including the base pad and any antenna. 

TELECOMMUNICATIONS TOWER SITE – The telecommunications tower site shall be the lot of 
record for which the telecommunications tower is located. 

TRAVEL TRAILER – Means any of the following: 

1. Travel Trailer.  A vehicular, portable structure build on a chassis, designed to be used as 
temporary dwelling for travel, recreational, and vocational uses, permanently identified 
“travel trailer” by the manufacturer of the trailer and, when factory equipped for the 



131 
 

road, it shall have a body width not exceeding eight (8) feet, and a body length not 
exceeding thirty (30) feet. 
 

2. Pick-up Coach.  A structure designed to be mounted on a truck chassis for use as a 
temporary dwelling for travel, recreation, and vacation. 
 

3. Motor-Home.  A portable, temporary dwelling to be used for travel, recreation, and 
vacation, constructed as any integral part of a self-propelled vehicle. 
 

4. Camping Trailer.  A canvas, folding structure, mounted on wheels and designed for 
travel, recreation, and vacation use. 
 

TREE, REQUIRED – A tree which is required by this ordinance and meets or exceeds the 
minimum specifications according to tree type. 

USE, ACCESSORY – See Accessory Building or Use 

USE, PERMITTED – A permitted use is a use which may be lawfully established in a particular 
district or districts, provided it conforms with all requirements and regulations of such district in 
which such use is located. 

USE, PRINCIPAL – A principal use is the main use of land or buildings as distinguished from a 
subordinate or accessory use.  A principal use includes off-premise advertising. 

WAREHOUSE – A warehouse structure where non-standard household consumer items or 
commercial and industrial goods are stored either collectively or in separate storage spaces, 
leased or rented as determined by the owner.  These goods are typically received from heavy 
trucks and then stored for subsequent delivery to off-site wholesalers, retailers, or consumers.  
This definition includes warehouse structures containing storage spaces for consumer 
automobiles, campers, recreational vehicles, trailers, etc. 

WASTE – Any garbage, refuse, sludge from waste treatment plant, waste supply treatment 
plant, or air pollution control facility and other discarded materials, including solid, liquid, 
semisolid, or contained gaseous material resulting from industrial, commercial, mining, or 
agricultural operations, or from community activities, but does not include solid or dissolved 
materials in domestic sewage or dissolved materials in irrigation return flows or industrial 
discharges which are point sources subject to permits under Section 402 of the Federal Water 
Pollution Control Act, as amended to January 1, 1986, or source, special nuclear or by-product 
material as defined by the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended to January 1, 1986. 



132 
 

WHOLESALE MERCHANDISING / WHOLESALE TRADE – Establishments or places of business 
primarily engaged in selling merchandise to retailers; to industrial, commercial, institutional, or 
professional business users, or to other wholesalers; or acting as agents or brokers and buying 
merchandise for, or selling merchandise to, such individuals or companies. 

WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITIES – Any cables, wires, lines, wave guides, antennas, 
antenna arrays, and any other equipment associated with the transmission or reception of 
telecommunications signals which a person seeks to locate or have installed upon or near a 
telecommunications tower or antenna support structure. 

YARD, FRONT – A yard across the full width of the lot extending from the front line of the main 
building to the front line of the lot. 

YARD, REAR – A yard extending a full width of the lot between a principal building and the rear 
lot line. 

YARD, REQUIRED FRONT – The required front yard shall extend across the front of a lot 
between the said property lines.  There shall be a required front yard on each street side of a 
corner lot.  The required front yard with the smallest required front yard may be referred to as 
the side-street-side front yard. 

YARD LINE – See Building Line 

YARD, REQUIRED REAR – The required rear yard shall extend across the rear of a lot between 
the said property lines.  On corner lots, the required rear yard may be to the rear of either 
street.  On interior lots, the required rear yard shall, in all cases, be at the opposite end of the 
lot from the front yard. 

YARD, REQUIRED – Shall mean the required open space between a property line and a building 
line.  The open space shall be unoccupied and unobstructed from the ground upwards except as 
otherwise provided in this title. 

YARD, REQUIRED SIDE – The required side yard shall extend between the required front yard 
line and the required rear yard line.  There shall only be one required side yard on a corner lot. 

YARD, SIDE – A yard between the main building and the side line of the lot and extending from 
the front yard line to the rear yard line. 

ZONE – A specifically delineated area or district of the City of Crooks within which regulations 
and requirements uniformly govern the use, placement, spacing, and size of land and buildings. 

 



133 
 

 

 

 

 



The City of Crooks is an equal opportunity provider. 

City of Crooks 
Crooks City Council 

Notice of Hearing 
 
Notice is hereby given that a hearing will be held before the Crooks City Council, sitting 
as Board of Adjustment, at 6:00pm/CST on the 10th day of April 2023 at the Crooks 
Community Center (701 S West Ave, Crooks, SD, 57020) upon receipt of an application 
for a conditional use by Kristin Anderson for the property located at 517 Superior Ave, 
Crooks, SD (Legal description: lot 2 in block 5 of Palmira Park Addition, County parcel: 
020021). The conditional use application is for a conditional use of the property for a 
home-based occupation (in-home child care).  
 
Notice is further given that at the time and place of aforesaid any person may appear and 
be heard upon all matters pertaining to the hearing. Interested parties may appear 
personally or through their designated agent(s), attorney(s), or representative(s). Anyone 
unable to attend may submit written comments prior to the hearing in-person at the 
municipal office (701 S West Ave, Crooks, SD) or via email at fo@crookssd.org. 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special 
assistance to participate in this hearing, please contact the Crooks Finance Officer at 
(605) 543-5238. Anyone who is deaf, hard-of-hearing or speech-disabled may utilize 
Relay South Dakota at (800) 877-1113 (TTY/Voice). Notification 48 hours prior to the 
hearing will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to 
this hearing. 
 
Tobias Schantz 
City Administrator/Finance Officer 
 
Published: __________________________ 
Published once at the approximate cost of: $__________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 



02-2023

lot 2, block 5, Palmira Park Addn.







2024 West Leg capacity – Clayton Energy commentary: 

 

Northern Natural Gas pipeline is having an “Open Season” on the pipeline that serves the City of Crooks.  

An open season allows a user of natural gas in the open season to apply for more capacity through their 

pipeline if the customer so desires.  Most of the Ɵme, a uƟlity applies for more capacity as their system 

load grows and they require more capacity to meet their new demand.  Although growing is a good 

thing, it is important to conƟnue to maintain the proper amount of capacity to meet the new peak load 

on the pipeline.   

 

The City of Crooks currently has a capacity of 1,045 units on Northern’s pipeline.  This past winter, Crooks 

had a peak day of 1,141 units in a 24‐hour period.  Clayton Energy was able to cover the difference and 

keep Crooks out of any penalty, but maintaining enough capacity to meet your own needs is highly 

recommended.  Therefore, I am recommending that the City of Crooks applies for at least 100 addiƟonal 

units.  I can do this for you, we only have a ten‐day window to get this applicaƟon submiƩed to Northern 

if you wish to do this.  Please let me know either way. 

 

SomeƟmes this addiƟonal capacity is not available on the pipeline, and I suspect this will be the case.  If 

that occurs, there will be construcƟon costs that apply to this request above and beyond the annual 

ongoing costs of this new capacity.  This is like the 550 capacity you applied for and received a few years 

ago.  AŌer we apply for this addiƟonal capacity and if the costs are “too high”, Crooks can simply say no 

and be done.  If NNG can give this capacity to you with no construcƟon costs, which would be a giŌ in 

today’s world, Crooks would be commiƩed to this. 



 

EJCDC® C-510, Notice of Award. 
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.   

Page 1 of 1 
 

NOTICE OF AWARD 

Date of Issuance:                                                  

Owner:  City of Crooks, South Dakota  Owner's Contract No.:   

Engineer: DGR Engineering Engineer's Project No.: 672119 

Project: 2023 Slurry Seal Surface Treatment Contract Name: 2023 Slurry Seal Surface Treatment 

Bidder: Asphalt Surfacing Company (ASCO) 

Bidder’s Address: 1205 W. Russell Street, Sioux Falls, SD 57104 

TO BIDDER: 

 You are notified that Owner has accepted your Bid dated March 9, 2023 for the above Contract, and that you 
are the Successful Bidder and are awarded a Contract for: 

2023 Slurry Seal Surface Treatment 
 

The Contract Price of the awarded Contract is:  $74,049.92. 

        [ 3 ] unexecuted counterparts of the Agreement accompany this Notice of Award, and one copy of the 
Contract Documents accompanies this Notice of Award, or has been transmitted or made available to 
Bidder electronically.  

           a set of the Drawings will be delivered separately from the other Contract Documents.  

 You must comply with the following conditions precedent within 15 days of the date of receipt of this Notice 
of Award: 
 

1. Deliver to Owner [3] counterparts of the Agreement, fully executed by Bidder. 

2. Deliver with the executed Agreement(s) the Contract security [e.g., performance and payment bonds] 
and insurance documentation as specified in the Instructions to Bidders and General Conditions, 
Articles 2 and 6. 

3. Other conditions precedent (if any):  
 

 Failure to comply with these conditions within the time specified will entitle Owner to consider you in default, 
annul this Notice of Award, and declare your Bid security forfeited.   

 Within ten days after you comply with the above conditions, Owner will return to you one fully executed 
counterpart of the Agreement, together with any additional copies of the Contract Documents as indicated in 
Paragraph 2.02 of the General Conditions. 

Owner:  
 

  
                         Authorized Signature 

By:  

Title:  
 
Copy: DGR Engineering 
  



P:\06\72\119\672119\Doc\Contract Docs\C-520 Agreement Stipulated Price 672119.Docx A-1 

AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR 

FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (STIPULATED PRICE) 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is by and between       City of Crooks, SD              (“Owner”) and     

Asphalt Surfacing Company (ASCO)              (“Contractor”). 

Owner and Contractor hereby agree as follows: 

 
ARTICLE 1 – WORK 

 
1.01 Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. 

The Work is generally described as follows: Place slurry seal on various streets. 
 
ARTICLE 2 – THE PROJECT 

 
2.01 The Project, of which the Work under the Contract Documents is a part, is generally 

described as follows: 2023 Surface Treatment Program - Slurry Seal for Sioux Falls and 
surrounding communities. 

 
ARTICLE 3 – ENGINEER 

 
3.01 The Project has been designed by DGR Engineering. 

 
3.02 The Owner has retained DGR Engineering (“Engineer”) to act as Owner’s representative, 

assume all duties and responsibilities, and have the rights and authority assigned to 
Engineer in the Contract Documents in connection with the completion of the Work in 
accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 
ARTICLE 4 – CONTRACT TIMES 

 
4.01 Time of the Essence 

 
A. All time limits for Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion, and completion and 

readiness for final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence 
of the Contract. 
 

4.02 Contract Times: Days 
 

A. The Work must be fully complete within 2 consecutive working days and must be 
completed prior to August 11, 2023.   
 

4.03 Liquidated Damages 
 

A. Contractor and Owner recognize that time is of the essence as stated in Paragraph 
4.01 above and that Owner will suffer financial and other losses if the Work is not 



P:\06\72\119\672119\Doc\Contract Docs\C-520 Agreement Stipulated Price 672119.Docx A-2 

completed and Milestones not achieved within the times specified in Paragraph 
4.02 above, plus any extensions thereof allowed in accordance with the Contract. 
The parties also recognize the delays, expense, and difficulties involved in 
proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the actual loss suffered by Owner if 
the Work is not completed on time. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such 
proof, Owner and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not 
as a penalty): 

 
1. Completion of Remaining Work: After Substantial Completion, if 

Contractor shall neglect, refuse, or fail to complete the remaining Work 
within the Contract Time (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) for 
completion and readiness for final payment, Contractor shall pay Owner 
$450.00 for each day that expires after such time until the Work is 
completed and ready for final payment. 

 
ARTICLE 5 – CONTRACT PRICE 

 
5.01 Owner shall pay Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract 

Documents the amounts that follow, subject to adjustment under the Contract: 
 

A. For all Work, at the prices stated in Contractor’s Bid, attached hereto as an 
exhibit. 
 
For all Unit Price Work, an amount equal to the sum of the established unit price 
for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work times the estimated 
quantity of that item as indicated in the Contractor's Bid.  As provided in 
Paragraph 11.03 of the General Conditions, estimated quantities are not 
guaranteed, and determinations of actual quantities and classifications are to be 
made by Engineer as provided in Paragraph 9.07 of the General Conditions.  Unit 
prices have been computed as provided in Paragraph 11.03 of the General 
Conditions. 

 
ARTICLE 6 – PAYMENT PROCEDURES 

 
6.01 Submittal and Processing of Payments 

 
A. Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 15 

of the General Conditions. Applications for Payment will be processed by 
Engineer as provided in the General Conditions. 
 

6.02 Progress Payments; Retainage 
 

A. Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price on the 
basis of Contractor’s Applications for Payment on or about the 10th day of each 
month during performance of the Work as provided in Paragraph 6.02.A.1 below, 
provided that such Applications for Payment have been submitted in a timely 
manner and otherwise meet the requirements of the Contract. All such payments 
will be measured by the Schedule of Values established as provided in the 
General Conditions (and in the case of Unit Price Work based on the number of 



P:\06\72\119\672119\Doc\Contract Docs\C-520 Agreement Stipulated Price 672119.Docx A-3 

units completed) or, in the event there is no Schedule of Values, as provided 
elsewhere in the Contract. 

 
1. Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an 

amount equal to the percentage indicated below but, in each case, less the 
aggregate of payments previously made and less such amounts as Owner 
may withhold, including but not limited to liquidated damages, in 
accordance with the Contract 
 
a. 90 percent of Work completed (with the balance being retainage). 

If the Work has been 50 percent completed as determined by 
Engineer, and if the character and progress of the Work have been 
satisfactory to Owner and Engineer, then as long as the character 
and progress of the Work remain satisfactory to Owner and 
Engineer, there will be no additional retainage; and 
 

b. 90 percent of cost of materials and equipment not incorporated in 
the Work (with the balance being retainage). 

 
B. Upon Substantial Completion, Owner shall pay an amount sufficient to increase 

total payments to Contractor to 95 percent of the Work completed, less such 
amounts set off by Owner pursuant to Paragraph 15.01.E of the General 
Conditions, and less 200 percent of Engineer’s estimate of the value of Work to 
be completed or corrected as shown on the punch list of items to be completed or 
corrected prior to final payment. 
 

6.03 Final Payment 
 

A. Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with Paragraph 
15.06 of the General Conditions, Owner shall pay the remainder of the Contract 
Price as recommended by Engineer as provided in said Paragraph 15.06. 

 
ARTICLE 7 – INTEREST 

 
7.01 All amounts not paid when due shall bear interest at the rate of 7 percent per annum. 
 
ARTICLE 8 – CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS 

 
8.01 In order to induce Owner to enter into this Contract, Contractor makes the following 

representations: 
 

A. Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents, and any 
data and reference items identified in the Contract Documents. 
 

B. Contractor has visited the Site, conducted a thorough, alert visual examination of 
the Site and adjacent areas, and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the 
general, local, and Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance 
of the Work. 



P:\06\72\119\672119\Doc\Contract Docs\C-520 Agreement Stipulated Price 672119.Docx A-4 

 
C. Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all Laws and Regulations that 

may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work. 
 

D. Contractor has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of 
subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site and all drawings of physical 
conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site that have 
been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect to 
Technical Data in such reports and drawings, and (2) reports and drawings 
relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if any, at or adjacent to the Site 
that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect 
to Technical Data in such reports and drawings.  If no such reports have been 
made available to Contractor, Contractor agrees that none are required from 
Owner. 
 

E. Contractor has considered the information known to Contractor itself; information 
commonly known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; 
information and observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Contract 
Documents; and the Site-related reports and drawings identified in the Contract 
Documents, with respect to the effect of such information, observations, and 
documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance of the Work; (2) the means, 
methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed 
by Contractor; and (3) Contractor’s safety precautions and programs. 
 

F. Based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding paragraph, 
Contractor agrees that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, 
studies, or data are necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract 
Price, within the Contract Times, and in accordance with the other terms and 
conditions of the Contract. 
 

G. Contractor is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and 
others at the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents. 
 

H. Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, 
or discrepancies that Contractor has discovered in the Contract Documents, and 
the written resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Contractor. 
 

I. The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey 
understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the 
Work. 
 

J. Contractor’s entry into this Contract constitutes an incontrovertible representation 
by Contractor that without exception all prices in the Agreement are premised 
upon performing and furnishing the Work required by the Contract Documents. 

 
 



P:\06\72\119\672119\Doc\Contract Docs\C-520 Agreement Stipulated Price 672119.Docx A-5 

ARTICLE 9 – CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 

9.01 Contents 
 

A. The Contract Documents consist of the following: 
 

1. This Agreement (pages A-1 to A-7, inclusive). 
 

2. Performance bond (pages 1 to 2, inclusive). 
 

3. Payment bond (pages 1 to 2, inclusive). 
 

4. General Conditions (pages 1 to 65, inclusive). 
 

5. Supplementary Conditions (pages SC-1 to SC-6, inclusive). 
 

6. Specifications as listed in the table of contents of the Project Manual. 
 

7. Drawings (not attached but incorporated by reference) consisting of 8 
sheets with each sheet bearing the following general title: 2023 Slurry 
Seal, Crooks, SD. 
 

8. Addenda (none). 
 

9. Exhibits to this Agreement (enumerated as follows): 
 

a. Contractor’s Bid (8 pages, inclusive). 
 

10. The following which may be delivered or issued on or after the Effective 
Date of the Contract and are not attached hereto: 

 
a. Notice to Proceed. 

 
b. Work Change Directives. 

 
c. Change Orders. 

 
d. Field Orders. 

 
B. The documents listed in Paragraph 9.01.A are attached to this Agreement (except 

as expressly noted otherwise above). 
 

C. There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 9. 
 

D. The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified, or supplemented as 
provided in the General Conditions. 



P:\06\72\119\672119\Doc\Contract Docs\C-520 Agreement Stipulated Price 672119.Docx A-6 

 
ARTICLE 10 – MISCELLANEOUS 

 
10.01 Terms 

 
A. Terms used in this Agreement will have the meanings stated in the General 

Conditions and the Supplementary Conditions. 
 

10.02 Assignment of Contract 
 

A. Unless expressly agreed to elsewhere in the Contract, no assignment by a party 
hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract will be binding on another 
party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, 
specifically but without limitation, money that may become due and money that is 
due may not be assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect 
of this restriction may be limited by law), and unless specifically stated to the 
contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or 
discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract 
Documents. 

 
10.03 Successors and Assigns 

 
A. Owner and Contractor each binds itself, its successors, assigns, and legal 

representatives to the other party hereto, its successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements, and obligations contained 
in the Contract Documents. 

 
10.04 Severability 

 
A. Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable 

under any Law or Regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining 
provisions shall continue to be valid and binding upon Owner and Contractor, 
who agree that the Contract Documents shall be reformed to replace such stricken 
provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that comes as 
close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision. 

 
10.05 Contractor’s Certifications 

 
A. Contractor certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or 

coercive practices in competing for or in executing the Contract.  For the purposes 
of this Paragraph 10.05: 

 
1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of 

any thing of value likely to influence the action of a public official in the 
bidding process or in the Contract execution; 
 

2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made 
(a) to influence the bidding process or the execution of the Contract to the 
detriment of Owner, (b) to establish Bid or Contract prices at artificial 



P:\06\72\119\672119\Doc\Contract Docs\C-520 Agreement Stipulated Price 672119.Docx A-7 

non-competitive levels, or (c) to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and 
open competition; 
 

3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more 
Bidders, with or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is 
to establish Bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels; and 
 

4. “coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or 
indirectly, persons or their property to influence their participation in the 
bidding process or affect the execution of the Contract. 

 
10.06 Other Provisions 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and Contractor have signed this Agreement.  
 
This Agreement will be effective on __________ (which is the Effective Date of the Contract). 

 
 

OWNER:  CONTRACTOR: 

City of Crooks, SD  Asphalt Surfacing Company (ASCO) 

By:   By:  

Title:   Title:  

  

(If Contractor is a corporation, a partnership, 
or a joint venture, attach evidence of 
authority to sign.)   

Attest:   Attest:  

Title:   Title:  

Address for giving notices:  Address for giving notices: 

   

   

   

  License No.:  

   (where applicable) 

(If Owner is a corporation, attach evidence of 
authority to sign. If Owner is a public body, 
attach evidence of authority to sign and 
resolution or other documents authorizing  
execution of this Agreement.) 

 NOTE TO USER:  Use in those states or 
other jurisdictions where applicable or 
required. 

 



1 
Effective July 1, 2022 

Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing Program 
Participation Agreement 

This Participation Agreement is between Sourcewell and Participating Entity to provide access to 
Sourcewell’s Cooperative Purchasing Program. Sourcewell’s Board of Directors has approved 
these terms and conditions through operation of this intergovernmental Participation Agreement. 
Participating Entity approves this Agreement upon registration with Sourcewell. 

Section 1: Authority 

1.1 Sourcewell is a service cooperative established by Minn. Stat. § 123A.21 as a local unit 
of government pursuant to the Minn. Const. art. XII, sec. 3.  

1.2 Sourcewell is authorized to provide a Cooperative Purchasing Program by Minn. Stat. § 
123A.21, subd. 7(23) to Participating Entities.  

1.3 Sourcewell’s cooperative purchasing contracts and master agreements are offered 
through Minn. Stat. § 471.59 and this Participation Agreement. The Sourcewell Board of 
Directors has approved these participation terms, and Sourcewell is authorized to enter this 
interlocal or joint powers agreement with an eligible Participating Entity through this 
Participation Agreement.  

1.4 Participation in Sourcewell’s Cooperative Purchasing Program is open to eligible 
Participating Entities. A Participating Entity is any eligible entity registering with Sourcewell, 
including: any government unit, including a state, city, county, town, village, school district, 
political subdivision of any state, federally recognized Indian tribe, any agency of the United 
States, any instrumentality of a governmental unit, any other entity as defined in Minn. Stat. § 
471.59 Subd. 1(b), and any entity as defined in Art. VI of the Sourcewell Bylaws. 

1.5 Participating Entity and Sourcewell agree this Participation Agreement is for the purpose 
of allowing access to available Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing Program contracts and 
master agreements with awarded suppliers.  

1.6 Participating Entity represents, through an authorized signatory, it is eligible for 
participation as defined in this Agreement. 

Section 2: General Terms 

2.1 Sourcewell will make its Cooperative Purchasing Program available to Participating 
Entity. Sourcewell programs and master agreements are provided to Participating Entity "as is.” 
Sourcewell makes no representation as to warranties of quality, merchantability, or fitness for a 
particular purpose. Participation in the Program is voluntary and non-exclusive.  

2.2 To purchase from Sourcewell contracts and master agreements, Participating Entity must 
enter into a purchase order or other subsequent agreement in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of master agreements directly with a supplier. Participating Entity will be responsible 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C472F9EA-DFD2-4A5E-A6FD-E93C49444B39



2 
Effective July 1, 2022 

for all aspects of its purchase, including ordering its goods and services, inspecting, accepting the 
goods and services, and prompt payment to supplier who will have directly billed the 
Participating Entity. 

2.3 The Parties to this Agreement will adhere to all applicable laws concerning the 
procurement of goods and services in its respective jurisdiction. 

2.4 Access to the Cooperative Purchasing Program is effective upon the date of Participating 
Entity’s completed registration. The Agreement will remain in effect until canceled by either 
party upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other party. 

2.5 Each party agrees that it is responsible for its acts and the results thereof, to the extent 
authorized by law, and will not be responsible for the acts of the other party and the results 
thereof.  

2.8 There will be no financial remunerations by or obligations upon Participating Entity for 
participation in Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing Program. 

2.9 Sourcewell’s Cooperative Purchasing Program master agreements will be procured in 
compliance with Minnesota law and the Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing Program. 

2.10 The records and documents related to this this Agreement are subject to the Minnesota 
Data Practices Act, Minnesota Statutes Chapter 13. 

Section 3: Approval 

The Sourcewell Board of Director has approved this Policy effective July 1, 2022. 

Sourcewell: Participating Entity: 

By By 
Authorized Signature – Signed Authorized Signature – Signed 

By   By  
Name – Printed Name – Printed 
Title Sourcewell Board of Directors Chair Title  
Date  Date   

By 
Authorized Signature – Signed 

By   
Name – Printed 
Title Sourcewell Board of Directors Clerk 
Date  

DocuSign Envelope ID: C472F9EA-DFD2-4A5E-A6FD-E93C49444B39

8/19/2022 | 9:40 AM CDT

Greg Zylka

Sara Nagel

8/19/2022 | 10:35 AM CDT



1 of 6| P a g e  
 

 
April 10th, 2023 
 
City of Crooks 
Attn: City Council 
701 S. West Avenue 
Crooks, SD  57020 
 
RE: Proposal for Banking Services 
 
Council Members, 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to quote you on your banking service needs. As a family owned and 
operated bank, we pride ourselves on the communities we serve. Below you will find quotes on the 
proposed loan as well as our proposal to service the City of Crooks deposit. 
 
 
Loan Proposal: 
 
We agree to provide the City of Crooks with the following loan proposals to refinance the 2022 Kubota 
L6060HSTC and the Kubota LA1055 (Front Loader). Reliabank will loan up to 80% of the purchase 
price. This brings the loan commitment to $44,477. A loan origination fee of $200. The pricing options 
available are: 
 
With a deposit relationship 
 

1. A 3-year note with a fixed rate commitment of 5.57% with principal and interest payments. 
 

2. A 5-year note with a fixed rate commitment of 5.32% with principal and interest payments. 
 

3. A 7-year note with a fixed rate commitment of 5.25% with principal and interest payments. 
 

 
Collateral: The loan will be secured by a UCC on the Kubota L6060HSTC and the Kubota LA1055 
 
 
Insurance: Property and Casualty Insurance naming the Bank as loss payee. The insured amount may not 
be less than the note amount and should be for the full insurable amount. The insurance expenses will not 
be paid by the participating bank. 
 
 
Prepayment Penalty: There will be no prepayment penalty affiliated with this loan. 
 



2 of 6| P a g e  
 

 
Other Loan Conditions: 
 
This proposal letter is for discussion purposes only and does not constitute a formal loan agreement 
containing all of the terms and provisions necessary to define the lending relationship but is merely the 
preliminary step in the process of negotiation and preparing final loan documents. 
 
All conditions and terms are subject to final approval by appropriate committees at Reliabank. Items 
needed to complete final approval. 

- City Council minutes authorizing Reliabank as an approved lender 
- Documentation of who is authorized to sign for loans with the city 
- EIN Paperwork for the City of Crooks 

 
The obligation of the Bank under this commitment is further subject to the accuracy, now and continuing, 
of materials submitted to the Bank in connection with this loan request. The Bank shall have the right to 
terminate this commitment at any time in the event of material adverse changes in either the financial 
position of the Borrower or any other matter which the Bank reviewed in its evaluation of the loan 
request. In no event will the Bank be obligated to fund this loan in contravention of any federal or state 
statues or regulations. 
 
 
 
Thank you for giving us the opportunity to fund this transaction. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
Zach Scott, Sioux Falls Manager 
Jeremy Keizer, Market President 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 of 6| P a g e  
 

 
Deposit Proposal: 
 
We agree to provide the following services to the City of Crooks with the following prices: 
 
Service        Fee 
Account Management   $0.00 per month. 
Checks Posted    Free. 
Deposit Items Posted   Free. 
Bank Transfers between Accounts Free. 
Stop Payments    $11.50 In Branch or Online (Each Item). 
Outgoing Wire Transfers  $10.00 In Branch or Online. 
Incoming Wire Transfers                         $10.00 In Branch or Online. 
Returned Checks   $30 per Item. 
Bank Bags    Free. 
Internet Banking   Part of Account Management Fee above. 
 
ACH Management Services: 
 
Set-up Fee                Part of Account Management Fee above. 
Batch Transmission               Part of Account Management Fee above. 
Items per Batch                Part of Account Management Fee above. 
On Site Training   Part of Account Management Fee above. 
Certificates of Deposit   Contact for current rates. 
POS System for Office/Pool  Will submit merchant referral for pricing. 
 
Premium Checking   0.4% on balances $150,000 and up. 
 
Savings Account                                      0.1% on all balances. 
 
Money Market Savings                           Average Daily Balance of: 
                                                                 1.35% on balances of $2,500.00 - $24,999.99 
                                                                 1.40% on balances of $25,000.00 - $74,999.99 
                                                                 1.45% on balances of $75,000.00 - $199,999.99 
                                                                 1.50% on balances of $200,000 and up 
                                                                  
 
This proposal does not represent any formal contractual obligation.  All account fees, rates, and terms are 
subject to future change. I hereby certify that I am authorized as a Representative for Reliabank. 
 
 
 
 
Official Completing Proposal: 
Zach Scott, Sioux Falls Manager 
Jeremy Keizer, Market President 
 
  



4 of 6| P a g e  
 

Additional Information for Banking Services 
A. Monthly Statements 

We will plan to cut your statements at the conclusion of the last day of every 
month.  The statements will be available digitally within our online cash 
management system by 8:00 AM on the 1st of every month.  If paper statements 
are preferred, we can facilitate this at no additional charge. 

B. Account Executive 
Primary:  Kate Paine, located at 200 E. 4th St. Colton, SD  57018 
  Phone: 605-446-5000             Email: katep@reliabank.com  

  Secondary: Michelle Schleusner located at 211 N. Main St., Estelline, SD. 
    Phone: 605-873-2261   Email: michellev@reliabank.com 

 
C. ACH and EFT Processing 

Our cash management system has the capability of fulfilling your ACH and 
payroll requirements. 

D. Stop Payments 
We can facilitate your stop payments in branch or online.  The charge for an in 
branch stop payment and for an online stop payment is $11.50.  We encourage 
using the online option, here is a screenshot of what is required within our online 
system: 

 
 
 

E. Bank On-line Transfer 
Transfers between internal accounts can be handled within our Online Cash 
Management system.  Internal transfers can be done within the system for no 
charge.  We will also offer a free sweep from the Main Checking account into the 
Money Market Account down to the required minimum balance. 

  



5 of 6| P a g e  
 

F. Credit Card Options 
We have an in-house credit card program.  We will be able to meet your needs 
with a competitive cash rewards program.   

G. Collateralization of Deposits 
Reliabank is a state charted financial institution regulated by both the South 
Dakota Division of Banking and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).  
For all balances held over the threshold of the FDIC insurance limit we will 
collateralize the deposit with specific, identifiable, high-quality bonds or leverage 
our irrevocable letter of credit.   
 

H. Other Services 
Remote Deposit Capture – This capability allows you to deposit a large volume of 
checks from your desktop.  The scanner cost is approximately $750.00 and the 
monthly charge would be under the $0.00 per month account management fee.   
 
If your scanner does not work with our system, we will provide a compatible 
machine at no cost.  Ongoing maintenance or replacement of the machine will be 
a cost passed to the City of Crooks. 
 
There are some basic Technical Specifications and requirements of your system in 
addition to the machine.  Any additional software or updates required on your 
system to run the check scanning software will be a cost to the City of Crooks. 
 
To help minimize the initial overhead expense of your banking change we will 
offer to start you out with the following with no additional charge: 

 500 business computer checks for Main Checking Account 
 1000 Deposit Slips for Main Checking Account 

 

 
  



6 of 6| P a g e  
 

Supplement #1 – Bank Ownership Information 
Reliabank is a subsidiary of Big Sioux Financial, Inc. a South Dakota S-corp.  A family 
of four individuals hold all ownership stock in Big Sioux Financial and ultimately 
Reliabank Dakota.  David, Jan, Reid, and Ethan Johnson are the four family members.  
All four are active in the bank.  David services as CEO and Chairman of the board of 
directors, Jan serves as a director on the board, Reid is our Chief Culture Officer, and 
Ethan serves as our Treasury Officer. 

 
 

 



Organization Information 
Indicate an address to which correspondence may be delivered. 

Organization Name* 

Address* 

City* 

State Code* Zip Code*    

Country* 

Employer Identification Number 

Website 

Contact person* (First, Last) 

Job Title* 

Administrator 

Department Head 

Department Purchaser 

Human Resources 

Procurement Officer 

Teacher 

Other  

Email* 

Phone* 

Email completed agreement to: 
service@sourcewell-mn.gov 

You may also mail the 
completed agreement to: 

Sourcewell 

202 12th Street NE 
P.O. Box 219  
Staples, MN 56479 

Department 

Administration 

Dining/Food Service

Facilities/Operations

Fleet/Transportation

Human Resources 

Information Technology

Parks, Recreation & Athletics

Public Safety/Security

Public Works/Utilities

Purchasing & Finance

Job Role



Sourcewell Page 2 of 2 

REV. 09/2022 

Organization Type: 
Government 

County 

Federal 

Municipality 

Province/Territory 

Special District 

State 

Township 

Tribal 

Education 

Local Education Agency (Public K-12 and Pre-K) 

Private Local Education Agency (Private K-12) 

Private Higher Education 

Public Higher Education 

Nonprofit 
Documentation demonstrating nonprofit status is required when submitting application. 

Church 

Medical Facility 

Other 

Referred by 

Advertisement 

Colleague/Friend 

Conference/Trade Show  

Supplier 

Search Engine/Web Search 

Sourcewell Employee 

*Denotes required information



P:\_Council\Legals\Ordinances WIP\2023 - Ord 324 - Peddler's license\Ord #324 Updated 
PeddlerFoodTruckOrd WIP v5.docx 1 

CITY OF CROOKS 
ORDINANCE #324 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CROOKS, SOUTH DAKOTA, PERTAINING TO 
THE REGULATION OF PEDDLERS, SOLICITORS, TRANSIENT MERCHANTS AND 
MOBILE FOOD VENDORS. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CROOKS, SOUTH 
DAKOTA, THAT: 

Sections 
Section 1. Definitions ................................................................................................................ 1 

Section 2. Permit Required .................................................................................................... 2 

Section 3.  Nuisances ................................................................................................................. 2 

Section 4. Exceptions ............................................................................................................... 2 

Section 5. Application for Peddler/Solicitor/Transient Permit ........................................ 2 

Section 6. Application for Mobile Food Vendor Permit ................................................... 3 

Section 7. Fees and Duration of Peddler/Solicitor/Transient Permit ............................. 3 

Section 8. Fees and Duration of Mobile Food Vendor Permit ......................................... 3 

Section 9. Peddler/Solicitor/Transient Vendor Hours of Operation ............................... 3 

Section 10. Mobile Food Vendor Locations and Times Prohibited ................................... 4 

Section 11. Mobile Food Vendor Health, Safety, and Sanitation ...................................... 4 

Section 12. Suspension or Revocation of Permit .................................................................. 4 

Section 13 Penalty for Violation ............................................................................................. 5 

Section 14. Ordinances in Conflict .......................................................................................... 5 

 

Section 1. Definitions 
The following definitions shall apply to this ordinance: 
 

a. Peddler/Solicitor/Transient Merchant: as used in this ordinance shall mean any 
person, principal, or agent, traveling from place to place, from house to house or 
from street to street for the purpose of selling or soliciting for sale goods, wares, 
merchandise, or services, and shall also include any person transacting a temporary 
business within the City at an established place of business. 

b. Mobile Food Vendor: as used in this ordinance shall mean any person, principal, 
or agent, engaging in an activity whereby prepared food, either on-site or at 
another licensed food preparation facility, or beverages are sold from a food truck 
or food cart.  This definition shall not include food and beverage delivery services. 

 



P:\_Council\Legals\Ordinances WIP\2023 - Ord 324 - Peddler's license\Ord #324 Updated 
PeddlerFoodTruckOrd WIP v5.docx 2 

Section 2. Permit Required 
It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in business as a peddler/solicitor/transient 
merchant or mobile food vendor within this City without first obtaining a permit to do so. 
No peddler's permit shall be issued to a corporation, partnership or other impersonal legal 
entity. Each individual person engaging in the business of peddling/soliciting within the City 
shall be required to have a permit whether acting for himself/herself or as an agent or 
representative of another. Permits issued under this ordinance shall be non-transferrable. 
 
It shall be unlawful for any person to give any false or misleading information in connection 
with an application for a permit required by this article. No permit shall be issued if the 
information in the application is incomplete. 
 

Section 3.  Nuisances 
It shall be unlawful for any peddler/solicitor/transient merchant to enter upon a private 
premises when the same is posted with a sign stating, “No Peddlers Allowed”, “No 
Solicitors Allowed” or the like.  Any peddler/solicitor/transient merchant who enters upon 
premises owned or leased by another and willfully refuses to leave the premises having been 
notified by the owner or possessor of the premises, to leave the same, shall be deemed guilty 
of a class 2 misdemeanor.  It shall be unlawful for any peddler/solicitor/transient merchant 
to make false or fraudulent statements concerning the quality or nature of goods, wares, 
merchandise, or services for the purpose of inducing another to purchase the same. Every 
peddler/solicitor/transient merchant having a permit issued under the provisions of this 
article and doing business within the City shall openly display their permit. 

 

Section 4. Exceptions 
The provisions of this ordinance shall not apply to: 
 

a. Solicitations, sales or distributions made by charitable, educational, or 
religious organizations. 

b. The seasonal sale of agricultural products produced or processed in this state; 
c. Traveling salespersons doing business exclusively with retail 

merchants, manufacturers, jobbers or public officials. 
d. Bona fide garage, rummage, yard or moving sales which do not 

occur at the same location more than four times per year, for more 
than four days each time. 

 

Section 5. Application for Peddler/Solicitor/Transient Permit 
The application for a permit required by the provisions of this article shall contain: 
 

a. The applicant's name, permanent address, local address, and date of birth. 
b. The name local and permanent addresses of the person or entity that the 

applicant represents and if an entity, the type of entity and the state in which 
the entity is legally organized. 

c. A photocopy of the applicant’s government issued identification. 
d. A statement describing the kind of goods, wares, merchandise, or 



P:\_Council\Legals\Ordinances WIP\2023 - Ord 324 - Peddler's license\Ord #324 Updated 
PeddlerFoodTruckOrd WIP v5.docx 3 

services the applicant wishes to sell within the City. 
e. A statement of whether the applicant, upon any sale or order, shall demand, 

accept, or receive payment, or deposit, of money in advance of final 
delivery. 

f. The period of time the applicant wishes to engage in business within the City. 
g. A photocopy of the applicable South Dakota sales tax license. 

 

Section 6. Application for Mobile Food Vendor Permit 
The application for a permit required by the provisions of this article shall contain: 

 
a. The applicant’s name, address, phone numbers and government issued ID number. 
b. The business name, address, phone numbers and SD Sales Tax number. 
c. A photocopy of the applicant’s government issued ID. 
d. A statement describing the kids of goods, wares, merchandise or services the 

applicant wishes to sell within the City. 
e. A description of the location/site where the Mobile Food Vendor will be set up and 

size of the unit. 
f. The period of time the applicant wishes to engage in business within the City. 
g. A photocopy of the applicable South Dakota sales tax license. 

 

Section 7. Fees and Duration of Peddler/Solicitor/Transient Permit 
Before any Peddler/Solicitor/Transient Merchant permit shall be issued under the provisions 
of this ordinance, the applicant shall pay a fee in the form of cash, cashier's check, or money 
order tendered at the time of application, pursuant to the fees established via resolution by 
the City Council. 
 
Any permit issued under the provisions of this ordinance will expire at 8:00 o'clock p.m. on 
the date of expiration which is written on the permit. 
 
The City Finance Office shall complete a review of each application for a 
Peddler/Solicitor/Transient Merchant permit and issue a permit within 5 (five) business days 
of completion of the application and payment of the application fee, exclusive of weekends 
and holidays. 

Section 8. Fees and Duration of Mobile Food Vendor Permit 
Before any Mobile Food Vendor Permit shall be issued under the provisions of this ordinance, 
the applicant shall pay a fee tendered at the time of application pursuant to the fees established 
via resolution by the City Council. 
 
The City Finance Office shall complete a review of each application for a Mobile Food 
Vendor permit and issue a permit within 5 (five) business days of completion of the 
application and payment of the application fee, exclusive of weekends and holidays. 
 

Section 9. Peddler/Solicitor/Transient Vendor Hours of Operation 
It shall be unlawful for any Peddler/Solicitor/Transient Merchant to engage in the business 
of peddling, selling or vending between the hours of 8:00 p.m. and 9:00 a.m. Peddling shall 



P:\_Council\Legals\Ordinances WIP\2023 - Ord 324 - Peddler's license\Ord #324 Updated 
PeddlerFoodTruckOrd WIP v5.docx 4 

only be allowed on Sundays between the hours of 1:00 p.m. and 6:00 p.m. It shall be 
unlawful for any Peddler/Solicitor/Transient Merchant to engage in the business of peddling 
on the following days: 
 

New Year's Day, ....................January 1 
President's Day, ......................Third Monday in February 
Memorial Day, ........................Last Monday in May 
Independence Day, .................July 4 
Labor Day, ..............................First Monday in September 
Native American Day, ...........Second Monday in October 
Thanksgiving Day, .................Fourth Thursday in November 
Day after Thanksgiving Day, Fourth Friday in November 
Christmas Eve, .......................December 24 
Christmas Day, .......................December 25 
New Year’s Eve, .....................December 31 

 
 

Section 10. Mobile Food Vendor Locations and Times Prohibited 
a.  Mobile food and beverage vending is prohibited where vending activity is blocking 

access to a public street, alley, bike path, sidewalk, or access to an adjacent property, or 
in areas zoned residential. 

b. Mobile food and beverage vending is prohibited in any municipal-owned property, 
including parks, without express written permission of the City. 

c. Mobile food and beverage vending is prohibited within the city between the hours of 
12:00 am and 5:00 am.   

d. The above prohibited times and locations do not apply to mobile food vendors operating 
where a city-approved special event permit has been issued, and with authorization from 
the special event sponsor.   

 

Section 11. Mobile Food Vendor Health, Safety, and Sanitation 
Mobile Food and beverage vendors shall: 

a. Operate according to the minimum public health and food safety requirements 
determined by South Dakota Department of Health; 

b. Comply with the fire safety requirements checklist as provided on the South Dakota 
mobile food and beverage vending license; 

c. Comply with the licensing requirements of the State of South Dakota including food, 
sales tax, and mobile food and beverage vending; 

d. Provide a trash bin for public use and remove all garbage within 25 feet of any food truck 
or food cart;  

e. Not sell or distribute alcoholic beverages; 
f. Not broadcast loud noise that results in a nuisance to the surrounding properties. 

 

Section 12. Suspension or Revocation of Permit 
Any permit issued under the provisions of this chapter shall be subject to suspension or 
revocation by the City Administrator for violation of any provisions of state law, or city 



P:\_Council\Legals\Ordinances WIP\2023 - Ord 324 - Peddler's license\Ord #324 Updated 
PeddlerFoodTruckOrd WIP v5.docx 5 

code.  If the issues that caused the suspension or revocation are corrected, the City 
Administrator may determine reinstatement is appropriate, and may impose additional 
conditions as deemed reasonable to protect the health and welfare of the public as a 
condition of reinstatement. 
 

Section 13 Penalty for Violation 
A violation of any provision of this ordinance is punishable in accordance with the 
applicable provisions of South Dakota Codified Law Sec. 9-19-3. 
 
 

Section 14. Ordinances in Conflict 
All ordinances or parts thereof in conflict herewith are repealed.  Ordinance #188 is 
specifically repealed. 
 
 
Aye: 
Nay: 
Abstain: 
 
Adopted this ______ day of ___________, 202_. 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________    (SEAL) 
F. Butch Oseby, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Tobias Schantz, Finance Officer 
 
Legislative History: 
Public hearing: 
First reading: 
Second reading: 
Amendment: 
Additional reading due to substantial amendment: 
Passage & adoption: 
Publication date: 
Effective date: 



P:\_Council\Legals\Ordinances WIP\2023 - Ord 324 - Peddler's license\Ord #324 Updated 
PeddlerFoodTruckOrd WIP v5.docx 6 

Published once at the approximate cost of: 



P:\_Council\Legals\Resolutions\2023\2023-04 - Peddler-FoodVendor Rates\Res 2023-04 - Peddler-Food Truck 
License Rates fnl.docx 

 1 
 

CITY OF CROOKS 
RESOLUTION #2023-04 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CROOKS, SOUTH 
DAKOTA, ESTABLISHING FEES FOR PEDDLER/SOLICITOR/TRANSIENT 
MERCHANT AND MOBILE FOOD VENDOR PERMITS.  
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance #333 establishes that Peddler/Solicitor/Transient Merchant permits and 
Mobile Food Vendor permits fees shall be established by resolution; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the following rates are hereby established 
for Peddler/Solicitor/Transient Merchant and Mobile Food Vendor permits as follows: 
 

Permit Type Duration Fees 
Peddler/Solicitor/Transient 
Merchant 

30 days $20.00 

Mobile Food Vendor Calendar Year $50.00 
Mobile Food Vendor City Sponsored 

Events Only 
$0.00 

 
 
 
Ayes:  
Nays: 
Abstains: 
 
Dated this 13th day of March, 2023. 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________     (SEAL) 
F. Butch Oseby, Mayor 
        Attest: 
        ____________________________ 
        Tobias Schantz, Finance Officer 
 
Passed:  
Published:  
Effective:  
 


	04102023 RMA fnl
	03132023 RMM fnl
	30202023 Board of Equalization meeting minutes fnl
	Council Revenue Guideline
	03-2023 Treasurer's Report
	04-2023 Claims
	NoH Crooks Zoning Regulations 04102023
	FINAL 2023 Revised Crooks Zoning Regulations 3-23-2023
	NoH Conditional Use home-based day care 04102023
	2024 West Leg capacity
	C-510 Notice of Award Crooks 672119
	C-520 Agreement Stipulated Price 672119
	ARTICLE 1 –  WORK
	1.01 Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The Work is generally described as follows: Place slurry seal on various streets.

	ARTICLE 2 –  THE PROJECT
	2.01 The Project, of which the Work under the Contract Documents is a part, is generally described as follows: 2023 Surface Treatment Program - Slurry Seal for Sioux Falls and surrounding communities.

	ARTICLE 3 –  ENGINEER
	3.01 The Project has been designed by DGR Engineering.
	3.02 The Owner has retained DGR Engineering (“Engineer”) to act as Owner’s representative, assume all duties and responsibilities, and have the rights and authority assigned to Engineer in the Contract Documents in connection with the completion of th...

	ARTICLE 4 –  CONTRACT TIMES
	4.01 Time of the Essence
	A. All time limits for Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion, and completion and readiness for final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract.

	4.02 Contract Times: Days
	A. The Work must be fully complete within 2 consecutive working days and must be completed prior to August 11, 2023.

	4.03 Liquidated Damages
	A. Contractor and Owner recognize that time is of the essence as stated in Paragraph 4.01 above and that Owner will suffer financial and other losses if the Work is not completed and Milestones not achieved within the times specified in Paragraph 4.02...
	1. Completion of Remaining Work: After Substantial Completion, if Contractor shall neglect, refuse, or fail to complete the remaining Work within the Contract Time (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) for completion and readiness for final paym...



	ARTICLE 5 –  CONTRACT PRICE
	5.01 Owner shall pay Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents the amounts that follow, subject to adjustment under the Contract:
	A. For all Work, at the prices stated in Contractor’s Bid, attached hereto as an exhibit.
	For all Unit Price Work, an amount equal to the sum of the established unit price for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work times the estimated quantity of that item as indicated in the Contractor's Bid.  As provided in Paragraph 11.03 of...


	ARTICLE 6 –  PAYMENT PROCEDURES
	6.01 Submittal and Processing of Payments
	A. Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 15 of the General Conditions. Applications for Payment will be processed by Engineer as provided in the General Conditions.

	6.02 Progress Payments; Retainage
	A. Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price on the basis of Contractor’s Applications for Payment on or about the 10th day of each month during performance of the Work as provided in Paragraph 6.02.A.1 below, provided that s...
	1. Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an amount equal to the percentage indicated below but, in each case, less the aggregate of payments previously made and less such amounts as Owner may withhold, including but not li...
	a. 90 percent of Work completed (with the balance being retainage). If the Work has been 50 percent completed as determined by Engineer, and if the character and progress of the Work have been satisfactory to Owner and Engineer, then as long as the ch...
	b. 90 percent of cost of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work (with the balance being retainage).


	B. Upon Substantial Completion, Owner shall pay an amount sufficient to increase total payments to Contractor to 95 percent of the Work completed, less such amounts set off by Owner pursuant to Paragraph 15.01.E of the General Conditions, and less 200...

	6.03 Final Payment
	A. Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions, Owner shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as recommended by Engineer as provided in said Paragraph 15.06.


	ARTICLE 7 –  INTEREST
	7.01 All amounts not paid when due shall bear interest at the rate of 7 percent per annum.

	ARTICLE 8 –  CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS
	8.01 In order to induce Owner to enter into this Contract, Contractor makes the following representations:
	A. Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents, and any data and reference items identified in the Contract Documents.
	B. Contractor has visited the Site, conducted a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site and adjacent areas, and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local, and Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance ...
	C. Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.
	D. Contractor has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site that have been...
	E. Contractor has considered the information known to Contractor itself; information commonly known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Contract Documents; and t...
	F. Based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding paragraph, Contractor agrees that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract Pr...
	G. Contractor is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents.
	H. Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that Contractor has discovered in the Contract Documents, and the written resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Contractor.
	I. The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work.
	J. Contractor’s entry into this Contract constitutes an incontrovertible representation by Contractor that without exception all prices in the Agreement are premised upon performing and furnishing the Work required by the Contract Documents.


	ARTICLE 9 –  CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
	9.01 Contents
	A. The Contract Documents consist of the following:
	1. This Agreement (pages A-1 to A-7, inclusive).
	2. Performance bond (pages 1 to 2, inclusive).
	3. Payment bond (pages 1 to 2, inclusive).
	4. General Conditions (pages 1 to 65, inclusive).
	5. Supplementary Conditions (pages SC-1 to SC-6, inclusive).
	6. Specifications as listed in the table of contents of the Project Manual.
	7. Drawings (not attached but incorporated by reference) consisting of 8 sheets with each sheet bearing the following general title: 2023 Slurry Seal, Crooks, SD.
	8. Addenda (none).
	9. Exhibits to this Agreement (enumerated as follows):
	a. Contractor’s Bid (8 pages, inclusive).

	10. The following which may be delivered or issued on or after the Effective Date of the Contract and are not attached hereto:
	a. Notice to Proceed.
	b. Work Change Directives.
	c. Change Orders.
	d. Field Orders.


	B. The documents listed in Paragraph 9.01.A are attached to this Agreement (except as expressly noted otherwise above).
	C. There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 9.
	D. The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified, or supplemented as provided in the General Conditions.


	ARTICLE 10 –  MISCELLANEOUS
	10.01 Terms
	A. Terms used in this Agreement will have the meanings stated in the General Conditions and the Supplementary Conditions.

	10.02 Assignment of Contract
	A. Unless expressly agreed to elsewhere in the Contract, no assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract will be binding on another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, specifi...

	10.03 Successors and Assigns
	A. Owner and Contractor each binds itself, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives to the other party hereto, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contr...

	10.04 Severability
	A. Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable under any Law or Regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and binding upon Owner and Contractor, who agree that the...

	10.05 Contractor’s Certifications
	A. Contractor certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive practices in competing for or in executing the Contract.  For the purposes of this Paragraph 10.05:
	1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of any thing of value likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process or in the Contract execution;
	2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to influence the bidding process or the execution of the Contract to the detriment of Owner, (b) to establish Bid or Contract prices at artificial non-competitive levels...
	3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, with or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish Bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels; and
	4. “coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons or their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or affect the execution of the Contract.


	10.06 Other Provisions


	Application-CityofCrooksTobiasSchantz
	Ord #324 - Updated PeddlerFoodTruckOrd WIP v5
	Res 2023-04 - Peddler-Food Truck License Rates fnl

	printed_name: 
	title: 
	DATE: 
	company: City of Crooks
	street: 701 S West Ave
	city: Crooks
	state: SD
	zip: 57020
	country: US
	ein: 460352401
	website: http://www.crookssd.org
	first_name: Tobias
	last_name: Schantz
	job_title: City Administrator/Finance Officer
	job_role_administrator: Yes
	job_role_dept-head: Off
	job_role_dept-purchaser: Off
	job_role_human-resources: Off
	job_role_procurement-officer: Off
	job_role_teacher: Off
	job_role_other: Off
	department_administration: Yes
	department_dining-food-service: Off
	department_facilities-operations: Off
	department_fleet-transportation: Off
	department_human-resources: Off
	department_information-technology: Off
	department_parks-recreation-athletics: Off
	department_public-safety-security: Off
	department_public-works-utilities: Off
	department_purchasing-finance: Off
	email: fo@crookssd.org
	phone: 6055435238
	org_sub_type_county: Off
	org_sub_type_federal: Off
	org_sub_type_municipality: Yes
	org_sub_type_province-territory: Off
	org_sub_type_special-district: Off
	org_sub_type_state: Off
	org_sub_type_township: Off
	org_sub_type_tribal: Off
	org_sub_type_public-k-12: Off
	org_sub_type_private-k-12: Off
	org_sub_type_private-higher-ed: Off
	org_sub_type_public-higher-ed: Off
	org_sub_type_church: Off
	org_sub_type_medical-facility: Off
	org_sub_type_other: Off
	referral_advertisement: Off
	referral_colleague-friend: Off
	referral_conference-trade-show: Off
	referral_supplier: Yes
	referral_search-engine: Off
	referral_sourcewell-employee: Off
	referral_conference-trade-show-detail: 


